CITY OF ONTARIO
DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD

AGENDA

September 4, 2019
»  All documents for public review are on file in the Planning Department
located in City Hall at 303 East “B” St., Ontario, CA 91764.

MEETING WILL BEHELD AT 1:30 PM IN ONTARIO CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
LOCATED AT 303 East “B” St.

Scott Ochoa, City Manager

Scott Murphy, Executive Director, Development Agency

John P. Andrews, Executive Director, Economic Development

Kevin Shear, Building Official

Cathy Wahlstrom, Planning Director

Khoi Do, City Engineer

Chief Derek Williams, Police Department

Fire Marshal Paul Ehrman, Fire Department

Scott Burton, Utilities General Manager

Julie Bjork, Executive Director, Housing and Neighborhood Preservation

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Citizens wishing to address the Development Advisory Board on any matter that is not on the
agenda may do so at this time. Please state your name and address clearly for the record and
limit your remarks to five minutes.

Please note that while the Development Advisory Board values your comments, the members
cannot respond nor take action until such time as the matter may appear on the forthcoming
agenda.




AGENDA ITEMS

For each of the items listed below the public will be provided an opportunity to speak. After a staff
report is provided, the chairperson will open the public hearing. At that time the applicant will be
allowed five (5) minutes to make a presentation on the case. Members of the public will then be allowed
five (5) minutes each to speak. The Development Advisory Board may ask the speakers questions
relative to the case and the testimony provided. The question period will not count against your time
limit. After all persons have spoken, the applicant will be allowed three minutes to summarize or rebut
any public testimony. The chairperson will then close the public hearing portion of the hearing and
deliberate the matter.

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS

A. MINUTES APPROVAL

Development Advisory Board Minutes of August 19, 2019, approved as written.

PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS

B. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR
FILE NO. PDEV18-028: A Development Plan to demolish an existing community center
and pool and construct a 12,154 square foot community center (Anthony Munoz
Community Center), a 1,500 square foot pool house, pool and parking lot on 3.58 acres of
land located at 1240 West Fourth Street (Anthony Munoz Park) within the OS-R (Open
Space — Recreation) zoning district. The project is categorically exempt from the
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section
15332 (Class 32, In-Fill Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines. The proposed
project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and
was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario
International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 1008-541-01) City
Initiated.

1. CEQA Determination

No action necessary — Exempt: CEQA Guidelines §15332

2. File No. PDEV18-028 (Development Plan)

Motion to Approve / Deny

C. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR
FILE NO. PDEV19-035: A Development Plan to construct a 2,999-square foot fast food
restaurant with drive-thru (Carl’s Jr.) on a 0.55-acre pad within the previously approved
New Haven Market Place shopping center, located at the southwest corner of Haven
Avenue and Ontario Ranch Road, within the Retail land use district of The Avenue Specific
Plan. The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction
with The Avenue Specific Plan Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 2005071109)
certified by the City Council on December 19, 2006. This application introduces no new
significant environmental impacts and all previously adopted mitigation measures are a

-2-



condition of project approval. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence
Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with
the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan
(ALUCP) (APNs: 0218-392-26) submitted by Tait and Associates.

1. CEQA Determination

No action necessary — use of previous EIR

2. File No. PDEV19-035 (Development Plan)

Motion to Approve / Deny

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND TENTATIVE TRACT MAP REVIEW

FOR FILE NO. PMTT18-007: A Tentative Tract Map (TM 20198) to subdivide 9.57
acres of land into 18 single-family lots, located at 1103 South Benson, within the AR-2
(Residential-Agriculture - 0 to 2.0 DU/Acre) zoning district. The project is categorically
exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)
pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill Development Projects) of the CEQA
Guidelines. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario
International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and
criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP);
(APNs: 1011-431-01 & 1011-521-06) submitted by TK Management Services LLC.
Planning Commission action is required.

1. CEQA Determination

No action necessary — Exempt: CEQA Guidelines §15332

2. File No. PMTT18-007 (TTM 20198)

Motion to recommend Approval/Denial

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR
FILE NO. PDEV18-006: A Development Plan for the construction of a three-story, 88-
unit apartment complex on 3.5 acres of land located south of Sixth Street and west of the
San Bernardino County Flood Control channel, at 1402 North Virginia Avenue, within the
HDR-45 (High Density Residential - 25.1 to 45.0 DU/Acre) zoning district. The project is
categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill Development Projects) of the CEQA
Guidelines. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario
International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and
criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP);
(APNs: 1047-432-22 & 1047-443-01) submitted by SC Property Fund LLC. Planning
Commission action is required.

1. CEQA Determination

No action necessary — Exempt: CEQA Guidelines 815332

-3-




2. File No. PDEV18-006 (Development Plan)

Motion to recommend Approval/Denial

If you wish to appeal a decision of the Development Advisory Board, you must do so within ten
(10) days of the Development Advisory Board action. Please contact the Planning Department
for information regarding the appeal process.

If you challenge any action of the Development Adyvisory Board in court, you may be limited to
raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice,
or in written correspondence delivered to the Development Advisory Board at, or prior to, the
public hearing.

The next Development Advisory Board meets on September 16, 2019.

I, Maureen Duran, Office Specialist of the City of Ontario, or my designee, hereby certify that a
true, accurate copy of the foregoing agenda was posted on or before August 30, 2019, at least 72
hours prior to the meeting per Government Code Section 54954.2 at 303 East “B” Street, Ontario.

fl
Lﬂ///’{aa-wwa ﬂ.’i{b’wb’b




CITY OF ONTARIO
Development Advisory Board
Minutes

August 19, 2019

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT

Rudy Zeledon, Chairman, Planning Department

Pedro Rico, Building Department

Jesus Plasencia, Engineering Department

Paul Ehrman, Fire Department

Joe De Sousa, Housing and Neighborhood Preservation
Jeff Krizek, Municipal Utilities Company

Emily Hernandez, Police Department

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT

Charity Hernandez, Economic Development
Kevin Shear, Building Department

STAFE MEMBERS PRESENT

Jeanie Irene Aguilo, Planning Department
Denny Chen, Planning Department

Maureen Duran, Planning Department
Matthew Holmes, Engineering Department
Norma Lopez, Planning Department

Charles Mercier, Planning Department

Dean Williams, Engineering Department
Derrick Womble, Development Administration

PUBLIC COMMENTS

No one responded from the audience.

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS

A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Motion to approve the minutes of the July 15, 2019, meeting of
the Development Advisory Board was made by Mr. De Sousa; seconded by Jesus Plasencia; and
approved unanimously by those present (5-0). Mr. Krizek and Mr. Rico recused themselves as

they did not attend this meeting.

ltem A-10f4



Development Advisory Board
Minutes — August 19, 2019
Page 2

PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS

B. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND TENTATIVE TRACT MAP REVIEW FOR FILE
NO. PMTT18-002: A Tentative Tract Map (File No. PMTT18-002 / TTM 20157) to subdivide 81.35
acres of land into 6 lots and 5 lettered lots for residential, public streets, landscape neighborhood edges,
and common open space purposes, for properties generally located at the southeast corner of Mill Creek
Avenue and Old Edison Road, within PA-1 (RD-7), PA-2 (RD-4), PA-3 (RD-8), and PA-4 (RD-6) of
the Esperanza Specific Plan. The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in
conjunction with File No. PSP05-002, an Environmental Impact Report for which the Esperanza
Specific Plan (SCH No. 2002061047) was previously adopted by the City Council on January 16, 2007.
This application introduces no new significant environmental impacts, and all previously-adopted
mitigation measures are a condition of project approval. The proposed project is located within the
Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent
with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan
(ALUCP). (APNs: 0218-252-07, 0218-252-08 and 0218-252-09) submitted by RWT Preserve
Holdings, LLC. Planning Commission action is required.

Representative John Schafer of Richland was present and stated he reviewed the conditions and
had no questions. Mr. Zeledon informed Mr. Schafer that since the project was going to Planning
Commission, any concerns could be addressed at that time.

There were no further questions or concerns.

Motion to recommend approval of File No. PMTT18-002 subject to conditions of the Planning
Commission was made by Mr. De Sousa; seconded by Mr. Rico; and approved unanimously by
those present (7-0).

C. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND TENTATIVE TRACT MAP REVIEW FOR FILE
NOS. PMTT18-003, PMTT18-004, AND PMTT18-005: A request for the following Tentative Tract
Map entitlements: 1) File No. PMTT18-003 (TTM 20158) to subdivide 15.41 acres of land into 31 lots
and 16 lettered lots; 2) File No. PMTT18-004 (TTM 20159) to subdivide 13.94 acres of land into 15
lots and 5 lettered lots; and 3) File No. PMTT18-005 (TTM 20160) to subdivide 22.84 acres of land
into 113 lots and 29 lettered lots for residential and public streets, landscape neighborhood edges and
common open space purposes, generally located at the southeast corner of Mill Creek Avenue and Old
Edison Road, within PA-1 (RD-7), PA-2 (RD-4), PA-3 (RD-8), and PA-4 (RD-6) of the Esperanza
Specific Plan. The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with
File No. PSP05-002, an Environmental Impact Report for which the Esperanza Specific Plan (SCH No.
2002061047) was previously adopted by the City Council on January 16, 2007. This application
introduces no new significant environmental impacts, and all previously-adopted mitigation measures
are a condition of project approval. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area
of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and
criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP). (APNs: 0218-252-
07, 0218-252-08 and 0218-252-09) submitted by RWT Preserve Holdings, LLC. Planning
Commission action is required.

Representative John Schafer of Richland was present and agreed to the conditions of approval.

There were no further questions or concerns.

ltem A-2o0of4



Development Advisory Board
Minutes — August 19, 2019
Page 3

Motion recommending approval of File Nos. PMTT18-003, PMTT18-004, AND PMTT18-005
subject to conditions to the Planning Commission was made by Mr. De Sousa; seconded by Mr.
Rico; and approved unanimously by those present (7-0).

D. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO.
PDEV17-012: A Development Plan to remodel an existing Chevron Gas Station that includes the
construction of a new 1,879 square foot convenience store and a 630 square foot automated carwash
facility on 0.35 acres of land located at 1425 East Fourth Street, within the CN (Neighborhood
Commercial) zoning district. Staff has determined that the project is categorically exempt from the
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class
32, In-Fill Development Projects) of the CEQA guidelines. The proposed project is located within the
Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport and was evaluated and found to be consistent
with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan; (APN:
0108-381-24) submitted by St. Mary & St. Michael, Inc.

Representative Meana Agaiby of MN Designs Company was present. Mr. Zeledon asked if he had
received the revised Engineering conditions. Mr. Agaiby stated the revision was on page 27 of 43
referring to the sand and oil separator for the carwash. Mr. Agaiby agreed to these conditions and
had no further questions or concerns.

Motion to approve File No. PDEV17-012 subject to conditions was made by Mr. Plasencia;
seconded by Mr. Rico; and approved unanimously by those present (7-0).

E. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO.
PDEV18-043: A Development Plan to construct a 51,555 square foot industrial building on 2.05 acres
of land, located at 508 South Palmetto Avenue, within the IL (Light Industrial) zoning district. Staff
has determined that the project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill Development
Projects) of the CEQA guidelines. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area
of Ontario International Airport and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and
criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan; (APNs: 1011-193-04 and
1011-193-03) submitted by State Street Ontario OZ Properties, LLC. Planning Commission
action is required.

Applicant Bill Fox of State Street Ontario OZ Properties, LLC, was present and stated he had
reviewed the conditions with some revisions. Mr. Zeledon asked Mr. Chen, Project Planner, if all
conditions were correct. Mr. Chen stated they were. Mr. Fox reiterated that the address is 508
South Palmetto and not 426 South Palmetto. Mr. Zeledon also confirmed the address.

There were no further questions or concerns.

Motion recommending approval of File No. PDEV18-043 subject to conditions to the Planning
Commission was made by Mr. De Sousa; seconded by Mr. Rico; and approved unanimously by
those present (7-0).

F. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO.
PDEV19-007: A Development Plan to construct a 13,439 square foot industrial building on 0.84 acres
of land located at 1166 South Mildred Avenue, within the IG (General Industrial) zoning district. Staff
has determined that the project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill Development

Item A -3 0of 4



Development Advisory Board
Minutes — August 19, 2019
Page 4

Projects) of the CEQA guidelines. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area
of Ontario International Airport and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and
criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan; (APN: 0113-351-09)
submitted by MCI Properties, Inc.

Representative Jim Broeske of Broeske Architects and Associates, Inc., was present and stated he
had received the comments and was satisfied with them. Mr. Zeledon asked if all his concerns
were addressed, and Mr. Broeske responded they were.

There were no further questions or concerns.

Motion to approve File No. PDEV19-007 subject to conditions was made by Mr. De Sousa;
seconded by Mr. Plasencia; and approved unanimously by those present (7-0).

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Respectfully submitted,

(’/}7 AL /‘Qg Al

Maureen Duran
Recording Secretary

ltem A-4o0of 4



Development Advisory Board Decision
September 4, 2019

DECISION NO.: [insert #]
FILE NO.: PDEV18-028
DESCRIPTION: A Development Plan to demolish an existing community center and pool, and

construct a 12,154 square foot community center (Anthony Munoz Community Center), pool and 1,500-
square foot pool house, and parking lot on 3.58 acres of land located at 1240 West Fourth Street (Anthony
Munoz Park), within the OS-R (Open Space — Recreation) zoning district; (APN: 1008-541-01) City
initiated.

Part —BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS

CITY OF ONTARIO, (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an application requesting
Development Plan approval, File No. PDEV18-028, as described in the subject of this Decision (herein after
referred to as "Application" or "Project").

Q) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of a 3.58-acre portion of thel7.84-acre
Anthony Munoz Park, generally located at the northwest corner of Fourth Street and Camellia Avenue, at
1240 West Fourth Street, and is depicted in Exhibit A—Aerial Photograph, attached. The project site is
located at the southeast corner of the park site and is presently developed with a 7,000-square foot
community center, pool, and parking lot. The community center and pool are proposed to be razed to
facilitate the development of a new community center facility. Existing land uses, General Plan and zoning
designations, and specific plan land uses on and surrounding the project site are as follows:

I General Plan : . . Specific Plan
Existing Land Use Designation Zoning Designation el Uk
Site: Anthony Munoz Park | OS-R (Open Space — OS-R (Open Space — N/A
' and Community Center Parkland) Recreation)
GC (General Mountain Village Specific
Commercial Shoobin Commercial), LMDR Plan, MDR-11 (Low-
Center (Walmaft;)&g (Low Medium Density |Medium Density Residential Main Street
North: Multiple-Eamil 5.1-11.0 DU/Acre) & -5.1t0 11.0 DU/Acre) & District
Regi orial Y |MDR (Medium Density| MDR- 25 (Medium-High
Residential - 11.1 to | Density Residential—18.1
25.0 DU/Acre) to 25.0 DU/Acre)
Multiole-Famil MDR (Medium Density| MDR-25 (Medium-High
South: Regidential y Residential - 11.1 to | Density Residential—18.1 N/A
25.0 DU/Acre) to 25.0 DU/Acre)
LDR (Low Density LDR-5 (Low Density
Sinale-Eamily & Residential 2.1-5 Residential - 2.1 t0 5.0
_ g y DU/Acre) & MDR DU/Acre) & MDR-25
East: Multiple-Family di ; di oh . N/A
Residential (M.e ium Density (M_e |ur_n—H|g Density
Residential - 11.1 to Residential - 18.1 to 25.0
25.0 DU/Acre) DU/Acre)
Page 1

Item B - 1 of 30



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-028
September 4, 2019

- General Plan . . . Specific Plan
Existing Land Use Designation Zoning Designation Land Use
Single-Family LDR (Low Density LDR-5 (Low Density
West: |Residential & Religious| Residential - 2.1 t0 5.0 Residential - 2.1 to0 5.0 N/A
Assembly DU/Acre) DU/Acre)
(2) Project Description:

(a) Background — The City is proposing to develop a new 12,154-square foot
community center, along with a pool and 1,500-square foot pool house, and parking lot improvements within
Anthony Munoz Park. The proposed project was brought before the City’'s Recreation and Parks
Commission on June 25, 2018, for comments and approval. The Commission was in favor of the proposed
project and directed staff to increase park security, improve the existing parking lot, and provide an alternate
location for programs during construction of the proposed facility.

The City held a Community Meeting on August 30, 2018, which was attended by approximately 50 people,
with 35 people signing in. At the meeting, staff members from Community Life and Culture, Police, Public
Works and Information Technology were present, along with the project Architect, to discuss the proposed
project with residents. Residents in attendance were generally in favor of the proposed park improvements.
Listed below are questions and concerns raised by the community, followed by staff responses:

= Residents asked if there would be a designated fithess room and if the basketball courts would be
improved. Staff explained that there would be exercise equipment but not a designated fithess room
and the basketball courts were not part of the proposed improvements.

= Residents asked if the community center would be closer to Fourth Street and if construction would
be done in phases. Also, residents inquired about how long the facility would be under construction.
Staff explained that the building would be closer to Fourth Street and construction would take
approximately one year and the facility would be completed in one phase.

= Residents inquired about where existing programs would occur while the facility is under
construction. Staff explained that a program relocation plan would be implemented and residents
would be notified of their temporary locations.

= Residents inquired about the building size and design and if existing programs would continue to
be held and accommodated within the new facility. Some residents requested that the multi-
purpose room be increased in size. Staff explained that new facility would be larger and that spaces
were designed to be versatile and flexible for multiple users. Also, that the facility would be larger
than the Dorothy Quesada Community Center.

= Residents asked if there would be parking and security improvements to the park. Staff explained
that there are plans to increase the size of the parking lot to alleviate parking within the surrounding
community. Officers in attendance spoke to the community about including cameras within the park
to assist with surveillance and other programs to keep the residents safe and deter vandalism.

= Residents requested a walking/biking trail be placed within the park. Staff explained that those
improvements were not part of the project scope.

(b) Site Plan — The proposed park improvements are limited to the southeast corner
of Anthony Munoz Park. The proposed pool will be situated on southeast corner of the park, the pool house
will be located north of the pool, and the community center will be located directly west of the pool and pool
house. The community center’s main entrance faces east and is accessed on the north through a common

Page 2

Item B - 2 of 30



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-028
September 4, 2019

courtyard. The building has been designed with a terrace to the north, a courtyard to the west, between the
two building wings, and a tot-lot to the south, facing Fourth Street.

The building’s floor plan is divided into three general areas:

= Lobby/Entrance — The eastern portion of the building includes the lobby, reception area, bathrooms,
storage area, office, electrical room, and a tot room for younger children;

=  South Wing — The south wing of the building includes storage rooms, a janitorial room, and a 1,400-
square foot large activity room that can be divided into two smaller rooms; and

= North Wing — The north wing of the building includes a 2,500-square foot multi-purpose room that
can be divided into two smaller rooms, additional bathrooms, kitchen, offices, break room, and
additional storage/utility rooms.

(a) Parking/Circulation — The parking lot will remain in the same general location,
north of the community center and pool, adjacent to Camellia Avenue. Parking improvements will be
completed in two phases. Phase 1 improvements are limited to the southern end of the parking lot, adjacent
to the community center, and includes a new trash enclosure and drop off area. Phase 2 parking lot
improvements will increase and reconfigure the parking lot into a rectangular shape along Camelia Avenue,
which will increase the number of parking spaces from 72 to 135. Vehicular access to the site is presently
taken from Camellia Avenue via two 30-foot wide driveways located at the north and south end of the
parking lot, which will remain in place.

(b) Architecture — The proposed building has a modern contemporary design.
Architectural elements include: angled roof lines with deep roof overhangs; exposed structural wood beams;
walls with a smooth troweled acrylic plaster finish; horizontal aluminum louvers and metal panels; glazed
aluminum curtain walls; and clerestory window systems, with a cool grey and brown color palette. The pool
area will be surrounded by an 8-foot high split-face block wall, incorporating a light grey and dark grey color
palette, which has been designed to complement the proposed building’s architecture and color scheme.
The project will also incorporate a freestanding art wall, located east of the pool's perimeter block wall,
which will face Camellia Avenue.

(c) Landscaping — The landscape plan will complement and enhance the architecture
of the building and the street frontages along Fourth Street and Camellia Avenue. A combination of 24-
inch, 36-inch, and 48-inch box accent and shade trees will be provided throughout the project site, in
addition to a variety of shrubs, aloe, agave, vines, turf, and groundcovers that are low water usage and
drought tolerant.

Part —RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public
Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to a categorical exemption (listed in CEQA
Guidelines Article 19, commencing with Section 15300) and the application of that categorical exemption
is not barred by one of the exceptions set forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development
Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and act on the subject Application; and

Page 3

Item B - 3 of 30



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-028
September 4, 2019

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development;
and

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing
Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and
policies of the Housing Element; and

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport,
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is
subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport
Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County,
and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport
activity; and

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such
notifications and procedures have been completed; and

WHEREAS, on September 4, 2019, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the
Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred.

Part Il—THE DECISION

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory
Board of the City of Ontario, as follows:

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the decision-making body for
the Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the administrative record
for the Project. Based upon the facts and information contained in the administrative record, including all
written and oral evidence presented to the DAB, the DAB finds as follows:

(1) The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill Development Projects) of the CEQA
Guidelines. The proposed project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and all
applicable general plan policies, as-well-as with applicable zoning designation and regulations. The
proposed development occurs within city limits and the area being developed is 3.58 acres, less than the
five-acre threshold, and is substantially surrounded by urban land uses. The project site has no value as
habitat for endangered, rare or threatened species. Approval of the project would not result in any significant
effects relating to traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality. Additionally, the site is adequately served by all
required utilities and public services.

(2) The application of the categorical exemption is not barred by one of the exceptions set
forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and

3) The determination of CEQA exemption reflects the independent judgment of the DAB.

SECTION 2:  Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California
Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the decision-making body

Page 4

Iltem B - 4 of 30



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-028
September 4, 2019

for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and
supporting documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project site is not one of
the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) of
the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix.

SECTION 3:  Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (*ALUCP”)
Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 et seq.) requires
that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use airports in the State; and requires
that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth
in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of Ontario
approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP"),
establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport (“ONT”), which encompasses lands
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and
development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and
overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As the decision-making body for the Project, the
DAB has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting
documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2)
and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP
Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP
Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when implemented in
conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within
the ALUCP.

SECTION 4: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the specific findings set forth in Sections 1
through 4, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows:

(1) The proposed development at the proposed location is consistent with the goals,
policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities
components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed Project is located within the OS-R (Open Space —
Parkland) land use district of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and the OS-R (Open Space — Recreation)
zoning district. The development standards and conditions under which the proposed Project will be
constructed and maintained is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy
Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan; and

(2) The proposed development is compatible with those on adjoining sites in relation to
location of buildings, with particular attention to privacy, views, any physical constraint identified
on the site and the characteristics of the area in which the site is located. The Project has been
designed consistent with the requirements of the City of Ontario Development Code and the OS-R (Open
Space — Recreation) zoning district, including standards relative to the particular land use proposed
(Community Center and City Park), as-well-as building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building
height, number of off-street parking and loading spaces, on-site and off-site landscaping, and fences, walls
and obstructions; and

3) The proposed development will complement and/or improve upon the quality of
existing developmentin the vicinity of the project and the minimum safeguards necessary to protect
the public health, safety and general welfare have been required of the proposed project. The
Development Advisory Board has required certain safeguards, and impose certain conditions of approval,
which have been established to ensure that: [i] the purposes of the Development Code are maintained; [ii]
the project will not endanger the public health, safety or general welfare; [iii] the project will not result in any
significant environmental impacts; [iv] the project will be in harmony with the area in which it is located; and
[v] the project will be in full conformity with the Vision, City Council Priorities and Policy Plan components
of The Ontario Plan; and

Page 5

Item B - 5 of 30



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-028
September 4, 2019

(4) The proposed development is consistent with the development standards and
design guidelines set forth in the Development Code, or applicable specific plan or planned unit
development. The proposed Project has been reviewed for consistency with the general development
standards and guidelines of the Development Code that are applicable to the proposed Project, including
building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, amount of off-street parking and loading
spaces, parking lot dimensions, design and landscaping, bicycle parking, on-site landscaping, and fences
and walls, as-well-as those development standards and guidelines specifically related to the particular land
use being proposed (Community Center and City Park). As a result of this review, the Development
Advisory Board has determined that the Project, when implemented in conjunction with the conditions of
approval, will be consistent with the development standards and guidelines described in the Development
Code.

SECTION5: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions
set forth in Sections 1 through 4, above, the DAB hereby APPROVES the Application subject to each and
every condition set forth in the Department reports included as Attachment A of this Decision, and
incorporated herein by this reference.

SECTION 6: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold
harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding,
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense.

SECTION 7:  Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 4th day of September 2019.

Development Advisory Board Chairman

Page 6

Iltem B - 6 of 30



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-028
September 4, 2019

Exhibit A—PROJECT LOCATION MAP

AnthonyiMunoz;
Rark

[

ey SR T

% Project Site

Page 7

Item B - 7 of 30



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-028
September 4, 2019

Exhibit B—SITE PLAN PHASE 1

E ’ 1] §
. i ]
1 IRl
T _molcuwusl :Elr i i
PARKING CALCULATION > —g--'wm'ﬂw- 4 L | |.
S v s K| o i i
oo ] ' [l
= a : { it
> be o [P - : i
p =l ! ]
: | : :
| i
i ! I
Ao BN, I:\ i
pc) 1 '/j_l: |
il ,
IJIl | m:.Ei
T i
H :
/ |
1 i i
| H
1 | |
1 i |
1 ' i
'I | .
- i |
|
Fw |
-
| Z |
P
=
P il
B | ——— -
|~ PROPOSED POOL -, | | D
i i
— g
O

Page 8

Item B - 8 of 30



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-028
September 4, 2019

Exhibit B—COLOR SITE PLAN PHASE 1

DROP-OFF

/
j STORAGE MULTIPURPOSE MULTI-PURPOSE
ROOM A RCOM B
{

TEACHING KITCHEN

NORTH CAMELLIA AVENUE

Page 9

Iltem B - 9 of 30



Development Advisory Board Decision

File No. PDEV18-028
September 4, 2019

Exhibit C—SITE PLAN PHASE 2

o
N RS A e

ARKING CALCULATION

LY

FTTTHE
SETE L
TR &
| ) | k. a.

[ ) — ]

"\\r-g_.\

xlﬁ'_

@

i

CIp

i

g
T

R S

e e L S TS -

! i o
E‘E;.,. 3 é;—" |
W x.-_§ !
= el TEH
L9 ek i
= ey s
= |
e B
w # 7 c =)
v if e o3 = I
“HEASE ;EI_ i
i oy Ed S AT
3 PR i TS iz
=% I (o) 2 A
H ] _.—.V,;E!; E‘. b
222 i - Do
T munmar
31 3] '-E||
HH | w
m %-
e 2
| ——— B =" —
et =i
— Di |

Page 10

Iltem B - 10 of 30



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-028
September 4, 2019

Exhibit D—FLOOR PLAN

1 L} 1 1 I‘ 1
V‘I" St e ——
[ 5
LTI ELLTT
(EEEERREREEEE.
TTITTITIIIIL]
STORAGE MULTI-PURPOSE [ IMULTI-PURPOSE |
ROOM A | [T ROOMB
16 0
ITITITITTIIT]
LTI TTET LT s 1 S 32
TEACHING KITCHEN AV OFF ENTRY LIFEGRD POOLMECH L l
- e PORCH OFFICE POOL EQUIP
' WRR { jl MRR == ! e SUPPLIES
PAY [
' | I | ! RECE LOBBY _ WINDOW I I
m f - - I o T <
1 5 SHOWERS
GALLERY
1 < - - - - - - - | 1 1 5
I = ELEC '
ST OFFICE :
POOL
AREA I STOR ?SR%H
TOT i
ROOM | I POOLS0'x 75!
RR
. SR 3o o b
E T 5
Lt i I i MRR
el - 5
X s l G '
ACTIVITY b
STOR ROOM B E;|_ I
SHADE | |
S STRUCTURE | |
~ -~ :
| | 1
Page 11

ltem B - 11 of 30



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-028
September 4, 2019

Exhibit E—ELEVATIONS

NORTH ELEVATION

WEST ELEVATION

Page 12

ltem B - 12 of 30



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-028
September 4, 2019

&
F

LY

':‘QL..’

P S )

SOUTH ELEVATION

B W |

EAST ELEVATION

Page 13

ltem B - 13 of 30



Development Advisory Board Decision

File No. PDEV18-028
September 4, 2019

Exhibit D—LANDSCAPE PLAN

WRERNE

Ig
<]
1

i

" CAMELLIA AVENUE

LEGEND

ceeeez

ARFAL
» FCLARFAE

®  CETECTASLE WARMNG PAVERS
*  UGHT EDLLARDE

PROMERATE

& SNAL FLEWERH D TREDS

& TREEGRATE

& 11 TRLL PEOESTRAN SOLUMN U GWTS

FOOTBALL FELD
= SUCCULENT AND ROSE GARDEN L&D DUT OH GRICIRON

WOUNTA N IEW
=  FRECAST S0ARD FORM SEATWALLS W VOO COF

*  SEEDEDASGRBOATE PAVEID FIILLS W HATUIAL BRAT BANES.

AN THONY MUNOE COURT YR80

*  CONCRITE FLOOR EXTENGY FROM QALLERY AND ASTINTY AOCH
CORRICOR

SPECIEN SHADE TREES 1 TREE SRATES

FRECAST S34RD FOAM SEAT WaLLS W WOO0D CAF

STONE PAVING

CECORATIVE B K METAL PERM STES FENCE AKD BATES

ot 220
BUTECHR HACD Pty 4

WINE-COVERED § HOH PERUETER FERCE

ERTRY FORCH
» PIEGRAL COLORED DOMCRS

SAWCLTRETTE

FOOL PORCH
® RN CILORID DORCRSTE WAL T PATTE

VO 1

P aina
* PUMMETH DisN
SRR A

®  FALM ARCADE N DECORATIVE THEE GRATES
® WETRLAND WE0 SHROE THELL

ACCESSHELE PRTH TO RO W

* AH% ELCFING VALY

ILRHISAED BLOCH WALL W GuA%S 50073

FLITLRE MURALWALL

& CMUVALL W HARD TROVEL FHEH

THE "CIRCLE"

* HEDGE, PAVING EAND, LOWWALL, FENCE THAT LIRS THE
EXTERIOR SPACES

AT STROET A0 W CAMILLA SVBNJR FRONTASL

*  CROUGHT TELESANT CRUEMEK T ORAS5ES, SHEUNS AN

 {E/TREES TOEE FROTECTED K FLACE L=
FECTM MENDAT) SR 1N AREDSIST RESORT

ERTWALL 454 SUAL TERRLS

PROPOSED PLANT LEGEND

e, BOTAZAL I OGN LuNE w

T
CERCOUMTESERT  CEHT WIS W
gsEu FALSUERED B
GERCHS POREST FEREST ST B
e HELHL Box
oumtisAckroUs  eoestinEcw M
Ly PUS NS Ll e
PHOEID DACTVIFERA TATE 7k B

'PRELIMINARY LANDSCAPE PLAN

Page 14

Iltem B - 14 of 30



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-028
September 4, 2019

Attachment A—Departmental Conditions of Approval

(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page)

Page 15

ltem B - 15 of 30



City of Ontari H

PllaﬁgingnDzrpl)c;rtment Pla””lng Depal:t’?e.”t
303 East B Street Land Development Division
Ontario, California 91764 ——=

Phone: 909.395.2036 Conditions of Approval

Fax: 909.395.2420

Meeting Date: September 4, 2019
File No: PDEV18-028
Related Files: n/a

Project Description: A Development Plan to demolish an existing community center and pool and
construct a 12,154 square foot community center (Anthony Munoz Community Center), a 1,500 square foot
pool house, pool and parking lot on 3.58 acres of land located at 1240 West Fourth Street (Anthony Munoz
Park) within the OS-R (Open Space — Recreation) zoning district. (APN: 1008-541-01); submitted by City
Ontario.

Prepared By: Lorena Mejia, Senior Planner
Phone: 909.395.2276 (direct)
Email: Imejia@ontarioca.gov

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable to the
above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of approval listed
below:

1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions for New
Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy of the Standard
Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning Department or City Clerk/Records
Management Department.

2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New Development
identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following special conditions of
approval:

2.1 Time Limits.

(a) Development Plan approval shall become null and void 2 years following the
effective date of application approval, unless a building permit is issued and construction is commenced,
and diligently pursued toward completion, or a time extension has been approved by the Planning Director.
This condition does not supersede any individual time limits specified herein, or any other departmental
conditions of approval applicable to the Project, for the performance of specific conditions or improvements.

2.2 General Requirements. The Project shall comply with the following general requirements:

(a) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, including, but
not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape and irrigation, grading,
utility and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with the approved entitlement plans
on file with the Planning Department.

(b) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved plans on file

with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved by the Planning
Department prior to building permit issuance.

Iltem B - 16 of 30



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval
File No.: PDEV18-028
Page 2 of 3

(c) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be included
in the construction plan set for project, which shall be maintained on site during project construction.

2.3 Walls and Fences. All Project walls and fences shall comply with the requirements of
Ontario Development Code Division 6.02 (Walls, Fences and Obstructions).

2.4 Parking, Circulation and Access.

(a) The Project shall comply with the applicable off-street parking, loading and lighting
requirements of City of Ontario Development Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and Loading).

(b) Areas provided to meet the City’s parking requirements, including off-street parking
and loading spaces, access drives, and maneuvering areas, shall not be used for the outdoor storage of
materials and equipment, nor shall it be used for any other purpose than parking.

(c) The required number of off-street parking spaces and/or loading spaces shall be
provided at the time of site and/or building occupancy. All parking and loading spaces shall be maintained
in good condition for the duration of the building or use.

(d) Parking spaces specifically designated and conveniently located for use by the
physically disabled shall be provided pursuant to current accessibility regulations contained in State law
(CCR Title 24, Part 2, Chapters 2B71, and CVC Section 22507.8).

2.5 Mechanical and Rooftop Equipment.

(a) All exterior roof-mounted mechanical, heating and air conditioning equipment, and
all appurtenances thereto, shall be completely screened from public view by parapet walls or roof screens
that are architecturally treated so as to be consistent with the building architecture.

(b) All ground-mounted utility equipment and structures, such as tanks, transformers,
HVAC equipment, and backflow prevention devices, shall be located out of view from a public street, or
adequately screened through the use of landscaping and/or decorative low garden walls.
2.6 Signs. All Project signage shall comply with the requirements of Ontario Development
Code Division 8.1 (Sign Regulations).

2.7 Environmental Review.

(a) The proposed project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the
California Environmental Quality Act of 1970 (CEQA), as amended, and the Guidelines promulgated
thereunder, pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines,
meeting the following conditions:

(i) The Project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and
all applicable general plan policies, as well as the applicable zoning designation and regulations;
(i) The proposed development occurs within city limits, on a project site of no

more than five acres, and is substantially surrounded by urban uses;
(iii) The project site has no value as habitat for endangered, rare, or
threatened species;

ltem B - 17 of 30



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval
File No.: PDEV18-028
Page 3 of 3

(iv) Approval of the Project will not result in any significant effects relating to
traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality; and

(v) The Project site can be adequately served by all required utilities and
public services.

2.8 Additional Fees.

(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of Determination
(NOD) filing fee shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be paid by check, made
payable to the "Clerk of the Board of Supervisors", which shall be forwarded to the San Bernardino County
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, along with all applicable environmental forms/notices, pursuant to the
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Failure to provide said fee within the time
specified may result in a 180-day extension to the statute of limitations for the filing of a CEQA lawsuit.

Iltem B - 18 of 30



O

ad. CITY OF ONTARIO

NTARIO MEMORANDUM

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

(Engineering Services Division [Land Development Section and Environmental Section], Traffic & Transportation Division,
Ontario Municipal Utilities Company and Information Technology & Management Services Department Conditions

incorporated)

DAB MEETING DATE:  September 4™, 2019

PROJECT: PDEV18-028, a Development Plan to reconstruct a commercial building
totaling 11,500 square feet on 18 acres of land located at Anthony Munoz
Park.

APN: 1008-541-01

LOCATION: 1240 West Fourth Street

PROJECT ENGINEER: Antonio Alejos, Assistant Engineer A A : (909) 395-2384

PROJECT PLANNER: Lorena Mejia, Senior Planner (909) 395-2276

The following items are the Conditions of Approval for the subject project:

L

Project shall comply with the requirements as set forth in the Amendment to the Standard
Conditions of Approval for New Development Projects adopted by the City Council
(Resolution No. 2017-027) on April 18, 2017; as well as project-specific
conditions/requirements as outlined below:

The applicant/developer shall protect in place the existing parking restrictions along Camelia
Avenue during the development of the project site.

The applicant/developer shall reconstruct two (2) existing driveway approaches along
Camellia Avenue per City Standard Drawing Number 1204,

The applicant/developer shall be responsible to design and construct fiber optic conduit and
hand-holes along Fourth Street and Camellia Avenue property frontage per the latest City
Design Guidelines/Standard Drawings.

The applicant/developer shall be responsible to design and construct in-fill public street lights
along Camellia Avenue property frontage. Street lighting shall be LED-type and in
accordance with City’s Traffic and Transportation Design Guidelines.

The applicant/developer shall install a new domestic water service to the existing 10-inch

domestic water main in Fourth Street and equip a backflow device to the service behind the
property line per the latest City Design Guidelines/Standard Drawings.

1 of 3

Iltem B - 19 of 30



Project File No. PDEV18-028
Project Engineer: Antonio Alejos
DAB Date: 09/04/19

7. The applicant/developer shall install a new sewer lateral to the back of the existing sewer
manbhole at the intersection of Fourth Street and Elderberry Avenue per the latest City Design
Guidelines/Standard Drawings.

a. The new sewer lateral shall be equipped with cleanouts and a grease interceptor to be
connected to the kitchen for immediate use per the latest City Design
Guidelines/Standard Drawings.

8. The applicant/developer shall construct the proposed parkway drains along Fourth Street
property frontage per the latest City Design Guidelines/Standard Drawings.

9. The applicant/developer shall install a new fire service the existing 10-inch domestic water
main in Fourth Street and equip a DCDA to the service behind the property line per the latest
City Design Guidelines/Standard Drawings.

10. The applicant/developer shall revise the existing Engineering Report (ER) in order to retrofit
the existing site for purple water use and connect to the existing recycled water irrigation
system.

a. Prior to Building Permits:

i. Provide copies of both on-site and off-site utilities layout. We need both
hard copies and digital files in PDF and AutoCAD format.

ii. Submittal of the Revised ER for recycled water usage for approval by the
City and State. Review and approval process of ER is approximately 3
months. For ER questions, please contact:

Cynthia Heredia-Torres

Phone: (909) 395-2647
Fax: (909) 395-2608

b. Prior to Occupancy Release:

i. State shall approve ER.
ii. Successfully pass start-up, cross connection and overspray test.

11. The applicant/developer shall construct a new three (3) 4CY-bin trash enclosure with a solid
roof per the Refuse & Recycling Planning Manual.

a. Prior to Grading Permits:

i. Provide a Solid Waste Handling Plan (SWHP) sheet that complies with the
“Solid Waste Handling Plan Requirements™.

ii. The site shall comply with the Requirements of State Assembly Bill
AB1826, which requires organic waste to be diverted and collected
separately from recycling and other refuse wastes.

iii. Include on SWHP how Organics separation and collections shall be handled
in addition to refuse and recycling collections.

20f 3

Iltem B - 20 of 30



Project File No. PDEV18-028
Project Engineer: Antonio Alejos
DAB Date: 09/04/19

12. The applicant/developer or occupant shall apply for a Wastewater Discharge Permit for their
Establishment, and shall comply will all the requirements of the Wastewater Discharge
Permit (http://www.ontarioca.gov/municipal-utilities-company/utilities/industrial-wastewater-
discharge-permit).

a. Requirements of the Wastewater Discharge Permit may include, but not limited to:
Installation of wastewater pretreatment equipment, such as clarifiers. For wastewater
permit application questions, please contact:

Michael Birmelin, Environmental Programs Manager
omucenvironmental@ontarioca.cov
Phone: (909) 395-2661

13. Submit a Water Quality Management Plan (WQMP). This plan shall be approved by the
Engineering Department prior to approval of any grading plan. The WQMP shall be
submitted, utilizing the current San Bernardino County Stormwater Program template,
available at: http://www.sbcounty.gov/dpw/land/npdes.asp.

14. Submit a hydrology study and drainage analysis, prepared and signed by a Civil Engineer
registered in the State of California. The study shall be prepared in accordance with the San
Bernardino County Hydrology Manual and City of Ontario standards and guidelines.
Additional drainage facilities, including, but not limited to, improvements beyond the project
frontage, may be required to be designed and constructed, by Applicant, as a result of the
findings of this study.

a. An adequate drainage facility to accept additional runoff from the site does not
currently exist downstream of the project. Design and construct a storm water
detention facility on the project site. 100 year post-development peak flow shall be
attenuated such that it does not exceed 80% of pre-development peak flows, in
accordance with the approved hydrology study and improvement plans.

5/ 22//4 e N

an Lirley, P/E. / Date RaymoAd Lee, P.E. Date
Principal Engineer Assistant City Engineer

3of 3

Iltem B - 21 of 30



AIRPORT LAND Use COMPATIBILITY PLANNING ONTARI@-*’

AIRPORT PLANNING

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION REPORT

Project File No.: PDEV18-028 Reviewed By:
Address: 1240 W Fourth St Lorena Mejia
APN: 100-854-01 TortEed o
Existing Land  City Park (Anthony Munoz) 009-395-2276
Use:

Project Planner:

Proposed Land Development Plan to construct an 11,500 SF Recreational facility within an existing Lorena Mejia/Lorenzo Alvarez

Use: city park (Anthony Munoz)
. 7/31/18
Site Acreage: ~ 0.8ac Proposed Structure Height: Existing Building Date:
ONT-IAC Project Review: N/A
. nla
Airport Influence Area: ONT PALU No.:

The project is impacted by the following ONT ALUCP Compatibility Zones:

Safety Noise Impact Airspace Protection Overflight Notification
O Zone 1 O 75+ dB CNEL O High Terrain Zone Avigation Easement
Dedication
O Zone 1A () 70-75dBCNEL v | FAA Notification Surfaces Recorded Overflight
) , Notification
O Zone 2 O 65 - 70 dB CNEL / Airspace Obstruction
Surfaces / Real Estate Transaction
O Zone 3 O 60 - 65 dB CNEL . - Disclosure
Airspace Avigation
O Zone 4 Easement Area
Allowable
O Zone 5 Height: 200 + FT

O Zone 1 O Zone 2 O Zone 3 O Zone 4 O Zone 5 O Zone 6

Allowable Height:

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION

This proposed Project is: D Exempt from the ALUCP ® Consistent DConsistent with Conditions D Inconsistent

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP)
for ONT.

oo Sy~

Page 1 Form Updated: March 3, 2016
ltem B - 22 of 30

Airport Planner Signature:




CITY OF ONTARIO
MEMORANDUM

TO:
FROM:
DATE:

SUBJECT:

PLANNING DEPARTMENT, Lorena Mejia
BUILDING DEPARTMENT, Kevin Shear
July 23, 2018

PDEV18-028

X The plan does adequately address the departmental concerns at this time.

(|
X

No comments

Report below.

Conditions of Approval

1. Standard Conditions of Approval apply.

KS:1m

Iltem B - 23 of 30



CITY OF ONTARIO
MEMORANDUM

TO: Lorena Mejia, Senior Planner
Planning Department

FROM: Paul Ehrman, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal
Fire Department

DATE: August 13, 2018

SUBJECT: PDEV18-028 - A Development Plan to reconstruct a commercial building
totaling 11,500 square feet on 18 acres of land located at Anthony Munoz
Park, 1240 West Fourth Street, within the OSR (Open Space Recreational)
zoning district (APN: 1008-541-01).

X The plan does adequately address Fire Department requirements at this time.

SITE AND BUILDING FEATURES:

A. 2016 CBC Type of Construction: Type V
B. Type of Roof Materials: Ordinary

C. Ground Floor Area(s): 11,500 Sq. Ft.

D. Number of Stories: 1

E. Total Square Footage: 11,500 Sq. Ft

F. 2016 CBC Occupancy Classification(s): A

Iltem B - 24 of 30



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL:

1.0 GENERAL

X 1.1 The following are the Ontario Fire Department (“Fire Department”) requirements for this
development project, based on the current edition of the California Fire Code (CFC), and the
current versions of the Fire Prevention Standards (“Standards.”) It is recommended that the
applicant or developer transmit a copy of these requirements to the on-site contractor(s) and
that all questions or concerns be directed to the Bureau of Fire Prevention, at (909) 395-2029.
For copies of Ontario Fire Department Standards please access the City of Ontario web site at
www.ontarioca.gov, click on “Fire Department” and then on “Standards and Forms.”

X 1.2 These Fire Department conditions of approval are to be included on any and all construction
drawings.

2.0 FIRE DEPARTMENT ACCESS

X1 2.1 Fire Department vehicle access roadways shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all portions of
the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved. Roadways
shall be paved with an all-weather surface and shall be a minimum of twenty-four (24) ft. wide.
See Standard #B-004.

X1 2.2 In order to allow for adequate turning radius for emergency fire apparatus, all turns shall be
designed to meet the minimum twenty five feet (25”) inside and forty-five feet (45°) outside
turning radius per Standard #B-005.

X 2.3 Fire Department access roadways that exceed one hundred and fifty feet (150°) in length shall
have an approved turn-around per_Standard #B-002.

X 2.4 Access drive aisles which cross property lines shall be provided with CC&Rs, access
easements, or reciprocating agreements, and shall be recorded on the titles of affected
properties, and copies of same shall be provided at the time of building plan check.

X 2.5 "No Parking-Fire Lane" signs and /or red painted curbs with lettering are required to be instal-
led in interior access roadways, in locations where vehicle parking would obstruct the
minimum clear width requirement. Installation shall be per Standard #B-001.

X 2.6 Security gates or other barriers on fire access roadways shall be provided with a Knox brand
key switch or padlock to allow Fire Department access. See Standards #B-003, B-004 and H-
001.

X 2.7 Any time PRIOR to on-site combustible construction and/or storage, a minimum twenty-six
(26) ft. wide circulating all weather access roads shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all
portions of the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved by
fire department and other emergency services.

12e0h4B - 25 of 30


file://///ont-chfs02/Shared/Fire/Fire%20Prevention/Development/DAB%20Comments/www.ontarioca.gov

3.0

X 3.1

X 3.2

X 3.4

4.0

X 4.2

X 4.3

X 4.4

X 4.5

X 4.6

X 4.7

WATER SUPPLY

The required fire flow per Fire Department standards, based on the 2016 California Fire Code,
Appendix B, is 1500 gallons per minute (g.p.m.) for 3 hours at a minimum of 20 pounds per
square inch (p.s.i.) residual operating pressure.

Off-site (public) fire hydrants are required to be installed on all frontage streets, at a minimum
spacing of three hundred foot (300’) apart, per Engineering Department specifications.

The water supply, including water mains and fire hydrants, shall be tested and approved by the
Engineering Department and Fire Department prior to combustible construction to assure
availability and reliability for firefighting purposes.

FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS

Underground fire mains which cross property lines shall be provided with CC & R, easements,
or reciprocating agreements, and shall be recorded on the titles of affected properties, and
copies of same shall be provided at the time of fire department plan check. The shared use of
private fire mains or fire pumps is allowable only between immediately adjacent properties
and shall not cross any public street.

An automatic fire sprinkler system is required. The system design shall be in accordance with
National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Standard Choose an item.. All new fire sprinkler
systems, except those in single family dwellings, which contain twenty (20) sprinkler heads or
more shall be monitored by an approved listed supervising station. An application along with
detailed plans shall be submitted, and a construction permit shall be issued by the Fire
Department, prior to any work being done.

Wood frame buildings that are to be sprinkled shall have these systems in service (but not
necessarily finaled) before the building is enclosed.

Fire Department Connections (FDC) shall be located on the address side of the building within
one hundred fifty feet (150”) of a public fire hydrant on the same side of the street. Provide
identification for all fire sprinkler control valves and fire department connections per Standard
#D-007. Raised curbs adjacent to Fire Department connection(s) shall be painted red, five feet
either side, per City standards.

A fire alarm system is required. The system design shall be in accordance with National Fire
Protection Association (NFPA) Standard 72. An application along with detailed plans shall be
submitted, and a construction permit shall be issued by the Fire Department, prior to any work
being done.

Portable fire extinguishers are required to be installed prior to occupancy per Standard #C-001.
Please contact the Fire Prevention Bureau to determine the exact number, type and placement
required.

1%e0h4B - 26 of 30



X 4.8 A fixed fire extinguishing system is required for the protection of hood, duct, plenum and
cooking surfaces. This system must comply with National Fire Protection Association (NFPA)
Standards 17A and 96. An application with detailed plans shall be submitted, and a
construction permit shall be issued by the Fire Department, prior to any work being done.

5.0 BUILDING CONSTRUCTION FEATURES

X 5.1 The developer/general contractor is to be responsible for reasonable periodic cleanup of the
development during construction to avoid hazardous accumulations of combustible trash and
debris both on and off the site.

X1 5.2 Approved numbers or addresses shall be placed on all new and existing buildings in such a
position as to be plainly visible and legible from the street or road fronting the property. Multi-
tenant or building projects shall have addresses and/or suite numbers provided on the rear of
the building. Address numbers shall contrast with their background. See Section 9-1 6.06 of
the Ontario Municipal Code and Standards #H-003 and #H-002.

X 5.6 Knox ® brand key-box(es) shall be installed in location(s) acceptable to the Fire Department.
All Knox boxes shall be monitored for tamper by the building fire alarm system. See Standard
#H-001 for specific requirements.

X1 5.7 Placards shall be installed in acceptable locations on buildings that store, use or handle
hazardous materials in excess of the quantities specified in the CFC. Placards shall meet the
requirements of National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Standard 704.

6.0 OTHER SPECIAL USES

X 6.1 The storage, use, dispensing, or handling of any hazardous materials shall be approved by the
Fire Department, and adequate fire protection features shall be required. If hazardous materials
are proposed, a Fire Department Hazardous Materials Information Packet, including
Disclosure Form and Information Worksheet, shall be completed and submitted with Material
Safety Data Sheets to the Fire Department along with building construction plans.

HedhB - 27 of 30



CITY OF ONTARIO
MEMORANDUM

TO: Lorena Mejia, Planning Department
FROM: Douglas Sorel, Police Department
DATE: July 23, 2018

SUBJECT: PDEV18-028 - A DEVELOPMENT PLAN TO RECONSTRUCT THE
ANTHONY MUNOZ COMMUNITY CENTER AT 1240 WEST FOURTH
STREET

The “Standard Conditions of Approval” contained in Resolution No. 2017-027 apply. The
applicant shall read and be thoroughly familiar with these conditions, including, but not limited
to, the requirements listed below.

e Required lighting for walkways, driveways, doorways, parking lots, hallways, stairwells,
and other areas used by the public shall be provided. Lights shall operate via photosensor.
Photometrics shall be provided to the Police Department and include the types of fixtures
proposed and demonstrate that such fixtures meet the vandal-resistant requirement.
Planned landscaping shall not obstruct lighting.

e Rooftop addresses shall be installed on the buildings as stated in the Standard Conditions.
The numbers shall be at a minimum 3 feet tall and 1 foot wide, in reflective white paint
on a flat black background, and oriented with the bottom of the numbers towards the
addressed street.

e The Applicant shall comply with construction site security requirements as stated in the
Standard Conditions.

The Applicant is invited to contact Douglas Sorel at (909) 408-1873 with any questions
regarding these conditions.

Iltem B - 28 of 30



CITY OF ONTARIO CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

Sign Off
L ANDSCAPE PLANNING DIVISION Cronch Prall
303 East “B” Street, Ontario, CA 91764 c Aa—— : 313719
arolyn Bell, Sr. Landscape Architect Date
Reviewer's Name: Phone:
Carolyn Bell, Sr Landscape Architect (909) 395-2237
D.A.B. File No.: Case Planner:
PDEV18-028 Rev 2 Lorena Mejia

Project Name and Location:

Anthony Munoz Community Center

1240 West Fourth St

Applicant/Representative:

RCA+A Robert Coffee Architects, Ridge Landscape Architects.City of Ontario/ David Simpson
1425 W Bon View Ave

Ontario CA 91761

X A Preliminary Landscape Plan (dated 12/31/18) meets the Standard Conditions for New
Development and has been approved with the consideration that the following
conditions below be met upon submittal of the landscape construction documents.

[] | A Preliminary Landscape Plan (dated) has not been approved.
Corrections noted below are required prior to Preliminary Landscape Plan approval.

A RESPONSE SHEET IS REQUIRED WITH RESUBMITTAL OR PLANS WILL BE RETURNED AS INCOMPLETE

Resubmitted plans have not been revised from the last set.

Civil/ Site Plans

1. DD-1.1 revise grading plan to provide a shallow vegetated swale instead of rock per the meeting
discussion. Include 3’ x 3’ deep engineered soil with 6” of top soil, plants and boulders. Remove
connection of swales to sidewalk.

2. E1.1 Add legend for light fixtures. Provide plans

3. Show security camera be mounted to light fixture instead of a separate pole. Provide plans

4. Show backflow devices located in planter areas, dimensioned and set back min 4’ from paving
Locate on level grade. Identify existing backflow (recycled water) to be removed or to remain on
Camellia Ave.

5. Note for compaction to be no greater than 85% at landscape areas. All finished grades at 1 /2" below
finished surfaces. Slopes to be maximum 3:1.

6. Dimension planters to have a minimum 5’ wide inside dimension. In parking lots show 12” wide
curbs, or 6” curbs with 12” of pavers or DG paving at parking spaces at planters.

7. Consider changing wood in trellises to aluminum or steel for reduced maintenance.

Landscape Plans

8. Show backflows, trash enclosures and transformers, with setbacks from paving and landscape
screening: 36” high strappy leaf shrubs at backflows and 4’ high evergreen shrubs at trash
enclosures and transformers.

9. Dimension all planters to have a minimum 5’ wide inside dimension.

10. Show parkway on fourth street trees spaced 30’ apart. Add where missing. Replace liquidambars
with Brachychiton populneus. Add 5’ stream spray tree bubblers from on-site tree system to parkway

Iltem B - 29 of 30



11.

12.
13.

14.

15.
16.

17.

18.

19.

trees. DG ok in parkway, show 2” of mulch for 10’-12’ tree sections.

Call out type of proposed irrigation system (dripline with tree stream spray bubblers). Use dripline
instead of shrub sprays and rotor for water conservation.

Irrigation plans shall provide separate systems for tree stream spray bubblers with pc screens.
Replace short lived, high maintenance or poor performing plants: Teucrium fruticans is too large,
consider Teucrium chamaedrys in parking lot planters; Change Cotoneaster to Baccharis Pigeon
Point, for better winter appearance. Change Muhlenbergia ‘El Toro’ for a Muhlenbergia ‘Regal mist’
for more color and limit quantity of grasses and higher maintenance.

East of building, remove rock swale change to small groundcovers, small grasses, yarrow, carex,
dietes, small sections of DG at boulders etc., to create the image of a stream. See #1.

Note for agronomical soil testing and include report on landscape construction plans.

Show minimum on-site tree sizes per the Landscape Development standards, see the Landscape
Planning website. 5% 48” box, 10% 36 box, 30% 24” box, 55% 15 gallon.

Show 25% California native trees (Platanus racemosa, Quercus agrifolia, Quercus wislizenii,
Quercus douglasii, Cercis occidentalis, etc.) in appropriate locations.

Landscape construction plans shall meet the requirements of the Landscape Development
Guidelines. See http://www.ontarioca.gov/landscape-planning/standards

After a project’s entitlement approval, the applicant shall pay all applicable fees for landscape plan
check and inspections at a rate established by resolution of the City Council. Fees are:

Plan Check—lessthan 5 acres ........ccccccceveveiie e, $1,301.00

Inspection—Construction (up to 3 inspections per phase) ........ $278.00
Ot e $1,579.00
Inspection—Field — any additional..............ccccceeiiiiiiiiiinceee e $83.00

Landscape construction plans with building permit number for plan check may be emailed to:
landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov

Iltem B - 30 of 30


http://www.ontarioca.gov/landscape-planning/standards
mailto:landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov

Development Advisory Board Decision
September 4, 2019

DECISION NO.: [insert #]
FILE NO.: PDEV19-035
DESCRIPTION: A Development Plan to construct a new 2,999 square-foot fast food restaurant with

drive-thru (Carl's Jr.) on a 0.55-acre building pad within the previously approved New Haven Market Place
commercial shopping center, generally located at the southwest corner of Haven Avenue and Ontario
Ranch Road, within the Retail land use designation of The Avenue Specific Plan (APNs: 0218-392-26);
submitted by Tait and Associates.

Part —BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS

TAIT AND ASSOCIATES (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an application requesting
Development Plan approval, File No. PDEV19-035, as described in the subject of this Decision (herein after
referred to as "Application" or "Project").

(1) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of a 0.55-acre building pad within the previously
approved New Haven Market Place shopping center, generally located at the southwest corner of Haven
Avenue and Ontario Ranch Road. The subject building pad is located on the south side of Ontario Ranch
Road, between New Haven Drive and Haven Avenue, at 3470 East Ontario Ranch Road, and is depicted
in Exhibit A: Project Location Map, attached. Existing land uses, General Plan and zoning designations,
and specific plan land uses on and surrounding the project site are as follows:

I General Plan : . . Specific Plan
Existing Land Use Designation Zoning Designation Ll Ul
, Neighborhood The Avenue Specific | Planning Area 10B -
Site Rough Graded Commercial (0.4 FAR) Plan Retall
. . Medium Density . .
Multi-Family ) . The Avenue Specific | Planning Area 10A —
North . . Residential (11.1-25
Residential Plan LDR/MDR
DU/AC)
. . Low Density - .
South Slg]eg]sl?(;gﬁﬂlly Residential (2.1-5 The Avegll;;Spemﬂc Plannlnlg_jlsé\Rrea 11 -
DU/AC)
. . e Planning Area 9A —
East Rough Graded Mixed Use — NMC Rich Haven Specific Commgercial and
East Plan . ,
Residential
. . Medium Density . .
Multi-Family - . The Avenue Specific Planning Area 11 —
West . . Residential (11.1-25
Residential DU/AC) Plan LMDR

(2) Project Description:

(a) Background — The Avenue Specific Plan and Environmental Impact Report (EIR)
were approved by the City Council on December 19, 2006. The Avenue Specific Plan established the land

Page 1

Iltem C - 1 of 33



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV19-035
September 4, 2019

p—
= F\ I Ls&n.n(rumw(
i Ity i3
o ’d‘ﬁ W0OLE
il ™™ A S
HS :—-"’ THE = ol
: —
El- —
; ' 5]
3 o
3 & | -
=
= \ =
1r\ 11 Ll | ONTARIO RANCH ROAD
LEGEND ET! "5y 8 ]
KA |
] Low DENSITY RESIDENTIAL 1 scHoot -
[/ Low MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL I rarx
- NOTE: The locations of the parks are conceptual and will be
[ MeDiIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL [0 scE EaSEMENT poodidbhiripes iy hiplar i paraas
I RreTALL ] STORM DRAIN EASEMENT

Figure 1: The Avenue Specific Plan Land Use Map

use designations, development standards, and design guidelines for 568 acres, which includes the potential
development of 2,875 dwelling units and approximately 131,000 square feet of commercial space.

On April 8, 2014, the Planning Commission approved Tentative Tract Map 18922 (referred to as an “A”
Map) for Planning Area 10A of The Avenue Specific Plan, which facilitated the backbone infrastructure
improvements and the creation of park/recreational facilities and residential neighborhoods within the
eastern portion of the Specific Plan (see Figure 1: The Avenue Specific Plan Land Use Map, above).

On May 22, 2018, the Planning Commission approved a Conditional Use Permit (File No. PCUP18-015) to
establish three drive-thru facilities in conjunction with a Development Plan (File No. PDEV17-051) to
construct a 94,782 square-foot commercial shopping center (New Haven Marketplace), see Figure 2: New
Haven Marketplace Site Plan, below.

On May 6, 2019, The Development Advisory Board approved a Development Plan (File No. PDEV19-017)
to construct a 3,080 square-foot commercial building (Chase Bank) with drive-thru in the eastern portion of
the New Haven Marketplace.

(b) Site Design/Building Layout — The proposed building and drive-thru will be
accessed from the public street via the shopping center’s circulation system of common two-way drive
aisles, which adjoins the site on the south side. The proposed drive-thru lane entrance is located adjacent
to the southeast corner of the building, and wraps around the east and north sides of the building. The
drive-thru window is located approximately mid-point along the north building elevation, providing stacking
for 7 vehicles (a minimum of 6 stacking spaces is required) and exceeding the minimum stacking
requirement. Off-street parking stalls are proposed along the south and west sides of the building (see
Exhibit B—Site Plan, attached).

(©) Site Access/Circulation — The project site will be accessed by a common right-in
and right-out drive approach located immediately adjacent to the project site, along the shopping center’s
Ontario Ranch Road street frontage. Additional access is available from a full access drive approach
located along the shopping center's New Haven Drive street frontage, and from two drive approaches
(including a right-in/right-out approach and a full access approach with a new traffic signal) located along
the shopping center's Haven Avenue street frontage. Vehicular circulation throughout the previously

Page 2

Iltem C - 2 of 33



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV19-035
September 4, 2019

Project Site

PAD 4
BLITEA
418008k

- |
\ = ¢
g L — = PARCEL B SUTER. E
Sl PARCELT 3 . H sk ) 4
=13208F
b - |
. L
'

[
E
z
| &
‘{ | $
3 _ 11 b
’ . i ;
4 3 = | '__L/l t
) PAACEL 2 P, F " | H K
L3 FARCEL 5 e ey | g
{ : U= g pon }
b ; [ ! X
| R S
i ! Ig b,
I
[ |
G ‘ PARCELY - | &
4 . $HO23 ! |
' MAaORZ | AR
FARCFI 3 1131408/ WAJOR 1 = e .
! | s | I
S /
I ' . | &F o
< 3 ! i <5
£ S . / | l i ,

approved shopping center is provided via a series of two-way drive aisles, which provides access to the
project site.

I
| ED SON AVE
|
|
|

Figure 2: New Haven Marketplace Site Plan

(d) Architecture — The proposed architecture for the development is based upon a
contemporary barn style, which is consistent with the eclectic barn architectural theme for the overall New
Haven Marketplace. Architectural treatments utilized on the proposed building include (see Exhibit C—
Floor Plan and Elevations, attached):

Gable and flat roofs;

Horizontal and vertical siding of varying widths;

Standing metal seam roofs and awnings above windows and doors; and
Clear windows with anodized aluminum framing.

(e) Landscaping — The project provides landscaping around the building and adjacent
to the parking spaces and trash enclosure. A variety of trees will be planted on-site, including ‘Phoenix’
Hybrid Thornless Texas Mesquite and ‘Desert Museum’ Hybrid Palo Verde, which range in size from 24-
inch to 36-inch box. The site will also be planted with an assortment of hedges, ground covers, and
succulents, such as ‘Little Ollie’ Dwarf Olive, Variegated Dianella, ‘Royal Cape’ Hybrid Pumbago, ‘Tiny
Tangerine’ Hybrid Bulbine, and Blue Chalk Sticks (see Exhibit D—Conceptual Landscape Plan, attached).

) Parking — The project is required to provide a minimum of 34 off-street parking
spaces pursuant to the off-street parking standards specified in the City’'s Development Code for fast food
restaurants. The project is credited with a total of 6 spaces, one space for each 24 lineal feet of drive-thru
lane behind the window (138 lineal feet), and an additional 34 parking spaces have been provided on site.
A total of 40 off-street parking spaces have been provided, exceeding the minimum off-street parking
requirements of to the Development Code. In addition, a shared parking analysis was prepared by Linscott,

Page 3

Iltem C - 3 of 33



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV19-035
September 4, 2019

Law, and Greenspan (dated March 30, 2018) for the overall commercial center, which was submitted in
conjunction with File No. PDEV17-051, and subsequently approved by the Planning Commission on May
22, 2018.

Part —RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public
Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and

WHEREAS, the environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with
The Avenue Specific Plan (File No. PSP05-003), for which an Environmental Impact Report (SCH#
2005071109) was certified by the City Council on December 19, 2006 (hereinafter referred to as “Certified
EIR"), and this Application introduces no new significant environmental impacts; and

WHEREAS, the City's "Local Guidelines for the Implementation of the California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental assessment in situations where the
impacts of subsequent projects are adequately analyzed; and

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to CEQA (Public Resources Code Section 21000
et seq.), and an initial study has been prepared to determine possible environmental impacts; and

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development
Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and act on the subject Application; and

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development;
and

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing
Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and
policies of the Housing Element; and

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport,
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is
subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport
Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County,
and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport
activity; and

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such
notifications and procedures have been completed; and

WHEREAS, on September 4, 2019, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the
Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred.

Part Ill—THE DECISION

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory
Board of the City of Ontario, as follows:

Page 4

Iltem C - 4 of 33



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV19-035
September 4, 2019

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the decision-making body for
the Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the previous Certified EIR
and supporting documentation. Based upon the facts and information contained in the previous Certified
EIR and supporting documentation, the DAB finds as follows:

(1) The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with The
Avenue Specific Plan (File No. PSP05-003), for which an Environmental Impact Report (SCH#
2005071109) was certified by the City Council on December 19, 2006.

(2) The previous Certified EIR contains a complete and accurate reporting of the
environmental impacts associated with the Project; and

3) The previous Certified EIR was completed in compliance with CEQA and the Guidelines
promulgated thereunder, and the City of Ontario Local CEQA Guidelines; and

4) The previous Certified EIR reflects the independent judgment of the Planning Commission;
and

(5) The proposed project will introduce no new significant environmental impacts beyond those
previously analyzed in the previous Certified EIR, and all mitigation measures previously adopted with the
Certified EIR, are incorporated herein by this reference.

SECTION 2:  Subsequent or Supplemental Environmental Review Not Required. Based on
the information presented to the DAB, and the specific findings set forth in Section 1, above, the DAB finds
that the preparation of a subsequent or supplemental Certified EIR is not required for the Project, as the
Project:

(1) Does not constitute substantial changes to the Certified EIR that will require major revisions
to the Certified EIR due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase
in the severity of previously identified significant effects; and

(2) Does not constitute substantial changes with respect to the circumstances under which the
Certified EIR was prepared, that will require major revisions to the Certified EIR due to the involvement of
new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of the previously identified
significant effects; and

3) Does not contain new information of substantial importance that was not known and could
not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the Certified EIR was
certified/adopted, that shows any of the following:

(a) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the Certified
EIR; or

(b) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than
shown in the Certified EIR; or

(c) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in
fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the Project, but the City
declined to adopt such measures; or

(d) Mitigation measures or alternatives considerably different from those analyzed in
the Certified EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the environment, but which
the City declined to adopt.

Page 5

Iltem C - 5 of 33



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV19-035
September 4, 2019

SECTION 3:  Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California
Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the decision-making body
for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and
supporting documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project site is not one of
the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) of
the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix.

SECTION 4: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (“*ALUCP")
Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 et seq.) requires
that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use airports in the State; and requires
that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth
in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of Ontario
approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP"),
establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport (“ONT”), which encompasses lands
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and
development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and
overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As the decision-making body for the Project, the
DAB has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting
documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2)
and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP
Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP
Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when implemented in
conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within
the ALUCP.

SECTION 5:  Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the specific findings set forth in Sections 1
through 4, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows:

(1) The proposed development at the proposed location is consistent with the goals,
policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities
components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed Project is located within the Neighborhood Commercial
land use district of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and within Planning Area 10B (Retail) of The Avenue
Specific Plan. The development standards and conditions under which the proposed Project will be
constructed and maintained is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy
Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed Project will
provide a diverse mix of commercial business in close proximity to neighborhoods per policy CE1-7 (Retail
goods and Services). In addition, the proposed Project will include high-quality design that will reflect the
neighborhood’s distinct characteristics per CD2-1 (Quality Architecture), resulting in a vibrant and attractive
community; and

(2) The proposed development is compatible with those on adjoining sites in relation to
location of buildings, with particular attention to privacy, views, any physical constraint identified
on the site and the characteristics of the area in which the site is located. The Project has been
designed consistent with the requirements of the City of Ontario Development Code and Planning Area
10B (Retail) of The Avenue Specific Plan, including standards relative to the particular land use proposed
(commercial), as-well-as building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, number of off-
street parking and loading spaces, on-site and off-site landscaping, and fences, walls and obstructions. The
proposed project is currently a vacant lot and will be constructed to be compatible with the overall center to
be consistent with the Avenue Specific Plan and adjacent surroundings; and

3) The proposed development will complement and/or improve upon the quality of
existing development in the vicinity of the project and the minimum safeguards necessary to protect
the public health, safety and general welfare have been required of the proposed project. The
Development Advisory Board has required certain safeguards, and imposed certain conditions of approval,

Page 6

Iltem C - 6 of 33



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV19-035
September 4, 2019

which have been established to ensure that: [i] the purposes of The Avenue Specific Plan are maintained;
[ii] the project will not endanger the public health, safety or general welfare; [iii] the project will not result in
any significant environmental impacts; [iv] the project will be in harmony with the area in which it is located;
and [v] the project will be in full conformity with the Vision, City Council Priorities and Policy Plan
components of The Ontario Plan, and The Avenue Specific Plan. The proposed project will include a variety
of landscaping vegetation, appropriate massing and architectural features to compliment future adjoining
buildings. Adequate landscape planters will be provided to minimize hardscape features throughout the site
and include ADA walkways that will connect to the adjacent residential neighborhood; and

(4) The proposed development is consistent with the development standards and
design guidelines set forth in the Development Code, or applicable specific plan or planned unit
development. The proposed Project has been reviewed for consistency with the general development
standards and guidelines of The Avenue Specific Plan that are applicable to the proposed Project, including
building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, amount of off-street parking and loading
spaces, parking lot dimensions, design and landscaping, bicycle parking, on-site landscaping, and fences
and walls, as-well-as those development standards and guidelines specifically related to the particular land
use being proposed (commercial). As a result of this review, the Development Advisory Board has
determined that the Project, when implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be
consistent with the development standards and guidelines described in The Avenue Specific Plan.

SECTION 6: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions
set forth in Sections 1 through 5, above, the DAB hereby APPROVES the Application subject to each and
every condition set forth in the Department reports included as Attachment A of this Decision, and
incorporated herein by this reference.

SECTION 7:  Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold
harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding,
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense.

SECTION 8:  Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 4th day of September 2019.

Development Advisory Board Chairman

Page 7

ltem C - 7 of 33



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV19-035
September 4, 2019

Exhibit A—PROJECT LOCATION MAP

Page 8

Item C - 8 of 33



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV19-035
September 4, 2019

Exhibit B—SITE PLAN

LEGEND

AR )
ERLRY
f' 53?;;‘ )

- 3 IR AGCTRRHAR AATHOF TRINT
— o OKCATE PTG SROSERTE

KEY NOTES

] v imscses s,

" CONCTICTE SI2EMALK, FTICHIOE ERANDD PYVETYS CONCTETE
0 MATCH WITH (WAL SHORPING CENTER,

[ ot it 0w e TR ERGALCERRE PER ST
ranaasTE,

[ cocemtes cumaras.

[E] semsasmnmmnievanian,

[E] sagenamm amusenn pongss T wa sy,
[E] seesramare asara,

[ creunnes

PROPOSED CARL'S JA

DRIVE THRU RESTAURANT

DN W Lm0

Main Entrance

%
|
|

| AR EV S

Iltem C - 9 of 33



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV19-035
September 4, 2019

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLAN AND EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
I

,——————————

___________—|
ONONONONONONS]

DINING ROOM
=1

A0 O
o §

— L=
DINING ROOM

@ﬁﬁjmlﬂﬁ-
[

S el
[ —

| I

R |

| e |
\.'

. N
Main Entrance
o
Page 10

Iltem C - 10 of 33



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV19-035
September 4, 2019

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLAN AND EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS Cont'd

-
=
©

W

o

crr
i Fion

SOUTH ELEVATION - 1

] 4 3 3 + 3 T
£ E = E

) 2 i L] 1 ) n

[0 o ] 3 ) o

S

B okreT
o1

T PARAPET
+ 18-

TLOFEEN

810 10T
o CRRPY FRRCE B CANDPY

04T o
% Fru FLoo FICFLOOR

WEST ELEWATION - &

1 ] 2 3 4 4

Lo
15 PR

P21
73 PaeeT

PRLELE
HC AR FASTEA

o
W ER FLLOR

i

o paweE
s

7 parper

+ M0
Wi or

PR Lr
B0 CANDFY

+01
Sl Fion

]
B0 CANORY Fescus

04
P FLOR

®

Lz

+ it
cLoF SCEN"

+ 1o
LR

o4
FRLFLLOA

WOATH ELEVATION - 3

Page 11

Iltem C - 11 of 33



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV19-035
September 4, 2019

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLAN AND EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS Cont'd

m

West Elevation Perpective

L

East Elevation Perspective Southwest Perspective

Page 12

Iltem C - 12 of 33



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV19-035
September 4, 2019

Exhibit D—LANDSCAPE PLAN

|PAVING SCHEDULE

NEW HAVEN
MARKETPLACE
PAD 1

GNTARIO, SAN BERNARDING COUNTY,

““‘\ CALFORNIA
PLANTING SCHEDULE
ugaL | BOTANGAL i Cliont
i I ABBREVATIO ATIED

718 Corporata Canter Driva
Poraons.CA 81768

FROSOP'S FRO PHO
'PHOENIY'

FARKINSCNIA X | PAR DES
'DESERT
MLSFUM

Vo swa

570 Blenneyre Strast
Lagune desch, Californis
o2E81- 2253

Uniter Stater

Landscape Arehiteet

LT OF WERK 10
BACK OF OURE, TYP. \\

AN

™,

v 5:ruB5 e oo
BUILDING OVERHANG POST AND —, / 7 ADVACENT OFF—SITE | T F—Twan o +.549,397. 5474 o
TOATHG PLR ARCIITECTURAL i . TOMSTRUER, RETR : OMELL T OA TS
L A\ eoneee oRanies, e, b VARIECATA'
FLANTING ATEAS WIHIN THE St
'PARCEL BOUND/RY AND
QUTSOE oF LWIT OF WORK
\ARE 10 BE REFLECIED 0 3
THE MASTER CEVELCPHENT —[PONBAGD PO AR
B M DRRNGS, TiP - tZ ‘ AURICULATA
v L ROYAL CAPE'
2 PRO PHO, TV, - X
* SLANTING AREAS WITHH THE —. [FUCRALENTS D CACTIS
2AACEL BOUNDAR” AND RGATE AGA AIE
QUTSIDE OF LMIT OF WORK AMERICANA
ARE TO B REFLECTED O
THE WASTER DEVELOPWENT
SLAN DRAWNGS, 1¥P. " F Stamp
; - ¢ EULEINZ BUL FRU
FRUTESCENS
i vy
TANGERINE"
e e - SENEDD SEh WA
IWIT 2F WIRK - .
\ Revisions

PAATATISS01 NH Mkt Pad 1-CDs\ DrawingsGraphicsiAutoCAD!\Shentsi24x38 ShestslL1.0 LAYOUT PLAN.dwg | CANDERSON |ARCH D {24.00 X 30.00 INCHES) | 8/5/2018

i <5 | 1 ity Submital 1 - ceZar2018
WTHIN TIE PARCEL ', e T City Submittal ¥2 - 0B/02/2019
NDARY AN \ M 3 3
OUTSIDE OF LT . 5 _ M
BE REFLECTED ON et ) b
THF UASTR 7 ; ——
DEVELCPUENT PLAN / — Dats
DRAVNGS, TYP. 08i0212019
TRASH ENCLOSURE | Priats
PER ARCHITECT'S - Design Devalopment
DRAWNGS, TYP. Job Number
ATIsa01
Y BULDING OVRHANG PER
' N ARGHTETURAL CRAWAS, Tr. o
CURB RAP AND TRUNCATED I
, DOMES PER CML ENGINEER, TVP.
= , g P
h \\;wr OF WORK TO BACK OF v
o GRATR. 1
A * CONSTRUCTION JOINT, TYP. | Drawing Title
1 § (ol >
e & LAYOUT PLAN
, PANTING AREAS WITHIN THE
| i/ PARCEL BOUNDATY AND
- OUTSIDE 2F IWIT OF WORK _—
fﬁ ARE TO BE REFLE e
o / TIIC MASTR DCVELOPMERT
3 = r PLAN DRAWINGS, TYF.
-} =
g gt 4
o e
= ‘ = L1.01
B =3 [
Th i i

Page 13

Item C - 13 of 33



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV19-035
September 4, 2019

Exhibit D—LANDSCAPE PLAN Cont’'d

HEDGES

BULBINE FRUTESCENS ‘TINY TAMGERINE® DIAHELLA TASMANICA "VARIEGATA' OLEA EURDFAEA 'LITILE OLUE'
'TINY TAMGERINE' HYBRID BULBIME VARIEGATED DIAMNELLA ‘UTTLE OLLIE' DWARF OLIVE

SEMECID MANDRALSCAE PLUMBAGD AURICULATA ‘ROYAL CAPE
BLUE CHALK STCKS 'ROYAL CAP' HYBRID PLUMBAGO

PROSOFIS PHOEMIX
PHOENIX' HYBRID THORMLESS TEXAS WMEQUI

PARKINSONA % ‘DESERT MUSEUM'
'DESERT MUSEUM' HYERID PALO VERDE

Page 14

Iltem C - 14 of 33



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV19-035
September 4, 2019

Attachment A—Departmental Conditions of Approval

(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page)

Page 15

Iltem C - 15 of 33



City of Ontario P[anning Departmen 4

Planning Department

303 East B Street Land Development Division
Ontario, California 91764 e
Phone: 909.395.2036 Conditions of Approval

Fax: 909.395.2420

Meeting Date: September 4, 2019
File No: PDEV19-035
Related Files: PDEV17-051 and PCUP18-015

Project Description: A Development Plan to construct a new 2,999 square-foot fast food restaurant with
a drive-thru (Carl's Jr.) on the approximately 0.55-acre Pad 1 (Parcel 6 of PM 19978) of the previously-
approved 10.06-acre New Haven Market Place commercial shopping center, located on the southwest
corner of Haven Avenue and Ontario Ranch Road, within the Retail land use designation of The Avenue
Specific Plan (APNs: 0218-392-26); submitted by Tait and Associates, Larry Roberts.

Prepared By: Mai Thao, Land Development Intern
Phone: 909.395.2243 (direct)
Email: MThao@ontarioca.gov

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable to the
above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of approval listed
below:

1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions for New
Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy of the Standard
Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning Department or City Clerk/Records
Management Department.

2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New Development
identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following special conditions of
approval:

2.1 Time Limits.

(a) Development Plan approval shall become null and void 2 years following the
effective date of application approval, unless a building permit is issued and construction is commenced,
and diligently pursued toward completion, or a time extension has been approved by the Planning Director.
This condition does not supersede any individual time limits specified herein, or any other departmental
conditions of approval applicable to the Project, for the performance of specific conditions or improvements.

2.2 General Requirements. The Project shall comply with the following general requirements:

(a) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, including, but
not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape and irrigation, grading,
utility and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with the approved entitlement plans
on file with the Planning Department.

(b) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved plans on file

with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved by the Planning
Department prior to building permit issuance.

Item C - 16 of 33



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval
File No.: PDEV19-035
Page 2 of 4

(c) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be included
in the construction plan set for project, which shall be maintained on site during project construction.

2.3 Landscaping.

(a) The Project shall provide and continuously maintain landscaping and irrigation
systems in compliance with the provisions of Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping).

(b) Comply with the conditions of approval of the Planning Department; Landscape
Planning Division.

(c) Landscaping shall not be installed until the Landscape and Irrigation Construction
Documentation Plans required by Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping) have been
approved by the Landscape Planning Division.

(d) Changes to approved Landscape and lIrrigation Construction Documentation
Plans, which affect the character or quantity of the plant material or irrigation system design, shall be
resubmitted for approval of the revision by the Landscape Planning Division, prior to the commencement
of the changes.

2.4 Parking, Circulation and Access.

(a) The Project shall comply with the applicable off-street parking, loading and lighting
requirements of City of Ontario Development Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and Loading).

(b) Areas provided to meet the City’s parking requirements, including off-street parking
and loading spaces, access drives, and maneuvering areas, shall not be used for the outdoor storage of
materials and equipment, nor shall it be used for any other purpose than parking.

(c) The required number of off-street parking spaces and/or loading spaces shall be
provided at the time of site and/or building occupancy. All parking and loading spaces shall be maintained
in good condition for the duration of the building or use.

(d) Parking spaces specifically designated and conveniently located for use by the
physically disabled shall be provided pursuant to current accessibility regulations contained in State law
(CCR Title 24, Part 2, Chapters 2B71, and CVC Section 22507.8).

(e) Bicycle parking facilities, including bicycle racks, lockers, and other secure
facilities, shall be provided in conjunction with development projects pursuant to current regulations
contained in CALGreen (CAC Title 24, Part 11).

2.5 Site Lighting.

(a) All off-street parking facilities shall be provided with nighttime security lighting
pursuant to Ontario Municipal Code Section 4-11.08 (Special Residential Building Provisions) and Section
4-11.09 (Special Commercial/Industrial Building Provisions), designed to confine emitted light to the parking
areas. Parking facilities shall be lighted from sunset until sunrise, daily, and shall be operated by a photocell
switch.

(b) Unless intended as part of a master lighting program, no operation, activity, or
lighting fixture shall create illumination on any adjacent property.

2.6 Mechanical and Rooftop Equipment.

Item C - 17 of 33



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval
File No.: PDEV19-035
Page 3 of 4

(a) All exterior roof-mounted mechanical, heating and air conditioning equipment, and
all appurtenances thereto, shall be completely screened from public view by parapet walls or roof screens
that are architecturally treated so as to be consistent with the building architecture.

(b) All ground-mounted utility equipment and structures, such as tanks, transformers,
HVAC equipment, and backflow prevention devices, shall be located out of view from a public street, or
adequately screened through the use of landscaping and/or decorative low garden walls.

27 Security Standards. The Project shall comply with all applicable requirements of Ontario
Municipal Code Title 4 (Public Safety), Chapter 11 (Security Standards for Buildings).

2.8 Signs. All Project signage shall comply with the requirements of Ontario Development
Code Division 8.1 (Sign Regulations). The applicant shall file a sign plan application to be reviewed and
approved by the Planning Department prior to any sign installation.

29 Sound Attenuation. The Project shall be constructed and operated in a manner so as not
to exceed the maximum interior and exterior noised levels set forth in Ontario Municipal Code Title 5 (Public
Welfare, Morals, and Conduct), Chapter 29 (Noise).

2.10 Environmental Review.

(a) The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction
with File No. PSP05-003, The Avenue Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2005071109) that was certified by the City
Council on December 19, 2006. This application introduces no new significant environmental impacts. The
City's "Guidelines for the Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for
the use of a single environmental assessment in situations where the impacts of subsequent projects are
adequately analyzed. The previously adopted mitigation measures shall be a condition of project approval,
and are incorporated herein by this reference.

(b) If human remains are found during project grading/excavation/construction
activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required investigation is completed by the County Coroner
and Native American consultation has been completed (if deemed applicable).

(c) If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the resource is
determined. If determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a qualified archeologist or
paleontologist consistent with current standards and guidelines, or other appropriate measures
implemented.

2.11  Indemnification. The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, the City
of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City of
Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul any approval of the City of
Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other authorized board or officer. The City of
Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario
shall cooperate fully in the defense.

212  Additional Fees.

(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of Determination
(NOD) filing fee shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be paid by check, made
payable to the "Clerk of the Board of Supervisors”, which shall be forwarded to the San Bernardino County
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, along with all applicable environmental forms/notices, pursuant to the
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Failure to provide said fee within the time
specified may result in a 180-day extension to the statute of limitations for the filing of a CEQA lawsuit.

Item C - 18 of 33



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval
File No.: PDEV19-035
Page 4 of 4

(b) After the Project's entitlement approval, and prior to issuance of final building
permits, the Planning Department’'s Plan Check and Inspection fees shall be paid at the rate established
by resolution of the City Council.

2.13  Additional Reguirements.

(a) Final architecture for the proposed project shall be reviewed and approved by the
Planning Department prior to the issuance of building permits for consistency with approved entitled plans.

(b) The trash enclosure shall be designed to be consistent with the building
architecture.

(c) Enhanced pavement and pedestrian crosswalks shall be provided and shall match
the overall center’s colors, materials, and design.

(d) All applicable conditions of approval of The Avenue Specific Plan shall apply to
this project.

(e) All applicable conditions of approval of the “A” Map TT 18922 (File No. PMTT13-
010) shall apply to this development.

(f) All applicable conditions of approval of the New Haven Marketplace Development

Plan and Conditional Use Permit (File Nos. PDEV17-050 and PCUP18-015) shall apply to this
development.

Item C - 19 of 33



CITY OF ONTARIO
MEMORANDUM

TO: Scott Murphy, Development Director
Cathy Wahlstrom, Planning Director (Copy of memo only)
Diane Ayala, Advanced Planning Division (Copy of memo only)
Charity Hernandez, Economic Development
Kevin Shear, Building Official
Khoi Do, City Engineer
Carolyn Bell, Landscape Planning Division
Ahmed Aly, Municipal Utility Company
Doug Sorel, Police Department
Paul Ehrman, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal
Jay Bautista, T. E., Traffic/Transportation Manager
Lorena Mejia, Airport Planning
Eric Woosley, Engineering/NPDES
Joe De Sousa, Code Enforcement (Copy of memo only)
Jimmy Chang , IT Department

FROM: Henry Noh, Senior Planner
DATE: June 26, 2019
SUBJECT: FILE #: PDEV19-035 Finance Acct#:

The following project has been submitted for review. Please send one (1) copy and email one (1) copy of
your DAB report to the Planning Department by .

Note: mw DAB action is required

D Both DAB and Planning Commission actions are required
D Only Planning Commission action is required
D DAB, Planning Commission and City Council actions are required

[] only Zoning Administrator action is required

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: A Development Plan to construct a new 2,899SF Carl's Jr. restaurant building
with drive thru on pad 1 of the 10.08 acre New Haven Market Place, located on the southwest comer of
Haven Avenue and Ontario Ranch Road, within the Retail designation of The Avenue Specific Plan zoning
district. APNs: 0218-392-26. Parcel 6 of Tentative Map No. 19978
\E The plan does adequately address the departmental concerns at this time.
[] No comments
&,Repon attached (1 copy and email 1 copy)

D Standard Conditions of Approval apply

D The plan does not adequately address the departmental concerns.

The conditions contained in the attached report must be met prior to scheduling for
Development Advisory Board.

g DS m Qﬂg\ |0 decopm Plocny T1215

X )
Depariment (_~ Signature (/ ; Title Date

Item C - 20 of 33



CITY OF ONTARIO CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

|
LANDSCAPE PLANNING DIVISION A .,-«pig" -
303 East “B” Street, Ontario, CA 91764 e 07/29/2019
Jamie Richardson, Sr. Landscape Planner Date
Reviewer's Name: Phone:
Jamie Richardson, Sr. Landscape Planner (909) 395-2615
D.A.B. File No.: Case Planner:
PDEV19-035 Henry Noh

Project Name and Location:
New Haven Marketplace Pad 1

SW corner of Ontarioc Ranch Road and Haven Ave.
Applicant/Representative:

Tait & Associates
701 N. Parkcenter Dr.
Santa Ana, CA 92705

X A Preliminary Landscape Plan (dated 06/26/2019) meets the Standard Conditions for New
Development and has been approved with the consideration that the following conditions
below be met upon submittal of the landscape construction documents.

[J | A Preliminary Landscape Plan (dated) has not been approved.
Corrections noted below are required prior to Preliminary Landscape Plan approval.

A RESPONSE SHEET IS REQUIRED WITH RESUBMITTAL OR PLANS WILL BE RETURNED AS INCOMPLETE.
Landscape construction plans with plan check number may be emailed to: landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov
DIGITAL SUBMITTALS MUST BE 10MB OR LESS.

Civil/ Site Plans

1. Note for compaction to be no greater than 85% at landscape areas. All finished grades at 1 %" below
finished surfaces. Slopes to be maximum 3:1.

2. Dimension, show and call out for step-outs at parking spaces adjacent to planters: a 12” wide
monolithic concrete curb, DG paving or pavers with edging.

3. On the southwest planter/sidewalk that generally runs north-south please show the pedestrian path
at 4’ and the landscape planter at 5.

4. Add Note to Grading and Landscape Plans: Landscape areas where compaction has occurred due
to grading activities and where trees or storm water infiltration areas are located shall be loosened
by soil fracturing. For trees a 12'x12’x18” deep area; for storm water infiltration the entire area shall
be loosened. Add the following information on the plans: The back hoe method of soil fracturing shall
be used to break up compaction. A 4” layer of Compost is spread over the soil surface before
fracturing is begun. The back hoe shall dig into the soil lifting and then drop the soil immediately
back into the hole. The bucket then moves to the adjacent soil and repeats. The Compost falls into
the spaces between the soil chunks created. Fracturing shall leave the soil surface quite rough with
large soil clods. These must be broken by additional tilling. Tilling in more Compost to the surface
after fracturing per the soil report will help create an A horizon soil. Imported or reused Topsoil can
be added on top of the fractured soil as needed for grading. The Landscape Architect shall be
present during this process and provide certification of the soil fracturing. For additional reference
see Urban Tree Foundation — Planting Soil Specifications.

Landscape Plans

5. Note on grading plans: for compaction to be no greater than 85% at landscape areas. All finished

Item C - 21 of 33



10.

11
12.

13.

grades at 1 2" below finished surfaces. Slopes to be maximum 3:1.

Dimension all planters to have a minimum 5’ wide inside dimension with 6” curbs and 12” wide curbs
where parking spaces are adjacent to planters.

Show appropriate parking lot shade trees with min 30’ canopy at maturity; change Prosopis to
Koelrueteria paniculata.

Change Parkinsonia ‘Desert Museum’ to a larger, broad canopy shade tree such as Quercus
agrifolia. Show proposed trees at entry off of Ontario Ranch Road.

Call out type of proposed irrigation system (dripline and pop up stream spray tree bubblers with
PCS). Include preliminary MAWA calcs. Proposed water use must meet water budget.

Show landscape hydrozones on plan or legend with plants per WUCOLS. Moderate water plants
may be used for part shade north and east facing locations, low water plants everywhere else.
Overhead spray systems shall be designed for plant material less than the height of the spray head.
Show 8’ diameter of muich only at new trees, 12’ min. at existing trees. Detail irrigation dripline
outside of mulched root zone.

After a project’s entitlement approval, the applicant shall pay all applicable fees for landscape plan
check and inspections at a rate established by resolution of the City Council. Fees are:

Plan Check—less than 5 acres...............cccooveovvoeeceeeeiein $1,301.00
Inspection—Construction (up to 3 inspections per phase)......... $278.00
TORL sswivsainininms smeir sris i b amn e s byt ramressis $1,579.00
Inspection—Field — any additional..............cc.cccoovevevevioereee, $83.00

Landscape construction plans with building permit number for plan check may be emailed to:
landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov

Item C - 22 of 33



CITY OF ONTARIO
MEMORANDUM

TO: PLANNING DEPARTMENT, Henry Noh
FROM: BUILDING DEPARTMENT, Kevin Shear
DATE: July 1, 2019
SUBJECT: PDEV19-035
X The plan does adequately address the departmental concerns at this time.
O No comments
X Report below.

Conditions of Approval

1. The Site address for this project will be 3440 Ontario Ranch Road
2. Standard conditions of approval apply.

KS:Ir

Item C - 23 of 33



CITY OF ONTARIO
MEMORANDUM

TO: Henry Noh, Senior Planner
FROM: Officer Emily Hernandez, Police Department
DATE: July 15, 2019

SUBJECT: PDEV19-035- A DEVELOPMENT PLAN TO CONSTRUCT A CARL’S JR
RESTAURANT WITH DRIVE-THRU AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER
OF HAVEN AVENUE AND ONTARIO RANCH ROAD.

The “Standard Conditions of Approval” contained in Resolution No. 2017-027 apply. The
applicant shall read and be thoroughly familiar with these conditions, including but not limited
to, the requirements listed below.

* Required lighting for all walkways, driveways, doorways, parking areas, and other areas
used by the public shall be provided and operate on photosensor. Photometrics shall be
provided to the Police Department. Photometrics shall include the types of fixtures
proposed and demonstrate that such fixtures meet the vandal-resistant requirement.
Planned landscaping shall not obstruct lighting.

* Rooftop addresses shall be installed on the building as stated in the Standard Conditions.
The numbers shall be at a minimum 3 feet tall and 1 foot wide, in reflective white paint
on a flat black background, and oriented with the bottom of the numbers towards the
addressed street.

o The Applicant shall comply with all construction site security requirements as stated in
the Standard Conditions.

In addition, the Ontario Police Department places the following conditions on the project:

e The Applicant shall install a video surveillance system on the site. Cameras shall cover at
a minimum all entry doors, all cash registers, and at least one camera shall capture any
vehicle utilizing the drive-thru. Cameras shall be positioned so as to maximize the
coverage of patrons and vehicles in these areas. Cameras shall record at least 15 frames
per second and at a minimum of 640x480 lines of resolution. Recordings shall be stored
for a minimum of 30 days and made available upon request to any member of the Ontario
Police Department.

* The applicant will be responsible for keeping the grounds of the business clean from
debris and litter.

o Graffiti abatement by the business owner/licensee, or management shall be immediate
and on-going on the premises, but in no event shall graffiti be allowed unabated on the

Item C - 24 of 33



premises for more than 72 hours. Abatement shall take the form of removal, or shall be
covered/painted over with a color reasonably matching the color of the existing building,
structure, or other surface being abated. Additionally, the business owner/licensee, or
management shall notify the City within 24 hours at (909) 395-2626 (graffiti hotline) of
any graffiti elsewhere on the property not under the business owner/licensee’s or
management control so that it may be abated by the property owner and/or the City’s
graffiti team.

The Applicant is invited to contact Officer Emily Hernandez at (909) 408-1755 with any
questions or concerns regarding these conditions.

Item C - 25 of 33



Q N y R 1 QO
CITY OF ONTARIO nMUN.C.pM
MEMORANDUM * MUTILITIES
— COMPANY
DATE: August 7, 2019
TO: Naiim Khoury, Engineering Department
CC: Henry Noh, Planning Department
FROM: Peter Tran, Utilities Engineering Department
SUBJECT: DAB #1 — Conditions of Approval (COA) — Utilities Comments (#6133)

PDEV19-035 - DPR1 - Carl's Jr — SWC Haven & Ontario Ranch Road — New Haven
PROJECT NO.: Marketplace

BRIEF DESCRIPTION

PDEV19-035, 2,999 SF Carl's Jr restaurant building with drive thru on pad 1 of the 10.06 AC New Haven Market Place,
SEC of Haven Ave & Ontario Ranch Rd, The Avenue SP. Relate files: PMTT17-010 PM-19978 : PDEV17-051.

THIS SUBMITTAL IS COMPLETE AND RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL.

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL.: The Ontario Municipal Utilities Company (OMUC) recommends this application for
approval subject to the conditions outlined below and compliance with the City’s Design Development Guidelines,
Specifications Design Criteria, and City Standards.

General Conditions:

1. Standard Conditions of Approval: Project shall comply with the requirements as set forth in the Amendment to the Standard
Conditions of Approval for New Development Projects adopted by the City Council (Resolution No. 2017-027) on April 18,
2017, as well as project-specific conditions/requirements as outlined below:

2. Inherited Requirements and Conditions of Approval: This project is subject to all the Requirements and Conditions of
Approval from PSP05-003 The Avenue Specific Plan, as amended and PMTT14-014 (TM-18992), TM-20061 (TM-18922-4)

and TM-20081 (TM-18922-4).
Sanitary Sewer System:

3. Wastewater Discharge Permit: Prior to approval of the Precise Grading Plan, the Occupant of the building shall apply
for a Wastewater Discharge Permit for their Establishment, and shall comply with all the requirements of their
Wastewater Discharge Permit. Requirements of Wastewater Discharge Permit may include, but are not limited to:
possibly installing a monitoring manhole, clarifier, or other sewer pretreatment equipment.

Recycled Water Conditions:

4. City Ordinance 2689: This development shall comply with City Ordinance 2689 and make use of recycled water for all
approved uses, including but not limited to landscaping irrigation for HOA maintained areas and parks. Appropriately sized
public and private mains shall be installed throughout the Tract to meet this requirement, as approved by the City.

5. RW Program Reguirements: In order to receive RW service, the applicant shall comply with each of the following:

a. Prior to Precise Grading Plan Approval and Building Permits Issuance:

i. Provide two hard copies and the digital files (in PDF and AutoCAD format) for both on-site and off-site utility
plans, including landscape and irrigation improvements.

ii. Submit an Engineering Report (ER) to the City detailing recycled water usage for review and approval by the
City and the State. The review process for the ER is typically 3 months. City will coordinate the State’s approval
of the ER.

b. Prior to Occupancy Release/Finalizing:

i. Pass start-up and cross-connection test successfully.
ii. Provide evidence demonstrating the training of on-site supervisor or designee as determined in the ER.

C:\Users\20165\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\WMBD1FRE\PDEV19-035 - DAB1 COA - Carls Jr

SWC Haven ORR - Utilities Comments {#6133).docx
Item C - 26 of 33



CITY OF ONTARIO
MEMORANDUM

TO: Henry Noh, Senior Planner
Planning Department

FROM: Paul Ehrman, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal
Fire Department

DATE: July 2, 2019

SUBJECT: PDEV19-035 - A Development Plan to construct a new 2,999SF Carl's Jr.
restaurant building with drive thru on pad 1 of the 10.06 acre New Haven
Market Place, located on the southwest corner of Haven Avenue and
Ontario Ranch Road, within the Retail designation of The Avenue Specific
Plan zoning district. APNs: 0218-392-26. Parcel 6 of Tentative Map No.
19978.

The plan does adequately address Fire Department requirements at this time.
Standard Conditions of Approval apply, as stated below.

SITE AND BUILDING FEATURES:

A. 2016 CBC Type of Construction: Type V
B. Type of Roof Materials: Ordinary

C. Ground Floor Area(s): 2,999 Sq. Ft.

D

. Number of Stories: 1

t

Total Square Footage: 2,999 Sq. Ft.

F. 2016 CBC Occupancy Classification(s): A-2

Item C - 27 of 33



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL:

1.0 GENERAL

& 1.1 The following are the Ontario Fire Department (“Fire Department™) requirements for this
development project, based on the current edition of the California Fire Code (CFC), and the
current versions of the Fire Prevention Standards (“Standards.”) It is recommended that the
applicant or developer transmit a copy of these requirements to the on-site contractor(s) and
that all questions or concerns be directed to the Bureau of Fire Prevention, at (909) 395-2029.
For copies of Ontario Fire Department Standards please access the City of Ontario web site at
www.ontarioca.gov, click on “Fire Department” and then on “Standards and Forms.”

X 1.2 These Fire Department conditions of approval are to be included on any and all construction
drawings.

2.0 FIRE DEPARTMENT ACCESS

& 2.1 Fire Department vehicle access roadways shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all portions of
the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved. Roadways
shall be paved with an all-weather surface and shall be a minimum of twenty-four (24) ft. wide.
See Standard #B-004.

& 2.2 In order to allow for adequate turning radius for emergency fire apparatus, all turns shall be
designed to meet the minimum twenty five feet (25°) inside and forty-five feet (45°) outside
turning radius per Standard #B-005.

D) 2.3 Fire Department access roadways that exceed one hundred and fifty feet (150°) in length shall
have an approved turn-around per Standard #B-002.

X] 2.4 Access drive aisles which cross property lines shall be provided with CC&Rs, access
easements, or reciprocating agreements, and shall be recorded on the titles of affected
properties, and copies of same shall be provided at the time of building plan check.

& 2.5 "No Parking-Fire Lane" signs and /or red painted curbs with lettering are required to be instal-
led in interior access roadways, in locations where vehicle parking would obstruct the
minimum clear width requirement. Installation shall be per Standard #B-001.

DJ 2.7 Any time PRIOR to on-site combustible construction and/or storage, a minimum twenty-four
(24) ft. wide circulating all weather access roads shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all
portions of the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved by
fire department and other emergency services..

3.0 WATER SUPPLY
& 3.1 The required fire flow per Fire Department standards, based on the 2016 California Fire Code,

Appendix B, is 1500 gallons per minute (g.p.m.) for 2 hours at a minimum of 20 pounds per
square inch (p.s.i.) residual operating pressure.

Rer¥C - 28 of 33



X] 3.2 Off-site (public) fire hydrants are required to be installed on all frontage streets, at a minimum
spacing of three hundred foot (300°) apart, per Engineering Department specifications.

X 3.4 The water supply, including water mains and fire hydrants, shall be tested and approved by the
Engineering Department and Fire Department prior to combustible construction to assure
availability and reliability for firefighting purposes.

4.0 FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS

X 4.2 Underground fire mains which cross property lines shall be provided with CC & R, easements,
or reciprocating agreements, and shall be recorded on the titles of affected properties, and
copies of same shall be provided at the time of fire department plan check. The shared use of
private fire mains or fire pumps is allowable only between immediately adjacent properties
and shall not cross any public street.

X 4.4 Wood frame buildings that are to be sprinkled shall have these systems in service (but not
necessarily finaled) before the building is enclosed.

(X1 4.5 Fire Department Connections (FDC) shall be located on the address side of the building within
one hundred fifty feet (150°) of a public fire hydrant on the same side of the street. Provide
identification for all fire sprinkler control valves and fire department connections per Standard
#D-007. Raised curbs adjacent to Fire Department connection(s) shall be painted red, five feet
either side, per City standards.

D] 4.7 Portable fire extinguishers are required to be installed prior to occupancy per Standard #C-001.
Please contact the Fire Prevention Bureau to determine the exact number, type and placement
required.

] 4.8 A fixed fire extinguishing system is required for the protection of hood, duct, plenum and
cooking surfaces. This system must comply with National Fire Protection Association (NF PA)
Standards 17A and 96. An application with detailed plans shall be submitted, and a
construction permit shall be issued by the Fire Department, prior to any work being done.

5.0 BUILDING CONSTRUCTION FEATURES

& 5.1 The developer/general contractor is to be responsible for reasonable periodic cleanup of the
development during construction to avoid hazardous accumulations of combustible trash and
debris both on and off the site.

IJ 5.2 Approved numbers or addresses shall be placed on all new and existing buildings in such a
position as to be plainly visible and legible from the street or road fronting the property. Multi-
tenant or building projects shall have addresses and/or suite numbers provided on the rear of
the building. Address numbers shall contrast with their background. See Section 9-1 6.06 of
the Ontario Municipal Code and Standards #H-003 and #H-002.

Hem4C - 29 of 33



D] 5.6 Knox ® brand key-box(es) shall be installed in location(s) acceptable to the Fire Department.
All Knox boxes shall be monitored for tamper by the building fire alarm system. See Standard
#H-001 for specific requirements.

] 5.7 Placards shall be installed in acceptable locations on buildings that store, use or handle
hazardous materials in excess of the quantities specified in the CFC. Placards shall meet the
requirements of National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Standard 704.

6.0 OTHER SPECIAL USES

6.1 The storage, use, dispensing, or handling of any hazardous materials shall be approved by the
Fire Department, and adequate fire protection features shall be required. If hazardous materials
are proposed, a Fire Department Hazardous Materials Information Packet, including
Disclosure Form and Information Worksheet, shall be completed and submitted with Material
Safety Data Sheets to the Fire Department along with building construction plans.

fter¥C - 30 of 33



ad. CITY OF ONTARIO
ONTARIO MEMORANDUM

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

(Enginecring Services Division [Land Development Section and Environmental Section], Traffic & Transportation Division,
Ontario Municipal Utilities Company and Information Technology & Management Services Department Conditions
incorporated)

DAB MEETING DATE:  September 4, 2019

PROJECT: PDEV19-035, a Development Plan to construct a new 2,999 square feet
Carl’s Jr. Restaurant building with drive-thru in the New Haven Market
Place located within the retail land use district of The Avenue Specific

Plan
APN: 0218-392-26
LOCATION: 3440 East Ontario Ranch Road
PROJECT ENGINEER:  Naiim Khoury, Associate Engineer ,V/é (909) 395-2152
PROJECT PLANNER: Henry Noh, Senior Planner (909) 395-2431

The following items are the Conditions of Approval for the subject project:

1. Project shall comply with the requirements as set forth in the Amendment to the Standard
Conditions of Approval for New Development Projects adopted by the City Council
(Resolution No. 2017-027).

2. The applicant/developer shall responsible for completing all the Conditions of Approval for
TM18922-4, PM19978 and PDEV17-051, and the Development Agreement by and between
City of Ontario and BrookCAl Ontario, LLC.

Prior to Precise Grading Plan Approval and Building Permits Issuance:

3. This development shall comply with City Ordinance 2689 and make use of recycled water for
all approved uses, including but not limited to landscaping irrigation for POA maintained areas.
Appropriately sized private mains shall be installed throughout the site to meet this
requirement, as approved by the City.

4. In order to receive recycled water (RW) service, the applicant shall comply with each of the
following:

lof 2

Item C - 31 of 33



Project File No. PDEV19-035
Project Engineer: Naiim Khouny
DAB Date: 09/042019

a) Provide two hard copies and the digital files (in PDF and AutoCAD format) for both
on-site and off-site utility plans, including landscape and irrigation improvements.

b) Submit an Engineering Report (ER) to the City detailing recycled water usage for
review and approval by the City and the State. The review process for the ER is
typically 3 months. City will coordinate the State’s approval of the ER.

5. For Sanitary Sewer System - Wastewater Discharge Permit: Prior to approval of the Precise
Grading Plan, the Occupant of the building shall apply for a Wastewater Discharge Permit for
their Establishment, and shall comply with all the requirements of their Wastewater Discharge
Permit. Requirements of Wastewater Discharge Permit may include, but are not limited to-
possibly installing a monitoring manhole, clarifier, or other sewer pretreatment equipment.

Prior to Occupancy Release:

6. Procure from the OMUC a copy of the letter of confirmation from the California Department
of Public Health (CDPH) that the Engineering Report (ER) has been reviewed and the subject
site is approved for the use of recycled water.

7. Obtain clearance from the OMUC confirming completion of recycled water improvements and
passing of start-up and cross connection tests successfully.

8. Provide evidence demonstrating the training of on-site supervisor or designee as determined in
the ER.

9. Confirm payment of all Development Impact Fees (DIF) to the Building Department.

;%Ai M /1%

an Lirley, P.E. Date Raymond I}ee, P.E. Date
Principal Engineer Assistant City Engineer

20f 2

Item C - 32 of 33



AIRPORT LAND Use CoMPATIBILITY PLANNING NTARI&=

AIRPORT PLANNING

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION REPORT

Project File No.: PDEV19-035 Reviewed By:
Address: Southwest corner of Haven Ave & Ontario Ranch Road Lorena Mejia
APN: 0218-392-26 Chnat I

Existing Land  Vacant 909-395-2276

Use:
Project Planner:
Proposed Land Development Plan to construct a 3,000 SF fast food Restaurant Henry Noh
Use:
. Date: 7/25/19
Site Acreage:  10.06 acres Proposed Structure Height: 28 FT :
- 2019-047
ONT-IAC Project Review: n/a CD No.:
Airport Influence Area: ONT PALU No.:

The project is impacted by the following ONT ALUCP Compatibility Zones:

Safety Noise Impact Airspace Protection Overflight Notification
() Zone1 ( ) 75+ dB CNEL High Terrain Zone Avigation Easement
O ¢ Dedication
O Zone 1A O 70 -75 dB CNEL Iz FAA Notification Surfaces Recorded Overflight
Notificati
O Zone 2 O 65 - 70 dB CNEL Airspace Obstruction i
Surfaces Real Estate Transaction
O Zone 3 O 60 - 65 dB CNEL _ 1 | Disclosure
Airspace Avigation
O Zone 4 Easement Area
Allowabl
O Zone 5 HL?;T\?: ® 200FT+

The project is impacted by the following Chino ALUCP Safety Zones:

O Zone 1 O Zone 2 O Zone 3 O Zone 4 O Zone 5 O Zone 6

Allowable Height:

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION

This proposed Project is: DExempt fromthe ALUCP @ Consistent D Consistent with Conditions I:l Inconsistent

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP)

for ONT.

O Sy

Page 1 Form Updated: March 3, 2016

Airport Planner Signature:

Item C - 33 of 33



Development Advisory Board Decision
September 4, 2019

DECISION NO.: [insert #]
FILE NO.: PMTT18-007 (TT 20198)
DESCRIPTION: A Tentative Tract Map to subdivide 9.57 acres of land into 18 single-family lots

located at 1103 South Benson Avenue, within the AR-2 (Residential-Agriculture - 0 to 2.0 DU/Acre) zoning
district; (APNs: 1011-431-01 and 1011-521-06) submitted by TK Management Services, LLC. Planning
Commission action is required.

Part —BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS

TK MANAMENT SERVICES, LLC., (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an application
requesting Tentative Tract Map approval, File No. PMTT18-007 (TT 20198), as described in the subject of
this Decision (herein after referred to as "Application" or "Project").

(8] Project Setting: The project site is comprised of 9.57 acres of land generally located on
the east side of Benson Avenue, at the teminous of Philadelphia Street, on property addressed as 1103
South Benson Avenue, and is depicted in Exhibit A: Aerial Photograph, attached. Existing land uses,
General Plan and zoning designations, and specific plan land uses on and surrounding the project site are
as follows:

- General Plan . . . Specific Plan
Existing Land Use Designation Zoning Designation Land Use
Single Family Home AR-2 (Residential-
Site: 9 y RR (Rural Residential) | Agriculture - 0 to 2.0 n/a
and Nursery
DU/Acre)
AR-2 (Residential-
North: Single Family Home | RR (Rural Residential) | Agriculture - 0 to 2.0 n/a
DU/Acre)
AR-2 (Residential-
South: | Single Family Home |RR (Rural Residential) | Agriculture - 0 to 2.0 n/a
DU/Acre)
Single Family Home AR-2 (Residential-
East: Development and RR (Rural Residential) | Agriculture - 0 to 2.0 n/a
Vacant Land DU/Acre)
. Single Family Homes . . . .
West: (City of Chino) City of Chino City of Chino n/a

(2)

Project Description: The Applicant is requesting approval of a Tentative Tract Map to

subdivide the project site into 18 traditional single-family lots situated around two gated private cul-de-sac
streets (West Ralston Street and West Clair Privado), which incorporates a 10-foot wide equestrian trail
along each project street frontage. The proposed subdivision will facilitate the future development of a
single-family dwelling on each lot.

Page 1

ltem D - 1 of 39



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PMTT18-007 (TT 20198)
September 4, 2019

The development standards of the AR-2 zoning district requires a minimum lot area of 18,000 square feet.
Additionally, minimum lot dimensions of 135 feet in depth, and 100 feet in width for interior lots and 120 feet
for corner lots, are required. The subdivision is proposing lots ranging from 18,921 square feet to 26,155
square feet in area, exceeding the minimum lot area requirement. Furthermore, the project's minimum lot
width has been exceeded and the minimum lot depth was achieved by extending each lot’s side lot line to
the centerline of each proposed private street, which will be established as a reciprocal access easement
through each lot.

€)) Site Access/Circulation — The applicant is proposing to develop the project as a
gated community, with a separate entry gate on at each private cul-de-sac street. A vehicle turn-around
area has been provided in front of each gate to accommodate vehicles that enter the project in error or are
denied entry beyond the gates. The south cul-de-sac will have a pedestrian connection (walkway) to the
existing neighborhood to the east. In addition, horse trail will be provided along the front parkways and will
be open to the public to utilize.

Access to each lot will be provided by a standard 12-foot wide driveway located along the private street
frontages. No direct vehicle access will be provided to Benson Avenue.

(b) Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs) — CC&Rs are required for the
proposed subdivision as a condition of project approval. The CC&Rs will be required to be submitted,
reviewed and approved by the City, and will be recorded with the final map to ensure ongoing maintenance
of the private streets, equestrian trails, common landscape areas, and common drainage/easement areas.
Additionally, a condition of approval has been imposed on the project which requires a Development Plan
to be reviewed and approved for the future homes, prior to any building permits being issued for their
construction.

(c) Community Outreach — The project site is surrounded by single-family residential
properties. To ensure community input from the surrounding residents, a “Notice of Proposed Project” was
mailed to all property owners within 300-feet of the project site on August 13, 2019. The intent of the
notification was to inform the surrounding property owners of the proposed project and to address any
guestions or concerns they may have regarding the project. As of the preparation of this Decision, no
guestions or comments regarding the project have been received by staff.

(d) Utilities (drainage, sewer) — Public utilities (water and sewer) are available to
serve the project. Furthermore, the Applicant has submitted a Preliminary Water Quality Management Plan
(PWQMP), which establishes the project's compliance with storm water discharge/water quality
requirements. The PWQMP includes site design measures that capture runoff and pollutant transport by
minimizing impervious surfaces and maximizes low impact development (LID) best management practices
(BMPs), such as retention and infiltration, biotreatment, and evapotranspiration. The PWQMP proposes the
use of dry wells and pipe storage areas within the proposed parkways along each private street. Final
approval of the PWQMP will be determined during the plan check process.

Part -RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public
Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to a categorical exemption (listed in CEQA
Guidelines Article 19, commencing with Section 15300) and the application of that categorical exemption
is not barred by one of the exceptions set forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and

Page 2

ltem D - 2 of 39



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PMTT18-007 (TT 20198)
September 4, 2019

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development
Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and make recommendation to the
Planning Commission on the subject Application; and

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development;
and

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing
Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and
policies of the Housing Element; and

WHEREAS, the proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario
International Airport and the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting
documentation have been reviewed against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including noise, safety,
airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport activity, and as a result of the review,
the proposed project has been determined to be consistent with the ALUCP policies and criteria; and

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such
notifications and procedures have been completed; and

WHEREAS, on September 4, 2019, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the
Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred.

Part Il—THE DECISION

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory
Board of the City of Ontario, as follows:

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the recommending body for the
Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the administrative record for
the Project. Based upon the facts and information contained in the administrative record, including all written
and oral evidence presented to the DAB, the DAB finds as follows:

(1) The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill Development) of the CEQA Guidelines,
and is consistent with the following conditions:

= The Project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and all applicable general
plan policies, as well as the applicable zoning designation and regulations

= The proposed development occurs within city limits, on a project site of no more than five acres,
and is substantially surrounded by urban uses

= The project site has no value as habitat for endangered, rare, or threatened species

= Approval of the Project will not result in any significant effects relating to traffic, noise, air quality,
or water quality

= The Project site can be adequately served by all required utilities and public services

Page 3

ltem D - 3 of 39



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PMTT18-007 (TT 20198)
September 4, 2019

(2) The application of the categorical exemption is not barred by one of the exceptions set
forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and

3 The determination of CEQA exemption reflects the independent judgement of the DAB.

SECTION 2:  Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California
Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the recommending body
for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and
supporting documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project site is not one of
the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) of
the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix.

SECTION 3:  Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (“*ALUCP”)
Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 et seq.) requires
that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use airports in the State; and requires
that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth
in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of Ontario
approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP"),
establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport (“ONT”), which encompasses lands
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and
development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and
overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As the recommending body for the Project, the DAB
has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting
documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2)
and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP
Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP
Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when implemented in
conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within
the ALUCP.

SECTION 4: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the specific findings set forth in Sections 1
through 4, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows:

(1) The proposed Tentative Tract Map is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and
exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The
Ontario Plan, and applicable area and specific plans, and planned unit developments. The proposed
Tentative Tract Map is located within the RR (Rural Residential) land use district of the Policy Plan Land
Use Map, and the AR-2 (Residential-Agriculture - 0 to 2.0 DU/Acre) zoning district. The proposed
subdivision is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General
Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, as the project will contribute to providing
“a spectrum of housing types and price ranges that match the jobs in the City, and that make it possible for
people to live and work in Ontario and maintain a quality of life” (Goal LU1). Furthermore, the project will
promote the City’s policy to “incorporate a variety of land uses and building types that contribute to a
complete community where residents at all stages of life, employers, workers, and visitors, have a wide
spectrum of choices of where they can live, work, shop, and recreate within Ontario” (Policy LU1-6
Complete Community); and

(2) The design or improvement of the proposed Tentative Tract Map is consistent with
the goals, policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council
Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, and applicable specific plans and planned unit
developments. The proposed Tentative Tract/Parcel Map is located within the RR (Rural Residential) land
use district of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and the AR-2 (Residential-Agriculture - 0 to 2.0 DU/Acre)

Page 4

ltem D - 4 of 39



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PMTT18-007 (TT 20198)
September 4, 2019

zoning district. The proposed design or improvement of the subdivision is consistent with the goals, policies,
plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The
Ontario Plan, as the project will contribute to providing “[a] high level of design quality resulting in public
spaces, streetscapes, and developments that are attractive, safe, functional and distinct” (Goal CD2).
Furthermore, the project will promote the City’s policy to “create distinct residential neighborhoods that are
functional, have a sense of community, emphasize livability and social interaction, and are uniquely
identifiable places through such elements as:

= A pattern of smaller, walkable blocks that promote access, activity and safety

= Variable setbacks and parcel sizes to accommodate a diversity of housing types

= Traffic calming measures to slow traffic and promote walkability while maintaining
acceptable fire protection and traffic flows

= Floor plans that encourage views onto the street and de-emphasize the visual and
physical dominance of garages (introducing the front porch as the “outdoor living room”), as appropriate

= Landscaped parkways, with sidewalks separated from the curb.” (Policy CD2-2
Neighborhood Design)

3) The site is physically suitable for the type of development proposed. The project site
meets the minimum lot area and dimensions of the AR-2 (Residential-Agriculture - 0 to 2.0 DU/Acre) zoning
district, and is physically suitable for the type of residential development proposed in terms of zoning, land
use and development activity proposed, and existing and proposed site conditions. The minimum lot size
required by the AR-2 zone is 18,000 square feet, the project is proposing lots that will range from 18,921
square feet to 26,155 square feet, which exceeds the minimum lot size requirements; and

4) The site is physically suitable for the density/intensity of development proposed.
The project site is proposed for residential development at a density of 0.5 DUs/acre. The project site meets
the minimum lot area and dimensions of the AR-2 (Residential-Agriculture - 0 to 2.0 DU/Acre) zoning district,
and is physically suitable for this proposed density/intensity of development; and

(5) The design of the subdivision or the proposed improvements thereon, are not likely
to cause substantial environmental damage, or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife, or
their habitat. The project site is not located in an area that has been identified as containing species
identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies or
regulations or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, nor
does the site contain any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community, and no wetland habitat is
present on site; therefore, the design of the subdivision, or improvements proposed thereon, are not likely
to cause substantial environmental damage, or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife, or their
habitat, therefore, the design of the subdivision, or improvements proposed thereon, are not likely to cause
substantial environmental damage, or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife, or their habitat; and

(6) The design of the subdivision, or the type of improvements thereon, are not likely to
cause serious public health problems. The design of the proposed subdivision, and the overall right-of-
way improvements existing or proposed on the project site, are not likely to cause serious public health
problems, as the project is not anticipated to involve the transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials
during either construction or project implementation, include the use of hazardous materials or volatile fuels.
In addition, there are no known stationary commercial or industrial land uses within close proximity to the
subject site that use/store hazardous materials to the extent that they would pose a significant hazard to
visitors or occupants to the project site; and

) The design of the subdivision, or the type of improvements thereon, will not conflict
with easements acquired by the public at large for access through, or use of property within, the
proposed subdivision. The proposed subdivision has provided for all necessary public easements and
dedications for access through, or use of property within, the proposed subdivision. Furthermore, all such
public easements and dedications have been designed pursuant to: (a) the requirements of the Policy Plan

Page 5

ltem D - 5 of 39



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PMTT18-007 (TT 20198)
September 4, 2019

component of The Ontario Plan and applicable area plans; (b) applicable specific plans or planned unit
developments; (c) applicable provisions of the City of Ontario Development Code; (d) applicable master
plans and design guidelines of the City; and (e) applicable Standard Drawings of the City.

SECTION 5:  Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions
set forth in Sections 1 through 4, above, the DAB hereby recommends that the Planning Commission
APPROVE the Application subject to each and every condition set forth in the Department reports included
as Attachment A of this Decision, and incorporated herein by this reference.

SECTION 6: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold
harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding,
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense.

SECTION 7:  Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 4th day of September 2019.

Development Advisory Board Chairman

Page 6

ltem D - 6 of 39



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PMTT18-007 (TT 20198)
September 4, 2019

Exhibit A—PROJECT LOCATION MAP

MEDS

Howard St =

B

Sy

o

1

§ w0
W I;-air St

o
o

IR

b et

Page 7

ltem D - 7 of 39



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PMTT18-007 (TT 20198)
September 4, 2019

Exhibit B—PROJECT AREA PHOTOS

View of Project Site
Looking Northeast
from Benson
Avenue

View of Project Site
Looking Southeast
from Benson Avenue

Page 8

ltem D - 8 of 39



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PMTT18-007 (TT 20198)
September 4, 2019

NOTES:
1 GROSS AREA 976 AC
NET AREA 955AC
2 ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NUMBERS — APN 1011-431-01 & 1011-521-06

LOT SIZE TABLE:
z AREA (SF]__ | AREA [(AC)
[ 20,303 0.466
2 20,679 0.4/5
3 20,839 0.478
4 20,175 0.470
5 18,071 0.434
B 70,507 0.471
7 76,155 0.600
B 75,246 0.580
9 75,643 0.589
10 20,768 0.477
1 77,077 0.484
¥ 71,085 0.48%
13 70,340 0.481
1 0,178 0.462
5 72,652 0.520
i 72,045 0573
17 25,800 0.547
18 73,457 0.539
MIN. 18,921 SQ. FT./0.434 AC

MAX

. 26,155 5Q. FT./0.600 AC

E,.Xhib.it C—TENATIVE TRACT MAP

f
s A
[1 76
i
lii-m--l'--_- _-'.

e A T i

N AVENUE

e

N g !
LLgs T e i
e =

|

L

|
qrse ]
!

Page 9

ltem D - 9 of 39



Development Advisory Board Decision

File No. PMTT18-007 (TT 20198)
September 4, 2019

Exhibit D—CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN

EX CAG 0 BE REMOVEED

EVERSE PARMAY DRAN

X PP TO BE FELDCATED
Pefer to shaet § for the eny plan

sriagamart for s
PG and surtcmatic acosss gales

Pear M

AVENUE

BENSOMN

-0l g siced 1 spE-face:
Edockc retum wals wih & precision
masoney concrets cap - bpicad

REVERSE pamowaY DRAR

i & tal mascnry bosk wal ta
remerves ane repiarce slong ihe soulh)
frepeny Ine a8 ekt

‘and refisesd wi a min 6 12l 1an masenry
ook perimater wall ong fhe north fropery.
me

el Tof lofs 1-14 par T chl argnesrs
Imprsement piana - bl

Propomed water meter and water lne @
racate:

£

El
LOT 10

EIWEF

1842 S F
1

LOT 1 3

AT EF.

£ 1l e il taces o skt masonry biosk
wall with precisicn wail cap akong the east
property e - ypical

Jar .
ASHSTATE) AW TATITENERES OWETg dccart SIVLZE
a0l gronured corwes whh 0 s propossd

ront yard ahads ¥es typissd
[ p—

et i Ba sxisting on Clar Srest

-
= mmmsiemaiy—-

[ ————

chiness paticra ee

et 18-22T )

Page 10

Item D - 10 of 39



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PMTT18-007 (TT 20198)
September 4, 2019

Attachment A—Departmental Conditions of Approval

(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page)

Page 11

ltem D - 11 of 39



City of Ontario Planning Departm&ﬂt

Planning Department

303 East B Street Land Development Division
Ontario, California 91764 e
Phone: 909.395.2036 Conditions of Approval

Fax: 909.395.2420

Meeting Date: September 4, 2019
File No: PMTT18-007 (TT 20198)
Related Files: N/A

Project Description: A Tentative Tract Map to subdivide 9.57 acres of land into 18 single-family lots,
located at 1103 South Benson Avenue, within the AR-2 (Residential-Agriculture - 0 to 2.0 DU/Acre) zoning
district. APNs: 1011-431-01 & 1011-521-06; submitted by TK Management Services LLC.
Prepared By: Luis E. Batres, Senior Planner

Phone: 909.395.2431 (dir

Email: Lbatres@ontarioca.gov

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable to the
above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of approval listed
below:

1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions for New
Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy of the Standard
Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning Department or City Clerk/Records
Management Department.

2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New Development
identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following special conditions of
approval:

2.1 Time Limits.

(a) Tentative Tract Map approval shall become null and void 2 years following the
effective date of application approval, unless the final tract map has been recorded, or a time extension has
been approved by the Planning Commission pursuant to Development Code Section 2.02.025 (Time Limits
and Extensions). This Permit does not supersede any individual time limits specified herein for performance
of specific conditions or improvements.

2.2 Subdivision Map.

(a) The Final Tract Map shall be in conformance with the approved Tentative
Tract/Parcel Map on file with the City. Variations rom the approved Tentative Tract/Parcel Map may be
reviewed and approved by the Planning Department. A substantial variation from the approved Tentative
Tract/Parcel Map may require review and approval by the Planning Commission, as determined by the
Planning Director.

(b) Tentative Tract/Parcel Map approval shall be subject to all conditions,

requirements and recommendations from all other departments/agencies provided on the attached
reports/memorandums.

Item D - 12 of 39



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval
File No.: PMTT18-007/ TT 20198
Page 2 of 4

(c) The subject Tentative Tract/Parcel Map for condominium purposes shall require
the recordation of a condominium plan concurrent with the recordation of the Final Tract/Parcel Map and
CCé&Rs.

(d) Pursuant to California Government Section 66474.9, the subdivider agrees that it
will defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City of Ontario or its agents, officers and employees from any
claim, action or proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set
aside, void or annul any approval of the City of Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission
or other authorized board or officer of this subdivision, which action is brought within the time period
provided for in Government Code Section 66499.37. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the subdivider
of any such claim, action or proceeding and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense.

23 General Requirements. The Project shall comply with the following general requirements:

(a) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, including, but
not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape and irrigation, grading,
utility and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with the approved entitlement plans
on file with the Planning Department.

(b) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved plans on file
with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved by the Planning
Department prior to building permit issuance.

(c) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be included
in the construction plan set for project, which shall be maintained on site during project construction.

24 Walls and Fences. All Project walls and fences shall comply with the requirements of
Ontario Development Code Division 6.02 (Walls, Fences and Obstructions).

2.5 Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs)/Mutual Access and Maintenance
Agreements.

(a) CC&Rs shall be prepared for the Project and shall be recorded prior to the
issuance of a building permit.

(b) The CC&Rs shall be in a form and contain provisions satisfactory to the City. The
articles of incorporation for the property owners association and the CC&Rs shall be reviewed and approved
by the City.

(c) CC&Rs shall ensure access between parcels.
(d) CC&Rs shall ensure access between parcels, and common maintenance of:
(i) Landscaping and irrigation systems within common areas:
(ii) Landscaping and irrigation systems within parkways adjacent to the

project site, including that portion of any public highway right-of-way between the property line or right-of-
way boundary line and the curb line and also the area enclosed within the curb lines of a median divider
(Ontario Municipal Code Section 7-3.03), pursuant to Ontario Municipal Code Section 5-22-02;

(iii) Shared access drives; and

(iv) Utility and drainage easements.

(v) Equestrian trails

Item D - 13 of 39



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval
File No.: PMTT18-007/ TT 20198
Page 3 of 4

(e) CC&Rs shall include authorization for the City's local law enforcement officers to
enforce City and State traffic and penal codes within the project area.

(f) The CC&Rs shall grant the City of Ontario the right of enforcement of the CC&R
provisions.

(g) A specific methodology/procedure shall be established within the CC&Rs for
enforcement of its provisions by the City of Ontario, if adequate maintenance of the development does not
occur, such as, but not limited to, provisions that would grant the City the right of access to correct
maintenance issues and assess the property owners association for all costs incurred.

2.6 Disclosure Statements.

(a) A copy of the Public Report from the Department of Real Estate, prepared for the
subdivision pursuant to Business and Professions Code Section 11000 et seq., shall be provided to each
prospective buyer of the residential units and shall include a statement to the effect that:

(i) This tract is subject to noise from the Ontario International Airport and may
be more severely impacted in the future.
(ii) Some of the property adjacent to this tract is zoned for agricultural uses

and there could be fly, odor, or related problems due to the proximity of animals.
(iii) The area south of Riverside Drive lies within the San Bernardino County
Agricultural Preserve. Dairies currently existing in that area are likely to remain for the foreseeable future.
(iv) This tract is part of a Landscape Maintenance District. The homeowner(s)
will be assessed through their property taxes for the continuing maintenance of the district.

2.7 Environmental Review.

(a) The proposed project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the
California Environmental Quality Act of 1970 (CEQA), as amended, and the Guidelines promulgated
thereunder, pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines,
meeting the following conditions:

(i) The Project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and
all applicable general plan policies, as well as the applicable zoning designation and regulations;
(i) The proposed development occurs within city limits, on a project site of no

more than five acres, and is substantially surrounded by urban uses;

(iii) The project site has no value as habitat for endangered, rare, or
threatened species;

(iv) Approval of the Project will not result in any significant effects relating to
traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality; and

(v) The Project site can be adequately served by all required utilities and
public services.

(b) If human remains are found during project grading/excavation/construction
activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required investigation is completed by the County Coroner
and Native American consultation has been completed (if deemed applicable).

(c) If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the resource is
determined. If determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a qualified archeologist or
paleontologist consistent with current standards and guidelines, or other appropriate measures
implemented.

Item D - 14 of 39



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval
File No.: PMTT18-007/ TT 20198
Page 4 of 4

2.8 Indemnification. The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, the City
of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City of
Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul any approval of the City of
Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other authorized board or officer. The City of
Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario
shall cooperate fully in the defense.

2.9 Additional Fees.

(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of Determination
(NOD) filing fee shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be paid by check, made
payable to the "Clerk of the Board of Supervisors”, which shall be forwarded to the San Bernardino County
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, along with all applicable environmental forms/notices, pursuant to the
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Failure to provide said fee within the time
specified may result in a 180-day extension to the statute of limitations for the filing of a CEQA lawsuit.

(b) After the Project's entitlement approval, and prior to issuance of final building
permits, the Planning Department's Plan Check and Inspection fees shall be paid at the rate established
by resolution of the City Council.

2.10 Additional Reguirements.

(a) A Development Plan is required to be reviewed and approved by the City prior to
any building permits being issued for the development of the homes. In addition, Development Plan will be
required to comply with all Development Code, development requirements.

(b) After Planning Commission approval, the applicant shall submit two reduced sets
of plans (11" x 17”) to the Planning Department.

Item D - 15 of 39



CITY OF

ONTARIO

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

(Engineering Services Division [Land Development Section and Environmental Section], Traffic & Transportation Division, Ontario
Municipal Utilities Company and Information Technology & Management Services Department Conditions incorporated)

DEVELOPMENT [] PARCEL MAP X] TRACT MAP
PLAN
[] OTHER [[] FOR CONDOMINIUM PURPQSES
PROJECT FILE NO. TM 20198
RELATED FILE NO(S). PMTT18-007
ORIGINAL [ ] REVISED: / /
CITY PROJECT ENGINEER & PHONE NO: Tricia Espinoza, P.E., Principal Eng.
(909) 395-2188
CITY PROJECT PLANNER & PHONE NO: Luis Batres, Senior Planner

DAB MEETING DATE:

(909) 395-2431
September 4, 2019

PROJECT NAME / DESCRIPTION: TM-20198, a Tentative Tract Map to

LOCATION:

APPLICANT:

REVIEWED BY:

APPROVED BY:

Last Revised: 8/14/2019

subdivide 9.57 acres of land into
eighteen (18) single family lots
within the AR-2 zoning district.

991 and 1103 South Benson

Kevin Kent
K Management Services, LLC
,Bégé.gi o/ry)7
an Lirley, P.E. Dafe
Principal Engineer
@%E’ &E \ FLe/.
Raymand Lee, P.E. Date

Assistant City Engineer

Item D - 16 of 39



Project File No.TM 20198/PMTT18-007
Project Engineer: Tricia Espinoza
Date: September 4, 2019

THIS PROJECT SHALL COMPLY WITH THE REQUIREMENTS SET FORTH IN THE GENERAL STANDARD
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL (RESOLUTION NO. 2017-027) AND THE
PROJECT SPECIFIC CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL SPECIFIED IN HEREIN. ONLY APPLICABLE CONDITIONS OF
APPROVAL ARE CHECKED. THE APPLICANT SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE COMPLETION OF ALL
APPLICABLE CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL PRIOR TO FINAL MAP APPROVAL, ISSUANCE OF PERMITS AND/OR
OCCUPANCY CLEARANCE, AS SPECIFIED IN THIS REPORT.

1. PRIOR TO FINAL MAP APPROVAL, APPLICANT SHALL: Check When

Complete
]E 1.01 Dedicate to the City of Ontario, the right-of-way, described below: [:'
a) 14-feet on Benson Avenue frontage to achieve an ultimate half-street width of 44-feet.

b) Right-of-way necessary to construct full street improvements on existing, public W.
Clair Street.

c) Property line corner cut-back at Benson/Ralston and Benson/Clair (private).
@ 1.02 Dedicate to the City of Ontario, the following easement(s): |:]
a) Project shall provide a Public Utility Easement (PUE) across private W. Ralston Street
and a PUE and Pedestrian Access Easements across private W. Clair Street, including a
minimum 15-foot wide easement through the cul-de-sac of private W. Clair Street to
existing, public W. Clair Street, as shown on the tentative tract map.

1.03  Restrict vehicular access to the site as follows:

1.04  Vacate the following street(s) and/or easement(s):

0 Oad

1.05  Submit a copy of a recorded private reciprocal use agreement or easement. The agreement or
easement shall ensure, at a minimum, common ingress and egress and joint maintenance of all
common access areas and drive aisles.

OO O

E] 1.06  Provide (original document) Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs) as applicable to D
the project and as approved by the City Attorney and the Engineering and Planning
Departments, ready for recordation with the County of San Bernardino. The CC&Rs shall
provide for, but not be limited to, common ingress and egress, joint maintenance responsibility
for all common access improvements, common facilities, parking areas, utilities, median and
landscaping improvements and drive approaches, in addition to maintenance requirements
established in the Water Quality Management Plan (WQMP), as applicable to the project. The
CC&Rs shall also address the maintenance and repair responsibility for public
improvements/utilities (sewer, water, storm drain, recycled water, etc.) located within open
space/easements. In the event of any maintenance or repair of these facilities, the City shall
only restore disturbed areas to current City Standards.

D 1.07  For all development occurring south of the Pomona Freeway (60-Freeway) and within the specified [:|
boundary limits (per Boundary Map found at http:/iceplumecleanup.com/), the property
developer/owner is made aware of the South Archibald Trichloroethylene (TCE) Plume “Disclosure
Letter". Property owner may wish to provide this Letter as part of the Real Estate Transfer Disclosure
requirements under California Civil Code Section 1102 et seq. This may include notifications in the
Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs) or other documents related to property transfer and
disclosures. Additional information on the plume is available from the Santa Ana Regional Water
Quality Control Board at hitp.//geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/profile_report?global_id=T10000004658.

[] 1.08 File an application for Reapportionment of Assessment, together with payment of a reapportionment [ ]

processing fee, for each existing assessment district listed below. Contact the Management Services
Department at (909) 395-2124 regarding this requirement.

(1)

Last Revised 8/15/2019 Page 2 of 14

Item D - 17 of 39



Project File No.TM 20198/PMTT18-007
Project Engineer: Tricia Espinoza
Date: September 4, 2019

(@)

[X] 1.09 Prepare a fully executed Subdivision Agreement (on City approved format and forms) with ]
accompanying security as required, or complete all public improvements.

[E 1.10  Provide a monument bond (i.e. cash deposit) in an amount calculated by the City's approved L__]
cost estimate spreadsheet (available for download on the City’s website: www.ci.ontario.ca.us)
or as specified in writing by the applicant’s Registered Engineer or Licensed Land Surveyor of
Record and approved by the City Engineer, whichever is greater.

1.11  Provide a preliminary title report current to within 30 days.

OO

X

|:| 1.12  File an application, together with an initial deposit (if required), to establish a Community Facilities
District (CFD) pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities District Act of 1982. The application
and fee shall be submitted a minimum of three (3) months prior to final subdivision map approval, and
the CFD shall be established prior to final subdivision map approval or issuance of building permits,
whichever occurs first. The CFD shall be established upon the subject property to provide funding for
various City services. An annual special tax shall be levied upon each parcel or lot in an amount to be
determined. The special tax will be collected along with annual property taxes. The City shall be the
sole lead agency in the formation of any CFD. Contact Management Services at (909) 395-2353 to
initiate the CFD application process.

[J 1.13  New Model Colony (NMC) Developments: ]
[ 1) Provide evidence of final cancellation of Williamson Act contracts associated with this tract, prior
to approval of any final subdivision map. Cancellation of contracts shall have been approved by the City
Council.

[J 2) Provide evidence of sufficient storm water capacity availability equivalents (Certificate of Storm
Water Treatment Equivalents).

[ 3) Provide evidence of sufficient water availability equivalents (Certificate of Net MDD Availability).
[X] 1.14 Other conditions: ]
a) Developer/applicant shall reserve a minimum 4-foot wide private drainage easement

adjacent to the southerly tract boundary across proposed Lots 15, 16, 17, 18 for the
benefit of proposed Lots 15, 16, 17, 18.

A. GENERAL
( Permits includes Grading, Building, Demolition and Encroachment )

2.01 Record Tract Map No. 20198 pursuant to the Subdivision Map Act and in accordance with the
City of Ontario Municipal Code.

2.02 Submit a duplicate photo mylar of the recorded map to the City Engineer’s office. D
2.03  Note that the subject parcel is a recognized parcel in the City of Ontario |:|
per

O OKXK X

2.04  Note that the subject parcel is an ‘unrecognized’ parcel in the City of Ontario and shall require a I:]
Certificate of Compliance to be processed unless a deed is provided confirming the existence of the
parcel prior to the date of .

Last Revised 8/15/2019 Page 3 of 14

Item D - 18 of 39



Project File No.TM 20198/PMTT18-007
Project Engineer: Tricia Espinoza
Date: September 4, 2019

[] 205 Applyfora:[] Certificate of Compliance with a Record of Survey; [] Lot Line Adjustment ]
[J Make a Dedication of Easement.

D 2.06 Provide (original document) Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&R's), as applicable to the |:|
project, and as approved by the City Attorney and the Engineering and Planning Departments, ready
for recordation with the County of San Bernardino. The CC&R's shall provide for, but not be limited to,
common ingress and egress, joint maintenance of all common access improvements, common
facilities, parking areas, utilities and drive approaches in addition to maintenance requirements
established in the Water Quality Management Plan { WQMP), as applicable to the project.

[:| 2.07  For all development occurring south of the Pomona Freeway (60-Freeway) and within the specified ]
boundary limits (per Boundary Map found at htip/tceplumeclieanup.com/), the property
developer/owner is made aware of the South Archibald Trichloroethylene (TCE) Plume “Disclosure
Letter”. Property owner may wish to provide this Letter as part of the Real Estate Transfer Disclosure
requirements under California Civil Code Section 1102 et seq. This may include notifications in the
Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs) or other documents related to property transfer and
disclosures. Additional information on the plume is available from the Santa Ana Regional Water
Quality Control Board at hiip:/geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/profile_report?global_id=T10000004658.

[X] 2.08 Submita soils/geology report. L]

|:] 2.09  Other Agency Permit/Approval: Submit a copy of the approved permit and/or other form of approval of |:|
the project from the following agency or agencies:

D State of California Department of Transportation (Caltrans)

D San Bernardino County Road Department (SBCRD)

D San Bernardino County Flood Control District (SBCFCD)

|:| Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)

D Cucamonga Valley Water District (CVWD) for sewer/water service
l:l United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE)

D California Department of Fish & Game

l:l Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA)

[:| Other:

[] 210 Dedicate to the City of Ontario the right-of-way described below: ]

feet on

Property line corner ‘cut-back’ required at the intersection of

and
[] 211 Dedicate to the City of Ontario the following easement(s): ]
[] 212 New Model Colony (NMC) Developments: ]

[J 1) Submit a copy of the permit from the San Bernardino County Health Department to the
Engineering Department and the Ontario Municipal Utilites Company (OMUC) for the
destruction/abandonment of the on-site water well. The well shall be destroyed/abandoned in
accordance with the San Bernardino County Health Department guidelines.

[ 2) Make a formal request to the City of Ontario Engineering Department for the proposed temporary
use of an existing agricultural water well for purposes other than agriculture, such as grading, dust
control, etc. Upon approval, the Applicant shall enter into an agreement with the City of Ontario and pay

Last Revised 8/15/2019 Page 4 of 14

Item D - 19 of 39



Project File No.TM 20198/PMTT18-007
Project Engineer: Tricia Espinoza
Date: September 4, 2019

any applicable fees as set forth by said agreement.

[ 3) Design proposed retaining walls to retain up to a maximum of three (3) feet of earth. In no case
shall a wall exceed an overall height of nine (9) feet (i.e. maximum 6-foot high wall on top of a
maximum 3-foot high retaining wall.

|:| 2.13  Submit a security deposit to the Engineering Department to guarantee construction of the public
improvements required herein valued at % of the approved construction cost estimate. Security
deposit shall be in accordance with the City of Ontario Municipal Code. Security deposit will be eligible
for release, in accordance with City procedure, upon completion and acceptance of said public
improvements.

|:| 2.14  The applicant/developer shall submit all necessary survey documents prepared by a Licensed Surveyor |:|
registered in the State of California detailing all existing survey monuments in and around the project
site. These documents are to be reviewed and approved by the City Survey Office.

2.15 Pay all Development Impact Fees (DIF) to the Building Department.

X
(I

2.16  Other conditions:

D=4
[]

a) The Final Utility Systems Map (USM) shall be consistent with the Infrastructure Plan
submitted with the entitlement package. Any deviation from this plan shall require the
USM to be updated and resubmitted to OMUC for review and approval. A final USM
shall be submitted for review and approval with the Precise Grading Plan.

b) The applicant/developer shall pay a storm drain in-lieu fee, approximately $114,075.00,
for the “Priority B” storm drain in Benson Avenue. Final fee shall be determined based
on the approved site plan.

Last Revised 8/15/2019 Page 5 of 14

Item D - 20 of 39



Project File No.TM 20198/PMTT18-007

Project Engineer: Tricia Espinoza
Date: September 4, 2019

X

B. PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS
(See attached Exhibit ‘A’ for plan check submittal requirements.)

2.17

Design and construct full public improvements in accordance with the City of Ontario Municipal
Code, current City standards and specifications, master plans and the adopted specific plan for
the area, if any. These public improvements shall include, but not be limited to, the following

(checked boxes):

AC Pavement

along frontage,
including pavm’t

Dwg. 1101 and
as necessary to

along frontage,
including pavm't

Within Ontario | Within Ontario
Benson Existing Public PUE on W. PUE on W.
Mptovement Avenue W. Clair St. Clair St. Ralston St.
(Private) (Private)
New; 32 ft. @ New curb New; __ ft. New; __ ft.
from C/L and gutter for from C/L from C/L
D Replace cul-de-sac, join [:] Replace I:I Replace
Curb and Gutter damaged existing damaged damaged
Remove Replace Remove Remove
and replace gdamaged and replace and replace
D Remove
|:| Replacement |___| Replacement |:| Replacement D Replacement
<] widen 18 New cul-de- | [_] Widen (] widen
additional feet sac per City Std. | additional feet additional feet

along frontage,
including pavm't

construct cul-de
sac (if needed)

transitions join existing transitions transitions
pavm’t
|:| New D New |:| New |:] New
Pgﬁjgf‘éensfem [] Modify [ ] Modify (] Modify ] Modify
¥ existing existing existing existing
Only)
D New l:l New D New D New
- D Remove IE Remove |:| Remove [:I Remove
Drive Approach and replace and replace to and replace and replace

Xl New

IZ New

D New

I:I New

Last Revised 8/15/2019

[ ] Remove sidewalk along [ ] Remove (] Remove
and replace | cul-de-sac, join and replace and replace
Sidewalk existing sidewalk
or driveway
Remove
and replace
@ New I:] New I:] New I:I New
ADA Access l:l Remove I:] Remove D Remove D Remove
Ramp and replace and replace and replace and replace
Trees I:] Trees D Trees D Trees
Parkway @ Landscaping @ Landscaping D Landscaping [:| Landscaping
(w/irrigation) (w/irrigation) (w/irrigation) | (w/irrigation)
Page 6 of 14

Item D - 21 of 39




Project File No.TM 20198/PMTT18-007
Project Engineer: Tricia Espinoza
Date: September 4, 2019

D New

D New

[ ] New

D New

ised
Lar?das:iaped D Remove f:l Remove l:l Remove D Remove
Median and replace and replace and replace and replace
Fire H ‘ I:I New / I:I New / E‘ New ]E New
i tiydan Upgrade Upgrade [_] Relocation D Relocation
|:| Relocation |E Relocation
5 D Main D Main & Main Main
(see ;::rz_c) D Lateral D Lateral Lateral & Lateral
it [:I Main <] Main to E’ Main E Main
ater
Service connect to new Service Service
(see Sec. 2.D) u W. Clair (private) X X

Service

Recycled Water

D Main
D Service

D Main
D Service

D Main
I:I Service

(] Main
[:I Service

(see Sec. 2.E)
Traffic Si | I:‘ New D New D New D New
ras;/csre’r%na [] Modity [ Modify (] Modify ] modity

(see Sec. 2.F)

exisling

existing

existing

existing

Traffic Signing
and Striping

D New
Modify

D New
[ Modify

I:l New
D Modify

D New
] Modify

existin existin existin existin
(see Sec. 2.F) . L 2 g
IZ New New |:| New / D New /
StreetLight | [ | Relocation [ ] Relocation Upgrade Upgrade
(see Sec. 2.F) [ ] Relocation Relocation

Bus Stop Pad or

D New
] Mouity

D New
[] Modity

D New
[ Modify

l:] New
[ Modity

Turn-out e = - P
(see Sec. 2.F) existing existing existing existing
Storm Drain D Main l:l Main D Main |:| Main

(see Sec. 2G)

[] Lateral

|:| Lateral

[:] Lateral

|___] Lateral

Fiber Optics | £ Conduit / [ ] conduit / D<] conduit/ | [X] conduit/
(see Sec. 2K) Appurtenances | Appurtenances Appurtenances | Appurtenances
N 4 [ ] Underground | [_] Underground | [_] Underground
Utilities Underground X Relocate [] Relocate [_] Relocate
Relocate
Existing Existing
improvements to | improvements to
[n?erig\?:;lezfts widen street construct cul-de-
P sac and join
existing
Other
Improvements

Last Revised 8/15/2019

Page 7 of 14

Item D - 22 of 39




Project File No.TM 20198/PMTT18-007
Project Engineer: Tricia Espinoza
Date: September 4, 2019

Specific notes for improvements listed in item no. 2.17, above:

a) During the course of maintenance and repairs of public utilities within the public
easement, the City will restore trenches per the latest City standards, as applicable.
Restoration of any enhancements above and beyond City standards, including but not
limited to architectural paving, hardscape and landscape enhancements shall be the
responsibility of the HOA.

b) The new W. Clair St. and W. Ralston St. are private and shall be owned and maintained

by the HOA.
[] 218 Construct a 2" asphalt concrete (AC) grind and overlay on the following street(s): ]
[[] 219 Reconstruction of the full pavement structural section, per City of Ontario Standard Drawing number [:]

1011, may be required based on the existing pavement condition and final street design. Minimum
limits of reconstruction shall be along property frontage, from street centerline to curb/gutter.

|:] 2.20 Make arrangements with the Cucamonga Valley Water District (CVWD) to provide [] water service [:|
[J sewer service to the site. This property is within the area served by the CVWD and Applicant shall
provide documentation to the City verifying that all required CYWD fees have been paid.

[X] 221 Overhead utilities shall be under-grounded, in accordance with Title 7 of the City’s Municipal O
Code (Ordinance No. 2804 and 2892). Developer shall pay in-lieu fee of $350/ft for
undergrounding of utilities in accordance with Section 7-7.303.e of the City’s Municipal Code.

[X] 222 Other conditions: ]
a) On-site private streets from curb to curb shall be designed and constructed per City of
Ontario public street standards.

C. SEWER

2,23 A 12-inch sewer main is available for connection by this project in Benson Avenue.
(Ref: Sewer plan bar code: $13092)

2.24  Design and construct a sewer main extension. A sewer main is not available for direct connection. The
closest main is approximately feet away.

X
[

[
[

2.25  Submit documentation that shows expected peak loading values for modeling the impact of the subject [:]
project to the existing sewer system. The project site is within a deficient public sewer system area.
Applicant shall be responsible for all costs associated with the preparation of the model. Based on the
results of the analysis, Applicant may be required to mitigate the project impact to the deficient public
sewer system, including, but not limited to, upgrading of existing sewer main(s), construction of new
sewer main(s) or diversion of sewer discharge to another sewer.

[X] 226 Other conditions: ]

a) Sewer Laterals: Project shall install sewer cleanouts/laterals at a minimum horizontal
separation of 5 feet from BMPs and 10 feet from water meters/laterals per State Water
Resources Control Board Division of Drinking Water (DDW) requirements.

[

b) Sewer Line Improvements: Prior to the issuance of any permits, the following sewer
line improvements shall be designed and constructed per City standards and design
requirements:

a. Install an 8-inch sewer line along W. Ralston St. from Benson Avenue to the
cul-de-sac, with a point of connection to the existing sewer line in Benson
Avenue.

b. Install an 8-inch sewer line along W. Clair St. from Benson Avenue to the cul-
de-sac, with a point of connection to the existing sewer line in Benson Avenue.

Last Revised 8/15/2019 Page 8 of 14

Item D - 23 of 39



Project File No.TM 20198/PMTT18-007
Project Engineer: Tricia Espinoza
Date: September 4, 2019

D. WATER
@ 2.27  An 8-inch water main is available for connection by this project in Benson Avenue and existing
W. Clair Street. (Ref: Water plan bar code: W11460, W10510)
[[] 2.28 Designand construct a water main extension. A water main is not available for direct connection. The
closest main is approximately feet away.
[X] 229 Other conditions:

Ly L e

a) Fire Water Flow Test: Submit an application with the Fire Prevention Bureau requesting
a Fire Water Flow Test in order to verify the size and alignment of the proposed water
system improvements for this project. The project is responsible for installing all water
system improvements which may be necessary in order to meet Fire Flow requirements
and to mitigate any potential deficiencies.

b) Water Laterals: Project shall install water meters/laterals at a minimum horizontal
separation of 5 feet from BMPs and 10 feet from sewer cleanouts/laterals per State
Water Resources Control Board Division of Drinking Water (DDW) requirements.

c) Potable Water Improvements: Prior to the issuance of any permits, the following
potable water improvements shall be designed and constructed per City standards and
design requirements:

a. Install an 8-inch waterline along W. Ralston St. from Benson Avenue to the cul-
de-sac, with a point of connection to the existing waterline in Benson Avenue.

b. Install an 8-inch waterline along W. Claire St. from Benson Avenue through the
cul-de-sac of W. Claire Street for looping, with a point of connection to the
existing waterline in Benson Avenue and existing waterline in W. Claire Street.

E. RECYCLED WATER

230 A inch recycled water main is available for connection by this project in
(Ref: Recycled Water plan bar code: )

E] 2.31  Design and construct an on-site recycled water system for this project. A recycled water main does D
exist in the vicinity of this project.

D 2.32  Design and construct an on-site recycled water ready system for this project. A recycled water main |:]
does not currently exist in the vicinity of this project, but is planned for the near future. If Applicant
would like to connect to this recycled water main when it becomes available, the cost for the connection
shall be borne solely by the Applicant.

[[] 233 Submittwo (2) hard copies and one (1) electronic copy, in PDF format, of the Engineering Report (ER), [ ]
for the use of recycled water, to the OMUC for review and subsequent submittal to the California
Department of Public Health (CDPH) for final approval.

[
[

Note: The OMUC and the CDPH review and approval process will be approximately three (3) months.
Contact the Ontario Municipal Utilities Company at (909) 395-2647 regarding this requirement.

[] 234 Otherconditions: ]

F. TRAFFIC / TRANSPORTATION

[[] 2.35 Submit afocused traffic impact study, prepared and signed by a Traffic/Civil Engineer registered in the D
State of California. The study shall address, but not be limited to, the following issues as required by
the City Engineer:
1. On-site and off-site circulation
2. Traffic level of service (LOS) at ‘build-out’ and future years
3. Impact at specific intersections as selected by the City Engineer

[] 236 New traffic signal installations shall be added to Southern California Edison (SCE) customer account ]
number # 2-20-044-3877.

Last Revised 8/15/2019 Page 9 of 14

Item D - 24 of 39



Project File No.TM 20198/PMTT18-007
Project Engineer: Tricia Espinoza
Date: September 4, 2019

[X] 237 Other conditions: ]

a) Design and construct the ultimate half street improvements along the project
frontage on Benson Avenue (88° R/W, 64’ C/C). Improvements shall include
appropriate pavement transitions, signing/striping, street lights, and street light
service pedestals as deemed necessary by the City Engineer.

b) Design and construct street improvements for the existing, public W. Clair Street
cul-de-sac in accordance with City standard drawings including, but not limited to,
concrete curb and gutter, sidewalk, LED street lights, street light service pedestals,
signing/striping, and parkway landscaping.

c) The Applicant/Developer’s engineer-of-record shall meet with City Engineering staff
prior to starting signing/striping and/or street lighting design.

d) The Applicant/Developer shall obtain all rights-of-way necessary to construct all
required improvements.

e) All landscaping, block walls, and other obstructions shall be compatible with the
stopping sight distance requirements per City of Ontario Standard Drawing No.
9.

G. DRAINAGE / HYDROLOGY

238 A inch storm drain main is available to accept flows from this project in
(Ref: Storm Drain plan bar code: )

g 2.39 Submit a hydrology study and drainage analysis, prepared and signed by a Civil Engineer [:]
registered in the State of California. The study shall be prepared in accordance with the San
Bernardino County Hydrology Manual and City of Ontario standards and guidelines. Additional
drainage facilities, including, but not limited to, improvements beyond the project frontage, may
be required to be designed and constructed, by Applicant, as a result of the findings of this
study.

] 2.40  An adequate drainage facility to accept additional runoff from the site does not currently exist |:|
downstream of the project. Design and construct a storm water detention facility on the project
site. 100 year post-development peak flow shall be attenuated such that it does not exceed 80%
of pre-development peak flows, in accordance with the approved hydrology study and
improvement plans.

|:[ 2.41  Submit a copy of a recorded private drainage easement or drainage acceptance agreement to the D
Engineering Department for the acceptance of any increase to volume and/or concentration of historical
drainage flows onto adjacent property, prior to approval of the grading plan for the project.

[[] 242 Comply with the City of Ontario Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance (Ordinance No. 2409). The [ ]
project site or a portion of the project site is within the Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA) as indicated
on the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) and is subject to flooding during a 100 year frequency storm.
The site plan shall be subject to the provisions of the National Flood Insurance Program.

[] 243 Otherconditions: ]

[
O

H. STORM WATER QUALITY / NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE AND ELIMINATION SYSTEM
(NPDES)

] 2.44 401 Water Quality Certification/404 Permit — Submit a copy of any applicable 401 Certification or 404 []
Permit for the subject project to the City project engineer. Development that will affect any body of
surface water (i.e. lake, creek, open drainage channel, etc.) may require a 401 Water Quality
Certification from the California Regional Water Quality Control Board, Santa Ana Region (RWQCB)
and a 404 Permit from the United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE). The groups of water
bodies classified in these requirements are perennial (flow year round) and ephemeral (flow during rain
conditions, only) and include, but are not limited to, direct connections into San Bernardino County
Flood Control District (SBCFCD) channels.

If a 401 Certification and/or a 404 Permit are not required, a letter confirming this from Applicant's
engineer shall be submitted.
Contact information: USACE (Los Angeles District) (213) 452-3414; RWQCB (951) 782-4130.

Last Revised 8/15/2019 Page 10 of 14

Item D - 25 of 39



Project File No.TM 20198/PMTT18-007
Project Engineer: Tricia Espinoza
Date: September 4, 2019

X

245 Submit a Water Quality Management Plan (WQMP). This plan shall be approved by the
Engineering Department prior to approval of any grading plan. The WQMP shall be submitted,
utilizing the current San Bernardino County Stormwater Program template, available at:

http://www.sbcounty.qov/dpw/land/npdes.asp.

2.46  Design and construct a Connector Pipe Trash Screen or equivalent Trash Treatment Control Device [:]
that meets the Full Capture System definition and specifications, and is on the Certified List of the State
Water Resources Control Board. The device shall be adequately sized per catch basin and include a
deflector screen, vertical support bars, and removable component to facilitate maintenance and
cleaning.

2.47  Other conditions: ]

J. SPECIAL DISTRICTS

2.48  File an application, together with an initial payment deposit (if required), to establish a Community |:|
Facilities District (CFD) pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community facilities District Act of 1982. The
application and fee shall be submitted a minimum three (3) months prior to final subdivision map
approval, and the CFD shall be established prior to final subdivision map approval or issuance of
building permits, whichever occurs first. The CFD shall be established upon the subject property to
provide funding for various City services. An annual special tax shall be levied upon each parcel or lot
in an amount to be determined. The special tax will be collected along with annual property taxes. The
City shall be the sole lead agency in the formation of any CFD. Contact the Management Services
Department at (909) 395-2353 to initiate the CFD application process.

2.49  Other conditions: ]

K. FIBER OPTIC

2.50 Design and construct fiber optic system to provide access to the City’s conduit and fiber optic [:]
system per the City’s Fiber Optic Master Plan. Building entrance conduits shall start from the
closest OntarioNet hand hole constructed along the project frontage in the ROW and shall
terminate in the main telecommunications room for each building. Conduit infrastructure shall
interconnect with the primary and/or secondary backbone fiber optic conduit system at the
nearest OntarioNet hand hole. Fiber optic system will generally be located along project
frontage on Benson Avenue, private Ralston Street and private Clair Street.

2.51 Refer to the City’s Fiber Optic Master Plan for design and layout guidelines. Contact the []
Information Technology Department at (909) 395-2000, regarding this requirement.

L. Solid Waste
2,52 Onsite solid waste shall be designed in accordance with the City’s Solid Waste Manual location |:|
at:

http://www.cntarioca.gov/municipal-utilities-company/solid-waste

]  2.53 Other conditions: |
a) Final Solid Waste Handling Plan (SWHP): The PMTT18-007 Solid Waste Handling Plan,
revision dated 06/19/2019, shall be updated to meet all conditions and revised into a
Final SWHP. A Final SWHP shall be submitted for review and approval with the Precise
Grading Plan. The SWHP shall demonstrate compliance with the “Solid Waste Handling
Plan Requirements”.
Last Revised 8/15/2019 Page 11 of 14

Item D - 26 of 39



Project File No.TM 20198/PMTT18-007
Project Engineer: Tricia Espinoza
Date: September 4, 2019

3. PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF A CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY, APPLICANT SHALL:

3.01 Set new monuments in plac of any monuments that have been damaged or destroyed asa D
result of construction of the subject project. Monuments shall be set in accordance with City
of Ontario standards and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.

[] 3.02 Complete all requirements for recycled water usage. ]

[ 1) Procure from the OMUC a copy of the letter of confirmation from the California Department of
Public Health (CDPH) that the Engineering Report (ER) has been reviewed and the subject site is
approved for the use of recycled water.

[] 2) Obtain clearance from the OMUC confirming completion of recycled water improvements and
passing of shutdown tests and cross connection inspection, upon availability/usage of recycled water.

[J 3) Complete education training of on-site personnel in the use of recycled water, in accordance
with the ER, upon availability/usage of recycled water.

[X] 3.03 The applicant/developer shall submit all final survey documents prepared by a Licensed ]
Surveyor registered in the State of California detailing all survey monuments that have been
preserved, revised, adjusted or set along with any maps, corner records or Records of Survey
needed to comply with these Conditions of Approvals and the latest edition of the California
Professional Land Survey Act. These documents are to be reviewed and approved by the City
Survey Office.

[[] 3.04 NMC Projects: For developments located at an intersection of any two collector or arterial streets, ]
the applicant/developer shall set a monument if one does not already exist at that intersection.
Contact the City Survey office for information on reference benchmarks, acceptable methodology and
required submittals.

}E 3.05 Confirm payment of all Development Impact Fees (DIF) to the Building Department. D

[X] 3.06 Submitelectronic copies (PDF and Auto CAD format) of all approved improvement plans, ]
studies and reports (i.e. hydrology, traffic, WQMP, etc.).

Last Revised 8/15/2019 Page 12 of 14

Item D - 27 of 39



Project File No.TM 20198/PMTT18-007
Project Engineer: Tricia Espinoza
Date: September 4, 2019

EXHIBIT ‘A’

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
First Plan Check Submittal Checklist

Project Number: PMTT 18-007 / Tract Map No. 20198
The following items are required to be included with the first plan check submittal:
1. X A copy of this check list
2. [X Payment of fee for Plan Checking
3. [X] One (1) copy of Engineering Cost Estimate (on City form) with engineer's wet signature and stamp.
4. One (1) copy of project Conditions of Approval

5. [J Two (2) sets of Potable and Recycled Water demand calculations (include water demand calculations showing
low, average and peak water demand in GPM for the proposed development and proposed water meter size).

6. [X Three (3) sets of Public Street improvement plan with street cross-sections
T Three (3) sets of Private Street improvement plan with street cross-sections

8. [X Four (4) sets of Public Water improvement plan (include water demand calculations showing low,
average and peak water demand in GPM for the proposed development and proposed water meter size)

9. [ Four (4) sets of Recycled Water improvement plan (include recycled water demand calculations showing low,
average and peak water demand in GPM for the proposed development and proposed water meter size and an
exhibit showing the limits of areas being irrigated by each recycled water meter)

10. [X] Four (4) sets of Public Sewer improvement plan

11. O Five (5) sets of Public Storm Drain improvement plan

12. Three (3) sets of Public Street Light improvement plan

13. X Three (3) sets of Signing and Striping improvement plan

14. Three (3) sets of Fiber Optic plan (include Auto CAD electronic submittal)

15. [ Three (3) sets of Dry Utility plans within public right-of-way (at a minimum the plans must show existing and
ultimate right-of-way, curb and gutter, proposed utility location including centerline dimensions, wall to wall
clearances between proposed utility and adjacent public line, street work repaired per Standard Drawing No. 1306.

Include Auto CAD electronic submittal)

16. [ Three (3) sets of Traffic Signal improvement plan and One (1) copy of Traffic Signal Specifications with modified
Special Provisions. Please contact the Traffic Division at (909) 395-2154 to obtain Traffic Signal Specifications.

17. X Two (2) copies of Water Quality Management Plan (WQMP), including one (1) copy of the approved
Preliminary WQMP (PWQMP).

18. One (1) copy of Hydrology/Drainage study
19. ] One (1) copy of Soils/Geology report
20. [X] Payment for Final Map/Parcel Map processing fee

21. [X Three (3) copies of Final Map/Parcel Map

Last Revised 8/15/2019 Page 13 of 14

Item D - 28 of 39



Project File No.TM 20198/PMTT18-007
Project Engineer: Tricia Espinoza
Date: September 4, 2019

22. [X] One (1) copy of approved Tentative Map

23. X One (1) copy of Preliminary Title Report (current within 30 days)

24. [{ One (1) copy of Traverse Closure Calculations

25. X One (1) set of supporting documents and maps (legible copies): referenced improvement pians (full
size), referenced record final maps/parcel maps (full size, 18”x26"), Assessor’s Parcel map (full size,

117x17"), recorded documents such as deeds, lot line adjustments, easements, etc.

26. [ Two (2) copies of Engineering Report and an electronic file (include PDF format electronic submittal) for recycled
water use

27. [0 Other:

Last Revised 8/15/2019 Page 14 of 14

Item D - 29 of 39



AIRPORT LAND USE CoMPATIBILITY PLANNING ONTARI@—’

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION REPORT

AIRPORT PLANNING

Project File No.: PMTT18-007

Reviewed By:

Address: 991 and 1103 South Benson Avenue

Lorena Mejia

APN: 1011-431-01 & 1011-521-06

Contact Info:

Existing Land  Single Family Homes

909-395-2276

Use:

Project Planner:
Proposed Land Subdivide 9.57 acres into 18 numbered lots for residential purposes Luis Batres
Use:

6/11/18

Site Acreage:  9.57 ac
ONT-IAC Project Review: n/a

Proposed Structure Height: N/A

Date:
CD No. 2018-032

Airport Influence Area: ONT

PALU No.: 1Va

Safety Noise Impact

O 75+ dB CNEL

O 70 - 75 dB CNEL

O 65 - 70 dB CNEL

[] 60 - 65 4B CNEL

The project is impacted by the following ONT ALUCP Compatibility Zones:

Airspace Protection Overflight Notification
Avigation Easement

O High Terrain Zone A
Dedication

FAA Notification Surfaces Recorded Overflight

. Notification
Airspace Obstruction
Surfaces Real Estate Transaction

Disclosure
Airspace Avigation
Easement Area

Allowable
Height: 200ft+

Allowable Height:

O Zone 3 O Zone 4

O Zone 5

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION

O Zone 6

This proposed Project is: DExempt from the ALUCP

DConsistent @ Consistent with Conditions Dlnconsistent

for ONT.

See Attached Condition

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP)

O iy~

Airport Planner Signature:

Page 1 Form Updated: March 3, 2016

Item D - 30 of 39



AIRPORT LAND Use CompaTiiLiTY Pianning  EEEEES

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION REPORT EALLNo:

ProJect CONDITIONS

New Residential land uses are required to have a Recorded Overflight Notification appearing on the Property Deed
and Title incorporating the following language:

(NOTICE OF AIRPORT IN VICINITY: This property is presently located in the vicinity of an airport, within what is
known as an airport influence area. For that reason, the property may be subject to some of the annoyances or
inconveniences associated with proximity to airport operations (for example: noise, vibration, or odors). Individual
sensitivities to those annoyances can vary from person to person. You may wish to consider what airport annoyances,
if any, are associated with the property before you complete your purchase and determine whether they are acceptable
to you.)

Page 2 Form Updated: March 3, 2016
Iltem D - 31 of 39



CITY OF ONTARIO
MEMORANDUM

TO:
FROM:
DATE:

SUBJECT:

PLANNING DEPARTMENT, Luis Batres
BUILDING DEPARTMENT, Kevin Shear
May 14, 2018
PMTT18-007

) The plan does adequately address the departmental concerns at this time.

O
J

No comments

Report below.

Conditions of Approval

1. Standard Conditions of Approval apply.

KS:1m

Item D - 32 of 39



CITY OF ONTARIO
MEMORANDUM

TO: Luis Batres, Senior Planner
Planning Department

FROM: Paul Ehrman, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal
Fire Department

DATE: April 7, 2019

SUBJECT: PMTTI18-007- A Tentative Tract Map to subdivide 9.57 acres of land into
18 single family lots, located at 991 and 1103 South Benson, within the AR-
2 (Agriculture Residential). APN's 1011-431-01 and 1011-521-06.
(Revision 1)

X The plan does adequately address Fire Department requirements at this time.

(X] Standard Conditions of Approval apply. See previous report for Conditions

Item D - 33 of 39



CITY OF ONTARIO
MEMORANDUM

TO: Luis Batres, Senior Planner
Planning Department

FROM: Paul Ehrman, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal
Fire Department

DATE: May 17, 2018

SUBJECT:

PMTT18-007- A Tentative Tract Map to subdivide 9.57 acres of land into

18 single family lots, located at 991 and 1103 South Benson, within the
AR-2 (Agriculture Residential). APN's 1011-431-01 and 1011-521-06

XI The plan does adequately address Fire Department requirements at this time.

Standard Conditions of Approval apply, as stated below.

SITE AND BUILDING FEATURES:

A. 2013 CBC Type of Construction: Type V-B Wood Frame
B.

L.

Type of Roof Materials: Non-rated
Ground Floor Area(s): Varies
Number of Stories: Single Story
Total Square Footage: Varies

2013 CBC Occupancy Classification(s): R-3

Item D - 34 of 39



1.0

X 1.1

2.0

X 2.1

X 2.2

X 2.3

X 2.7

3.0

i 3.1

X 3.2

X 3.4

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL:

GENERAL

The following are the Ontario Fire Department (“Fire Department™) requirements for this
development project, based on the current edition of the California Fire Code (CFC), and the
current versions of the Fire Prevention Standards (“Standards.”) It is recommended that the
applicant or developer transmit a copy of these requirements to the on-site contractor(s) and
that all questions or concerns be directed to the Bureau of Fire Prevention, at (909) 395-2029.
For copies of Ontario Fire Department Standards please access the City of Ontario web site at
www.ontarioca.gov, click on “Fire Department” and then on “Standards and Forms.”

These Fire Department conditions of approval are to be included on any and all construction
drawings.

FIRE DEPARTMENT ACCESS

Fire Department vehicle access roadways shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all portions of
the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved. Roadways
shall be paved with an all-weather surface and shall be a minimum of twenty-four (24) ft. wide.
See Standard #B-004.

In order to allow for adequate turning radius for emergency fire apparatus, all turns shall be
designed to meet the minimum twenty five feet (25°) inside and forty-five feet (45°) outside
turning radius per Standard #B-005.

Fire Department access roadways that exceed one hundred and fifty feet (150°) in length shall
have an approved turn-around per Standard #B-002.

Any time PRIOR to on-site combustible construction and/or storage, a minimum twenty-six
(26) ft. wide circulating all weather access roads shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all
portions of the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved by
fire department and other emergency services.

WATER SUPPLY

The required fire flow per Fire Department standards, based on the 2016 California Fire Code,
Appendix B, is 1500 gallons per minute (g.p.m.) for 2 hours at a minimum of 20 pounds per
square inch (p.s.i.) residual operating pressure.

Off-site (public) fire hydrants are required to be installed on all frontage streets, at a minimum
spacing of three hundred foot (300”) apart, per Engineering Department specifications.

The public water supply, including water mains and fire hydrants, shall be tested and approved
by the Engineering Department and Fire Department prior to combustible construction to
assure availability and reliability for firefighting purposes.

}tg}r}D -350f 39



4.0 FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS

X 4.3 An automatic fire sprinkler system is required. The system design shall be in accordance with
National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Standard 13 D. All new fire sprinkler systems,
except those in single family dwellings, which contain twenty (20) sprinkler heads or more
shall be monitored by an approved listed supervising station. An application along with
detailed plans shall be submitted, and a construction permit shall be issued by the Fire
Department, prior to any work being done.

5.0 BUILDING CONSTRUCTION FEATURES

5.1 The developer/general contractor is to be responsible for reasonable periodic cleanup of the
development during construction to avoid hazardous accumulations of combustible trash and
debris both on and off the site.

i 5.2 Approved numbers or addresses shall be placed on all new and existing buildings in such a
position as to be plainly visible and legible from the street or road fronting the property. Homes
that do not front street shall be provided with an address entry sign at the street. Address
numbers shall contrast with their background. See Section 9-1 6.06 of the Ontario Municipal
Code and Standards #H-003 and #H-002.

[X] 5.3 Single station smoke alarms and carbon monoxide alarms are required to be installed per the
California Building Code and the California Fire Code.

BJ 5.5 All residential chimneys shall be equipped with an approved spark arrester meeting the
requirements of the California Building Code.

I}eor}l _P - 36 of 39



CITY OF ONTARIO
MEMORANDUM

TO: Hassan Haghani, Development Director
Scott Murphy, Assistant Development Director (Copy of Memo only)
Cathy Wahlstrom, Principal Planner {Copy of memo only)
Charity Hernandez, Economic Development
Kevin Shear, Building Official
Khoi Do, Assistant City Engineer
Carolyn Bell, Landscape Planning Division
Ahmed Aly, Municipal Utility Company
Doug Sorel, Police Department
Paul Ehrman, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal
Jay Bautista, T. E., Traffic/Transportation Manager
Lorena Msjia, Senior Planner
Steve Wilscn, Engineering/NPDES
Joe De Sousa, Code Enforcement (Copy of memo only)
Jimmy Chang , IT Department
David Simpson, IT Department (Copy of memo only)

FROM: Luis Batres, Senior Planner
DATE: May 09, 2018
SUBJECT: FILE # PMTT18-007 Finance Acct#:

The following project has been submitted for review. Please send one (1) copy and email one (1) copy of
your DAB report to the Planning Department by Wednesday, May 23, 2018.
Note: [ ] Oniy DAB action is required

M Both DAB and Planning Commission actions are required

D Only Planning Commission action is required

D DAB, Planning Commission and City Council actions are required

[T] Only Zoning Administrator action is required

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: A Tentative Tract Map to subdivide 8.57 acres of land into 18 single family
lots, located at 991 and 1103 South Benson, within the AR-2 (Agriculture Residential).
APN's 1011-431-01 and 1011-521-06
ErThe plan does adequately address the departmental concerns at this time.
] No comments
[T] Report attached (1 copy and email 1 copy)

Jﬂ Standard Conditions of Approval apply

E] The plan does not adequately address the departmental concemns.

[] The conditions contained in the attached report must be met prior to scheduling for
Development Advisory Board.

m ! 5,{; ﬁa;‘,‘,atd
Douviea Bonns S 7 Ms’? Y u—/f
Department Signature Title * Date

Item D - 37 of 39



CITY OF ONTARIO
MEMORANDUM

TO: Scott Murphy, Development Director
Cathy Wahlstrom, Planning Director
Diane Ayala, Advanced Planning Division
Charity Hernandez, Economic Development
Kevin Shear, Building Official
Khoi Do, Assistant City Engineer
Carolyn Bell, Landscape Planning Division
Ahmed Aly, Municipal Utility Company
Doug Sorel, Police Department
Paul Ehrman, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal
Jay Bautista, T. E., Traffic/Transportation Manager
Lorena Mejia, Aiport Planning
Steve Wilson, Engineering/NPDES
Joe De Sousa, Code Enforcement (Copy of memo only)
Jimmy Chang , IT Department

FROM: Luis Batres, Senior Planner
DATE: August 15, 2018
SUBJECT: FILE #: PMTT18-007 Finance Acct#:

The following project has been resubmitted for review. Please send one (1) copy and email one (1) copy
of your DAB report to the Planning Department by Wednesday, August 29, 2018.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: A Tentative Tract Map to subdivide 9.57 acres of land into 18 single family
lots, located at 991 and 1103 South Benson, within the AR-2 (Residential-Agriculture - 0 to 2.0 DU/Acre)
zoning district (APN's 1011-431-01 and 1011-521-08).
m The plan does adequately address the departmental concerns at this time.

|:] No comments

E] See previous report for Conditions

E] Report attached (1 copy and email 1 copy)

M Standard Conditions of Approval apply

[[] The plan does not adequately address the departmental concerns.

|:| The conditions contained in the attached report must be met prior to scheduling for
Development Advisory Board.

Mt%"f“”‘*‘k WW 4@&« Vﬂw 8/21//¢

Department Signature Title Date

Iltem D - 38 of 39



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

CITY OF ONTARIO T
LANDSCAPE PLANNING DIVISION | s
303 East “B” Street, Ontario, CA 91764 C Jamie Richa;ézo;. Sr.Landscape Planner | OTHD%EO‘Q B
e e o B N TH e
Jamie Richardson. Sr. Landscape Planner _ - (909) 395-2615
D.A.B. File No.: h Related Files: - Case Planner:

- PMTT18-007 Rev 3 Luis Batres

Project Name and Location:
- 18 Single Family Homes
991 and 1103 South Benson
AppliéénURepresentative:
TK Management
449 W Foothill Bivd
Glendora, CA 91741

[<] | A Tentative Tract Map (06/19/2019) has been approved with the consideration that the
following conditions below be met upon submittal of the landscape construction
documents.

[] | A Tentative Tract Map () has not been approved. Corrections noted below are required
prior to DAB approval.

CORRECTIONS REQUIRED

On Construction plans:

1. Show storm water swales proposed in landscape areas to avoid street tree root zone 10’
clear 30’ oc. Not completed, show infiltration swales in sections to allow a level 10’
space 30’oc for street trees in amended soil, not in the infiltration trench. 07/15/2019
Not complete; show and callout on plan.

2. Relocate utilities to min. clearances to allow parkway trees spaced 30’ apart with a 10’ clear
tree space, 5’ clearance each side of tree from any utility or hardscape including water,
sewer, drain lines and driveways; and min. 10’ clear from street lights. 07/15/2019 Not
complete; adjust utilities to provide required trees.

3. Show transformers located in planter areas, and set back 3’ from paving for small
transformers less than 4’ high and 5’ setback for large transformer greater than 4’ high.
Locate on level grade. Coordinate with landscape plans. 07/15/2019 Not complete; show
transformers on plan in appropriate locations.

4. Show walls and detail to screen adjacent cul-de-sacs in the front yards of lots 14 & 15.

5. Provide HOA or CC&R with instructions to maintain infiltration trenches. 07/15/2019 Not
complete.

6. Landscape and irrigation shall meet the requirements of the Landscape Development
Guidelines. See http://www.ontarioca.gov/landscape-planning/standards

7. Replace high maintenance and poor performing plants.

8. After a project's entitlement approval, the applicant shall pay all applicable fees at a rate
established by resolution of the City Council. Typical fees are:

Plan Check—>5 OF MOre ACreS ...c.cecveeereeeeeerieeeercceesssecnsens $2,326.00
Inspection—Construction (up to 3 inspections) .........ccceeueeeee. $278.00
DB s i s mans s samenmnns aensm e e A e S $2,604.00

Item D - 39 of 39



Development Advisory Board Decision
September 4, 2019

DECISION NO.: [insert #]
FILE NO.: PDEV18-006
DESCRIPTION: A Development Plan for the construction of an 88-Unit apartment complex on 3.5

acres of land located south of Sixth Street and west of the San Bernardino County Flood Control Channel,
at 1402 North Virginia Avenue, within the HDR-45 (High Density Residential - 25.1 to 45.0 DU/Acre) zoning
district; (APNs: 1047-432-22 & 1047-443-01) submitted by SC Property Fund LLC. Planning
Commission action is required.

Part —BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS

SC PROPERTY FUND, LLC, (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an application
requesting Development Plan approval, File No. PDEV18-006, as described in the subject of this Decision
(herein after referred to as "Application” or "Project").

Q) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of 3.5 acres of land located south of Sixth
Street and west of the San Bernardino County Flood Control Channel, at 1402 North Virginia Avenue, and
is depicted in Exhibit A: Aerial Photograph, attached. The site is irregular in shape, with a lot depth of 792
feet and a lot width of 280 feet. Existing land uses, General Plan and zoning designations, and specific plan
land uses on and surrounding the project site are as follows:

- General Plan . . . Specific Plan
Existing Land Use Designation Zoning Designation Lame Use
Site: Vacant HDR HDR-45 n/a
San Bernardino
North: | County Flood Control n/a n/a n/a
Channel

South: I-10 Freeway n/a n/a n/a
East: Single el HDR HDR-45 n/a

Residential
West: (T ety MDR HDR-45 n/a

Residential

(2) Project Description: The Applicant is requesting Development Plan approval to construct

an 88-Unit apartment complex (Virginia Avenue Apartments) in a mix of three and four-story building
configurations. Staff has worked with the applicant to design a project that reflects the development
standards and design guidelines of the HDR-45 zoning (High Density Residential - 25.1 to 45.0 DU/Acre)
district, and the goals and policies of The Ontario Plan (TOP), as they relate to the High Density Residential
land use district.

(a) Site Plan— The project proposes ten residential buildings and four garage
buildings distributed around centralized common open space and recreation amenities, at a density of 25.1

Page 1

ltem E - 1 of 64



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-006
September 4, 2019

dwellings per acre. Apartment units will be accessed via interior corridors, which are accessible via stairs
and/or elevators, and units range from 774 to 1,102 square feet in size. Building functions are as follows:

Buildings 1, 3, 5, and 11 will consist of enclosed garages, housing 34 parking spaces
Buildings 2 and 6 are composed of eight two bedroom units, with 18 tuck-under garage spaces
Building 4 is composed of 32 one-bedroom units in a stacked-flats configuration

Building 7 is composed of four one-bedroom units, with seven tuck-under garage units
Building 8 is composed of four two-bedroom units, with nine tuck-under garage units

Building 9 is composed of 32 two-bedroom units in a stacked-flat configuration

A 2,025 square-foot, one-story Club House is proposed at the center of the site. The Club House will include
approximately 11,134 square feet of active area. Proposed recreational amenities include an exercise room,
lounge area/multi-purpose room, kitchen, restrooms, leasing office, covered walkways, fireplace, outdoor
showers, and storage space (see Exhibit B—Site Plan).

(b) Site Access/Circulation— A San Bernardino County Flood Control Channel
borders the project site on the east and Interstate 10 (I-10) borders the site on the west, restricting street
access to the site; however, a 35-foot wide access easement has been obtained by the applicant from the
County of San Bernardino Flood Control District to provide access to the site from Sixth Street. Access will
be provided along the northwest portion of the development. The access easement will be improved with a
5-foot wide landscape planter, a two-way 26-foot wide drive aisle and a 4-foot wide sidewalk.

(c) Parking— Off-street parking in the form of garage spaces and uncovered surface
parking is distributed throughout the project site. A total of 188 off-street parking spaces are required for
the project. The Ontario Development Code requires that the project provide off-street parking at the rate
of 1.75 spaces per dwelling unit for one-bedroom units (with one covered space), two spaces per dwelling
unit for two-bedroom units (with one covered space), and one guest parking space for every five dwelling
units. The proposed project provides 88 garage parking spaces and 100 uncovered parking spaces for
resident parking, and 18 guest parking spaces, meeting the minimum parking requirement for the project.

(d) Architecture— The project proposes a contemporary architectural design with
Spanish Colonial influences, exemplifying the type of high-quality architecture promoted by the
Development Code and TOP vision (See Figure 1: Club House Front Elevation & Exhibits F to Z-1: Building
Elevations). The mass and scale of the buildings are designed to be proportionate to the site, open space,
and scale of the neighborhood. Special attention was given to the colors, materials, massing, building form,
and architectural details. This is exemplified though the use of:

Articulation in the building’s roof lines

Concrete S-tile roof

Stone veneer

Smooth plaster

A hump and bump stucco finish at key architectural areas

Decorative powder coated wrought iron work at key insets, windows, balconies and garage units
Decorative window shutters at key locations

Arched and round elements

Shaped corbels

Decorative trims at windows and doors

Decorative sconce lighting fixtures

Decorative red clay barrel accent pipes along the front of the gabled roofs
Decorative Mexican tiles along key architectural elements

Cantilever architectural elements

Incorporation of a color pallet appropriate to the proposed architecture

Page 2

ltem E - 2 of 64



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-006
September 4, 2019

(D2 (2)2, (3, { ;%ﬁﬁ?ﬁg?{ﬂ&‘s P |
el TR .
e —n T A e e T T, g
ITi Ty} "I‘LT‘IT'
__.j byl $ ]_TII 'FFI'.JI_ JNTAT)
//Z’rltz\ s ¢/ ==
W

Figure 1: Club House Front Elevation

(e) Landscaping—The project exceeds the minimum landscape requirements
established by the Development Code. The project provides a minimum of 60 square feet of private open
space per unit, in the form of private balconies, and 257 square feet of common open space for each unit.
Common open space (totaling 22,621 square feet) is provided by the Club House (2,462 square feet), a
20-foot X 40-foot swimming pool, 27-foot X 50-foot basketball court, and spa. Other outdoor amenities
include covered patios, BBQ areas, tables and benches, children’s play equipment , and outdoor
workout/health equipment (see Exhibit E—Landscape Plan, Exhibit E1—Club House Landscaping and
Exhibit E2—Basketball Court Area, attached).

In addition, the project will provide a 10-foot wide landscape setback along the west property line, a 16.5-
foot wide landscape setback along the south property line (adjacent to Interstate 10), a 5-foot wide
landscape setback along the east property line and a 5-foot wide landscape setback along the northwest
property line (adjacent to the flood control channel). Furthermore, the project will provide landscaping
throughout the interior area of the parking lot. The plant pallet will consist of a mix of shade trees, ground
cover and shrubs. At key areas of the project, accent planting is featured, including Date Palms, California
Sycamore, Tipu Tree, Maiden Hair Tree, Strawberry Tree, Western Redbud, Crape Myrtle, Olive Tree,
African Sumac, Australian Willow, and Brisbane Box.

) Utilities— Public utilities (water and sewer) are available to serve the project.
Additionally, the applicant has submitted a Preliminary Water Quality Management Plan (PWQMP), which
establishes the project’s compliance with storm water discharge/water quality requirements. The PWQMP
includes site design measures that capture runoff and pollutant transport by minimizing impervious
surfaces, and maximizes low impact development (LID) best management practices (BMPs), such as
retention and infiltration, bio treatment, and evapotranspiration. The PWQMP proposes to install infiltration
chambers under the parking lot areas and within the large common open space areas.

Part -RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public
Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to a categorical exemption (listed in CEQA
Guidelines Article 19, commencing with Section 15300) and the application of that categorical exemption
is not barred by one of the exceptions set forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development
Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and make recommendations to the
Planning Commission on the subject Application; and

Page 3

Iltem E - 3 of 64



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-006
September 4, 2019

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development;
and

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing
Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and
policies of the Housing Element; and

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport,
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is
subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport
Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County,
and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport
activity; and

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such
notifications and procedures have been completed; and

WHEREAS, on September 41, 2019, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the
Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred.

Part 1Il—THE DECISION

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory
Board of the City of Ontario, as follows:

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the recommending body for the
Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the administrative record for
the Project. Based upon the facts and information contained in the administrative record, including all written
and oral evidence presented to the DAB, the DAB finds as follows:

(1) The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill Development Projects) of the CEQA
Guidelines, and is consistent with the following conditions:

= The Project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and all applicable general
plan policies, as well as the applicable zoning designation and regulations

= The proposed development occurs within city limits, on a project site of no more than five acres,
and is substantially surrounded by urban uses

= The project site has no value as habitat for endangered, rare, or threatened species

= Approval of the Project will not result in any significant effects relating to traffic, noise, air quality,
or water quality

= The Project site can be adequately served by all required utilities and public services

(2) The application of the categorical exemption is not barred by one of the exceptions set
forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and

3) The determination of CEQA exemption reflects the independent judgment of the DAB.

Page 4

Iltem E - 4 of 64



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-006
September 4, 2019

SECTION 2:  Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California
Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the recommending body
for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and
supporting documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan. The project site is one of the
properties listed in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area)
of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix, and the proposed project is consistent with the number
of dwelling units (88) and density (25.1 DU/Acre) specified in the Available Land Inventory.

SECTION 3:  Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (“*ALUCP")
Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 et seq.) requires
that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use airports in the State; and requires
that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth
in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of Ontario
approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility Plan (*“ALUCP”),
establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport (“ONT”), which encompasses lands
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and
development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and
overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As the recommending body for the Project, the DAB
has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting
documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2)
and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP
Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP
Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when implemented in
conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within
the ALUCP.

SECTION 4: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the specific findings set forth in Sections 1
through 4, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows:

(1) The proposed development at the proposed location is consistent with the goals,
policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities
components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed Project is located within the HDR (High Density
Residential) land use district of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and the HDR-45 (High Density Residential
- 25.1 to 45.0 DU/Acre) zoning district. The development standards and conditions under which the
proposed Project will be constructed and maintained, is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and
exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario
Plan. In addition, the proposed development will comply with all the Development Guidelines of the HDR-
45 zone, and is not requesting any Variances; and

(2) The proposed development is compatible with those on adjoining sites in relation to
location of buildings, with particular attention to privacy, views, any physical constraint identified
on the site and the characteristics of the area in which the site is located. The Project has been
designed consistent with the requirements of the City of Ontario Development Code and the HDR-45 (High
Density Residential - 25.1 to 45.0 DU/Acre) zoning district, including standards relative to the particular land
use proposed (88-unit multiple-family residential), as-well-as building intensity, building and parking
setbacks, building height, number of off-street parking and loading spaces, on-site and off-site landscaping,
and fences, walls and obstructions. Approval of the project will result in the development of an 88-unit
residential apartment complex on 3.5 acres. The project will include full on-site and off-site improvements
that will also improve the immediate area. In addition, the density proposed of 25.1 units per acre is
consistent with the minimum density requirement of the HDR-45 zone; and

Page 5

Iltem E - 5 of 64



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-006
September 4, 2019

3) The proposed development will complement and/or improve upon the quality of
existing development in the vicinity of the project and the minimum safeguards necessary to protect
the public health, safety and general welfare have been required of the proposed project. The
Development Advisory Board has required certain safeguards, and impose certain conditions of approval,
which have been established to ensure that: [i] the purposes of the Development Code are maintained; [ii]
the project will not endanger the public health, safety or general welfare; [iii] the project will not result in any
significant environmental impacts; [iv] the project will be in harmony with the area in which it is located; and
[v] the project will be in full conformity with the Vision, City Council Priorities and Policy Plan components
of The Ontario Plan. In addition, the project includes full on-site and off-site improvements and the project
will improve the quality of the existing site. In addition, the proposed project will provide much needed
housing which will also allow the City to comply with our Housing Element housing needs; and

4) The proposed development is consistent with the development standards and
design guidelines set forth in the Development Code, or applicable specific plan or planned unit
development. The proposed Project has been reviewed for consistency with the general development
standards and guidelines of the Development Code that are applicable to the proposed Project, including
building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, amount of off-street parking and loading
spaces, parking lot dimensions, design and landscaping, bicycle parking, on-site landscaping, and fences
and walls, as-well-as those development standards and guidelines specifically related to the particular land
use being proposed (88-Unit Multi-family Residential). As a result of this review, the Development Advisory
Board has determined that the Project, when implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval,
will be consistent with the development standards and guidelines described in the Development Code.

SECTION5: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions
set forth in Sections 1 through 4, above, the DAB hereby recommends the Planning Commission
APPROVES the Application subject to each and every condition set forth in the Department reports included
as Attachment A of this Decision, and incorporated herein by this reference.

SECTION 6: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold
harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding,
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense.

SECTION 7:  Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 4th day of September, 2019.

Development Advisory Board Chairman

Page 6

Iltem E - 6 of 64



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-006
September 4, 2019

Exhibit A—AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH

. e-:._[-i:_irt_'n:fr Shop;} Eie

&- GYOne Products, Inc
a

e any . eiuBi A

Flood Control
Channel

=
. [p)
G
‘o
<l
@
=
@

@Farks.idf;. Dr g

-

Andy;s Market

Page 7
Iltem E - 7 of 64



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-006
September 4, 2019

Exhibit B—SITE PLAN

-
-

asnam
SIXTH STREET

AT |08 AT TR |

&

35" WIDE EASEMENT

SPS X 5% =

18P |1 WAN| 25PE 1 VAN

B0 ASSIGNED

75 5PS X 5% = 4 SPACES 4 5PE [2WAN)|

TRACT NO, 6745
ME 855657

PTG PEZEATE WATE & R AIRIMATIRR ST IACEALOCE B W ¢

Virginia Ave. Apartments

88 UNIT APARTMENT HOMES

10

FREEMZAY

PARKING SPACE SIZES:

ALL DFEN MOMN-HANDICAR BARKING SPACTE
SHALL BE 9"WIDE BY 18’ DEER WITH WHESL
TIPS WHEN PARKING SPACES ARS ADIACENT

TO UALKMAYS

ALL GARAGES SHALL BE 10° WiDE &Y 2 GEEP

OPEN SPACE ANALYSIS

PRIVATE OPEN SPACE RECUIRED:
A8 DL X 6] 5F/DL

PRPVATE OPEN SPACE PROVIDED

COMMON DPEN SPACE RECUIRED:
R D X 25D FS OO0

COMMON OMEN SPACE PROVIDRD:

TOTAL PRIVATE & COMMON
{OPEN SPACE RECHIIRED:
S2R0GF * 2200055

TOTAL FRIVATE & COMMON
OFEN SPACE PROVIDED:
SRS+ 2ATE2EE,

5280 5.F

T3PM IR

22,000 5.F,

FERL RS

27,280 5.F,

3Z0ATSF.

Page 8

Iltem E - 8 of 64



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-006
September 4, 2019

Exhibit C—SITE PLAN ENLARGMENT (1 OF 2)

BULLING 2

KEY MAP

PROPERETY LINE

S
! 4 d
» e @
PR

= Virginia Ave. Apartments SITE PLAN

Page 9

Iltem E - 9 of 64



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-006
September 4, 2019

Exhibit D—SITE PLAN ENLARGMENT (2 OF 2)

104

ACCESS ROAD

FLOS CONTROL
EASEME]

a
=
o+
3
N
=
¥+
9

o
wu
i
~
™
=
Ed

766" [FT366 CALD)

10
FREEWAY

MATCH LINE A

i

KEY MAP

B

Page 10

Iltem E - 10 of 64



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-006
September 4, 2019

[ —— Emerwee Rk T
[T E——
* [e——— e G
[T
[ — bt s e
g by iR
formyt Vb B Tow gt
—_— ety i e—
-r
e -~ T R —
e et b
—— = uE e
Ao Tam e e BRS
- 4 =
Dan s e, 38
rutne st b P [P p—
e ol =T -
— - -t
i
@ v s
T o amn.
O e - “— —

i

i
[
i
!
I
I

g
HUY

g
:Hi{"{

e e bl

Exhibit E—LANDSCAPE PLAN

[
f
N

5 HIGH WROUGHT
c

s P e i

VIRGINIA AVE APARTMENTS BGEs:sicn

‘Sawhers Canfames)

= — ONTARIO, CA meeam Landscape Concept Plan L—1m

Page 11

ltem E - 11 of 64



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-006
September 4, 2019

Exhibit E1—CLUB HOUSE LANDSCAPING

Page 12

ltem E - 12 of 64



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-006
September 4, 2019

Exhibit E2—BASKETBALL COURT AREA LANDSCAPING

EBC PROFE
CHO INVE!
LS Bondt
La Werne, {
Contact: M
{626) 255~

hdichac] W
GO0 W, San
Placentia, {
{349) 566~

Page 13

ltem E - 13 of 64



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-006
September 4, 2019

Exhibit F—BUILDING 10 ELEVATIONS

L 2 CLAT ROUND TES
- ¥ PROJECTION

e 3 CLAY ROUND TILES -
IS FRATAATEY FYATeY AT TSR ST R T A - [ i gL (EERCEEEEE T A fEE — i::fr:wmn -
i T I Wi POwDER- (I LA o CONCRETE 5" T2
i T ATl iadl oA b ]ri-ﬂ . i t i ~— BHAPED CORBEL
1R Thotd T2, . | EXTERICR PLASTER

e RMOOTH ENTRRIOR
’(__.—' PLASTER OWER SHAPED
e

™ e =y
e SHAPED % %: 3% D %E ~— SHARED ? HDDDD
CORAB. CORBEL
| o oag a a oo o [adi=] %
P abArE

— e FLUSH MEXICAN CERAMIC

° T B —
——— RMOCTH EXTERIOR
S— PLASTER OVER WOOD
WITH 'wmr.tw.'-.e
WEST ELEVATION SOUTH ELEVATION EAST ELEVATION DRIVEWAY [NORTH] ELEVATION
ARCHITECTURAL STYLE: SPANISH
COLOMIAL

14 21 12
SHAPED CORBEL
e - . —]-— % . _ _EcoeouTNE
— 2 I T
CONCRETE S TRE —_ | =
e | DO NORAGE FIDCF STORA |
R A [ S S —
BUILDING QUTIINE —-_ ! | |
+
]
ROOF OUTLINE — \ | |
T
]
- 4] - | | Ly
£ < a > - GABAGE! EARAGED bid
] i i A
| | |
]
] .
: | 1051 10% |
1
5 | |
NOTE i .
1. POOF MATERMAL 153 CONCRETE "5 TRE ,__: - | [
e ]
- - = . - =
1. ROOFPITCHE 412 T
|

ROOF PLAN FLOOR PLAN @

Page 14

ltem E - 14 of 64



Development Advisory Board Decision

File No. PDEV18-006
September 4, 2019

Exhibit G—ELEVATIONS BLD. 1,3 & 11

EAST ELEVATION

WEST ELEVATION
(OPPOSITE HAND)

3 CIRCLEAR PIPES

18X 36" % 3°
DEE® REVEAL
WITH PCARDER-
COATED
WROUEHT
RO TREM TYP,

T T e e e T T e e e T e
LE kil
riyied bl yibyied 1 il
: AR
[ ] ] ] | m| ] ] m| a
a o

12X 12" 3" DEEF REVEAL
WITH POWDER COATED
WROLIGHT IRON TRIV TP

S

- T 1T TR T T Ta FEATF T T eI X AW TN T TR T TR TN LT WAT T i P FSTEARTR AT SHTRNY AL WL '—‘.'I‘
L I ] i byl Al T T I F il Andiy Iy
iyl = e i i It
Al - Lak ki ik s
1 s o I -
= f— p— p— = ’ ~
E |- r— pr— [r— [r— r— | [ — pr— r— | [ r—t—
i 1l i
- [
—— =
-I- TI[I II.HH-IJ T;T " [=] (&) ;;T I-P
—i— | e ) ] e e e e
.,
a2 | -
nr-———"—""—"—" "~~~ —— — — T
IR STORAGE IUCF STORAGE 70 L. STORAGE I3 CF STORAGH 05 STORAGE INCE STORAGE LICF STORAG

24

GARAGE | GARAGE 2 GAAAGE] GAWGE4 GARAGES GARMGES GARAGE T GARMGE S
it o o) [ Haa L e

Virginia Ave. Apartments

—

REAR VIEW

_—~—CONCRETE 37 TILE

FHAPED CORBEL
EXTERIOR PLASTER
SMOOTH EXTERICR
PLAZTER OWER SHAPED
FOAM PLASTIC TRIM

== FLLISH MEXICAR CERAMIC
mE

RMOOTH EXTERIOR
PLASTER OVER WOOGO
FRAMED WAMNIIOT

e RLLAP GARAGE DOCE

WITH WINDONWS

DRIVEWAY VIEW

®

FLOOR PLAN

L W= g (AR GARAGE

PLAN
BLDGS. 1,3 & 11

Page 15

ltem E - 15 of 64



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-006
September 4, 2019

Exhibit H—BUILDING 5 ELEVATIONS

3 CLAY FOUD TILES - I
3" PROJECTTON -
1875 54" X 5°

WROUGHT
RO TRIM TYP,

TRASH
EMCLOSURE

NORTHWEST ELEVATION SOUTHEAST ELEVATION

—

- . S T R T T T e e e R B TR
ol i1 i i ‘wﬁ i iy ﬁﬂ" m
I T ] I i kA 1) ity !
R pkydated i i ki rkyiad 1) | i A by Lak
by i LN 14 Trir i) 1 ks 1 T i 1 b4 i
m| | u [m] [ :“: [ I:l: O = .
5] ool oo oo EE oo o

NORTHEAST ELEVATION /Wi PR, CoATE

; WROUGHT [ROM TRIW TP,
o e

L S NP—— S A il BT—
m f Hgﬂmw’% ,ﬁ; i ity o iRi i ks i I :-lﬁ ﬂ_ i
LB ;_,./'\‘\.\_) = i BTl KRR TR A 1 AT AT oo —
rd7 ik piia) brial shriv & ki ph i I ksl riripl i i -m/ bkl Rk riTdsksii
b sl i Fadid iy by ki) fdishirin plky A e Lua ad sl b Al ik i
] — — —_—l
R R e e e e
E [E] EE & EE o & EE al
| I | — e S | S— | I | — ! S| S— | =1
DRIVEWAY (SOUTHWEST) ELEVATION
TR
e e e e e e
| 0 CF STORAGE I78 CF. STORAG n STORMGE I CF IMORAGE T4 CF, 5TOR i TORASE IT0CF STORAGE T3 CF.STCRA |
| WL CARAGE | HICTARGE 2 GARAGE GARAGET GAZAES GARAGES GARAGES GAZAGET GARAGE B | ey
| i wE i i e i Lo A i | A
| \ B :
i ¥
L = — 1

mer FLOOR PLAN

Page 16

Iltem E - 16 of 64



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-006
September 4, 2019

Exhibit I—BUILDING 7 ELEVATIONS

e

e 12" X 20" X 37

 eaita e

—

/ DEEF REVEAL
WITH POWDER-
[ SHAPED CORBEL / Comreo
{ WROUGHT
T o o o o IRON TRIM TYP.

IR

E]

LT

3=
3

O
aYe aTa) || =]
]| — L1
_ i | U e
i ] | | |
| =3 =i I s} | | |
H ORADE é) HUMP & BUMP EXT—— é)
PLAS. FINISH 5
Py e ARCHITECTURAL S
COLONIAL

GREAT ROOM

.' /

*,
F

COVERED BALCONY

BORM 1

lil
lil

DRIVEWAY (EAST) ELEVATION

E: SPANISH

BORM 1

PLASTER OVER SHAFED

FOAM TRIM < WOOD-LIKE

— SMOOTH EXTERIOR
APPEARANCE
HUMP & BUMP EXT.

PLAS, FINISH

t

GINING

GREAT ROOM

COWERED BALCONY

[

Page 17

ltem E - 17 of 64



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-006
September 4, 2019

— COMCRETE *5° TILE=

7 ] ‘l— I E ' | ' - B T SHAPED CORBEL
i

~ E— /_' "‘\‘______—— OPENING WITH
\ . — POWDERCOATED
| l‘ﬁ' T I | WROUGHT IROM TRIM

i T EXTERIOR PLASTER

T SMOOTH EXTERIOR

W PLASTER OVER SHAFED
! | FOAM TRIM
=

) ) SMOOTH EXTERIOR
- - &' HIGH BLOCK WALL /_ PLASTER OVER WOOD
FRAMED WAINSCOT

o o a —— FLUSH MEXICAN CERAMIC
.| = TILE

WEST ELEVATION
ARCHITECTURAL STYLE: SPANISH

COLONIAL

LIVING LIVING

B
[
-
I
L
L
-
B

Page 18

ltem E - 18 of 64



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-006
September 4, 2019

Exhibit K—BUILDING 7 NORTH & SOUTH ELEVATIONS

3 CLAY ROUND TILES -
3 PROJECTION

l— CONCRETE 5" TILE

4 SHAPED CORBEL
s OPENING WITH
. POWDER-COATED

i WROUGHT IRON TRIM
R = ’ :

[ EXTERIOR PLASTER

_—— SMOOTH EXTERIOR
I : =. BLASTER OVER SHAPED

===

[T T
e R —— g FoAMTRM L RN N S S
—T T SHAPED CORBEL SIMULATED ]

—t_ 11 i | SIMULATED STOME STONE VENEER ———_

v VENEER i

:-——ll[: _E .Y s /_

o T oO| _———SMOOTH EXTERIOR o | o 5/
" —i - PLASTER OVER WOOD ] —
= . irLI—_—r{,] FRAMED WAINSCOT "T:TLJ"{ : fr'—l_]—_-m

SOUTH ELEVATION NORTH ELEVATION
ARCHITECTURAL STYLE: SPANISH
COLONIAL

Page 19

ltem E - 19 of 64



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-006
September 4, 2019

Exhibit L—BUILDING 8 EAST ELEVATION

— SMOOTH EXTERIOR
PLASTER OVER SHAPED

L~ 18° X 20° X 3" DEEP
/ REVEAL WITH POWDER-
g COATED WROUGHT
/f IRON TRIM TYP.
1z

— REVEAL WITH ( —— WOOD SHUTTER / EOAM TRIM - WOOD-LIKE
/' WROUGHT IRON TRIM + / / APPEARANCE
! ! !
e e e e
L M 1 Ly ik 1 } ... UL -*ﬁ Lk L
A = R e et
ATARRYATARARLY aan] h . yATA MY (gAY yitpy Ry ApApAATARAY Y Ty piplyiyiyh
L | o . i
—| e — —— e ‘_D] === 7 =
| o [
(B -l e |'.

5
[T || I —

[ — | — C_IC_1

o — T — LIl

| [ —" — | —
L_IL_1

HUMP & BUMP E)F\.;l

FLAS, FINISH

' HUMP & BUMP EXT
PLAS. FINISH

EAST ELEVATION

ARCHITECTURAL STYLE: SPANISH

COLONIAL

GREAT ROOM HALL

STARWELL

COVERED BALCONY

(NS

SMOOTH EXTERIOR
PLASTER OVER SHAPED
FOAM TRIM - WOOD-LIKE
APPEARANCE

-l

STAIRWELL
GREAT ROOM

DINING
COVERED BALCONY

Page 20

Iltem E - 20 of 64



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-006
September 4, 2019

Exhibit M—BUILDING 8 WEST ELEVATION

D00 SHUTTE —
,"_ WOOD SH R - .
s R AR R
U
A AN RS Lt HA R MRTRE AR H
ATkl E i $ E}J_,u Ty I_H_,E.]I_Fn_,‘_ iy 7I‘E_‘LJ"‘I HI ..J,._n_,‘,- H—]. - H iy i1 | 1"”’.1
1 —_— " !
[ ! T i . H_[="_ ‘ i E=E EE
Jv-[ — ﬂ l:
- =
L |: x - T ‘ ‘
m -mvnnnqnuﬁq ; | Jv_L 'J;L Y | ﬂ J;L 1
\ | R . I Tl
T \‘. ] T — ] =
| | U \,\J ] [H] O ab—1 4
1 ! T -
-l = \ &' HIGH BLOCK wadﬁ,\
e \'\ Y o
o [ | \o I~
[ ] [ ] '.\ N'\ bk
\ )
n T
\ HUMP & BUMP EXT. HUMP_& BUMP EXT. v HUMP & BUMP EXT. —
PLAS. FIMISH WEST ELEVATION PLAS. FINIZH PLAS. FINISH
1 —
STAIRWEL :E:} b © ] B
GREAT ROOM :I'“ KITCHEN | : iEd I BORM | 2 BOAM | Raly STAIRWELL
AL ] ! g : i E BURM - e GREAT ROCM
] 1 |
| ! Iy |
iy |

Page 21

ltem E - 21 of 64



Development Advisory Board Decision

File No. PDEV18-006

September 4, 2019

mES

Exhibit N—BUILDING 8 NORTH AND SOUTH ELEVATIONS

3 CIRCULAR PIPES

T CONCRETE *S° TILE

e

e

-

= L1

|

I

pr=

—

= SHAPED CORBEL

T OPENING WITH

POWDER-COATED
WROUGHT IRON TRIM

[ EXTERIOR PLASTER

]
\— SHAPED CORBEL

SMOOTH EXTERIOR

PLASTER OWVER WOOCD
FRAMED WAINSCOT

NORTH ELEVATION

TOP OF BIOGE

COMNCRETE *5' TILE

R
EEE=S

SHAPED CORBEL
- OPENING WITH

1 POWDER-COATED

= WROUGHT [RON TRIM

& || EXTERIOR PLASTER

=]
E'?'—_‘_ SMOOTH EXTERIOR
PLASTER OVER SHAPED
FOAM TRIM

T SHAPED CORBEL

b | SIMULATED STONE
VENEER

a7 SMOOTH EXTERIOR
PLASTER OVER WOOD
FRAMED WAINSCOT

— L[ —re-:—:f'.‘if

FMGH GRALE

FLUSH MEXICAN CERAMIC
TILE

SOUTH ELEVATION

Page 22

ltem E - 22 of 64



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-006
September 4, 2019

SHAPED CORBEL

[ OPENING WITH
POWDERCOATED
WROUGHT [RON TRIM
=i | EXTERIOR PLASTER

- SHAPED CORBEL

Exhibit O—BUILDING 2 AND 6 ELEVATIONS

“T-siMULATED
Ty F==' © 5| STONEVENEER

!

] —
L
[ ]

'ouq"

TS

|
Ta

a

™ SMOOTH EXTERIOR PLASTER
OVER WOOD FRAMED
WAINSCOT

BLDG. 2-SOUTHEAST
BLDG. 6-NORTHWEST

CONCRETE “oroEmo

—SHAPED CORBEL =
|H—oreninG wimh
b POWDERCOATHD
WROUGHT
IRON TRIM
~ EXTERIOR
PLASTER

34-10"

“—SHAPED CORBEL

| SIMULATED A
STONE VENEER =

STILE :::ﬁ“|ﬂ'|;..u“|i||.El.:£:‘ul|i.u
==i]
| | [ |

EHE

BUILDING 2 - NORTHEAST
BUILDING 6 - SOUTHWEST

ARCHITECTURAL STYLE: SPANISH
COLONIAL

+ HHi |

(=7
e ! -

vl e e e T

—FLUSH MEXICAN CERAMIC

BLDG. 2-NORTHWEST
RI DG 6SOUTHEAST

" TRELLIS
9

BUILDING 2 - SOUTHWEST
BUILDING 6 - NORTHEAST

' SHAPED

CORBEL ,

Page 23

ltem E - 23 of 64



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-006

September 4, 2019

Exhibit P—BUILDING 9 EAST ELEVATION

JUILLET BALCONY W/ 34" X 547X 3" REVEAL

— 2 CLAY ROUND TILES -

— COMCRETE 's" TIE
/

\ FOWDER-COATED | WITH POWDER-COATED | ¥PROJECTION |
WROUGHT IRON | WROUGHT IRON TRIM / | mear
— WOOD SHUTTER {7 T GUARDRAIL | - { | I SaLL]
BT A A AT T TR TP T e LT 47y A A TR AT TR NP R FTMRT TS T TV BT TS (T VTS P ST TS s rrat iyt Ak T :
v Pk iyl by rbydyarir byl byl iy i nwr irbhyhyiiyAe i hpkbnbbviri iy rirdykydrbyly i Fw I[ Lripb=tomiyi ipkyyh dybyparkybydrirbybyi piriybyi pisdybybyds by T Hh— 1*
/ ,j—ﬁ_-'qn;:: i kb ki iy [ ydyiydyd byhy iy (AT iy pylrhgdiyipih bydy Ay by niriirirh 1 i
~ / g n Hrinhr 1r A i tninnhr A printnn T
B e kg s g ﬂ e R b ¢
) 1L m y
RArRRARAC A m i W nnar thes AT s MRS nARar iy WJ LA REAIAT A @ o= oA
dnAiAriaiatgea A FApoATA ARbokTA b o i IATATR TGP TR kil iy T AT FTAA I APRTRTYisui AT LF A TATACRATATATAATAY LY ATATATA) Ay A o, il
e oo drhintivivdvivisknd iyl IIANNOANIOANEE— ST e ) irbytApsbybvrisbybyd ek iy by Arig oo iy
— = 7 I j—
| '
|
|| ‘ !
O O 5] I ‘-{ =) 5}
— — r
§| i‘. — - =3 =3
S B R A———4 T o
- ] I
JEH% H |= cz: I
'%ﬂ L ‘%" h
— = -. (i
\ ity
\ T
! | | = s S g = |
\
| \ \
a oo ool o oo 0 oo === og \ oo ‘ {ud oo |E\: oo oofo
1 \ 1 '
\—‘ \—‘ | | | | T\ nsian
\ \ T " T . . —
— HUMP & BUMP BXT, \— EXTERIOR PLASTER | RECESSED WINDOW — POTSHELF WATH — SMOOTH EXTERIOR \— 42" HIGH WROUGHT IRON. SMOOTH EXTERIOR
PLAS, FINISH SHAPED CCRBEL PLASTER OVER SHAPED GLARDRAIL | PLASTER OVER WOOD
EAST ELEVATION FOANM TRIM NOTE: ALL WROLIGHT \\ FRAMED WAINSCOT
ARCHITECTURAL STYLE: SPANISH Commn T AT e
COLONIAL
i -4 I — - i
[ BORM | a0 1 A
J— GREATRCOM GREAT EOOM J—
LNG LVING

PLAN 6R

EORM 2

PLAN 6

Page 24

ltem E - 24 of 64



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-006
September 4, 2019

WEaD IHUTTER

Exhibit O—BUILDING 9 WEST ELEVATION

cdid 2 A

iz e iz
¥ ELAY ROLNG TILE - (%) @ 7
RECRIIED WD ., 3 PROUSCTION \ \'l'/ .
‘\\ \ _ . i . MCI\:E[::'E:.?A};;LP L
. f I | FOWDE =
| - 7l T e o P T i T = i i #fljt -"‘-:h WROLIGHTIRIN TRE =
- 11l rifrinie i - /!
TS AR TR i
TS AT r l Iy
T vaT i Ay i ;
IS zlyiziia) TR [pdedpslpdelpiely kY I
fELLslade Lakald JUI = + ot T
L —— 3 - i
[ H
I !
|
i [
= = — Q Q
T, @ @ VAR arayarh 1) arapay s ara
s
jiah it
r : SN R w
|
1 - - |
II | 1
oo t oo ag I| oo| f * oo l'.l oo " ['nn oa oo L-
| \
| | . | ", —
' .
\ o )
| oper L FOAM TRIM WTTH L EXTERICR FLAGTER Y, POTIHELF@ITH L s BxTERIoR " HIGH WROUGHTRON  — IMODTH EXTSR0R
FUVER[LOATED THAPED ZORBEL \ THATED CORBEL PLASTER OWER SHAPED GLARDRAL FLATTER GVER WOOO
WRCAIGHT TRIL WEST ELEVATION Y . . FLAM THIM NEI AL IR SRAMED WANEZOT
ARCHITECTURAL STYLE: SPANISH S B = O AL s FOMTE
COLOMIAL :
T THE
R L L=
o Lo T we 0 N -
EDRY 2 Ty
= ——

Page 25

Iltem E - 25 of 64

i



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-006
September 4, 2019

Exhibit R—BUILDING 9 SOUTH ELEVATION

AT RLALNLE e -

3* PROJECTION
—l\._n—l—
_(____ '"" e,
~ _;;.:[, Ay e S OPENING WITH
. s iy T ,,_JI,_.Q._; T - WROUGHT [ROM TRIM
g Hihe AT S B
= it it f;;:dfa Annnn ‘.‘T‘N'L o ""‘fl e CONCRETE 's' TILE
o [AATEE AT PR oy S
S — fl . Ll "3 i r 4 *-ﬁ& Ll e e _
Eﬁ:l iy % ] 11'3-* aiARATTAY :;;ﬁﬁﬂﬁ'. [T
" ok gyl iyt i vl I iy H P ik
i W ey STLTRELATAY LAY pply kYA FR) [ AT gk vy AT psby ATy b
L :l : : - ' [r— T
~ ! T - SHAPED CORBEL
T T——— exTERIOR PLASTER
. e o s Il il I1 I
s
. [ l |l +——wooD sHuTTes
]T I]T ____-'_'_'-___ ]
3 o o
h——4 T o
WHR
- - =
I_,J 1 POTEHELF WATH
— A A - SHAPED CORREL
L A2° HIGH WROUGHT IROMN
i e GUARDREAIL
- O O
—— SMOOTH EXTERIOR
1 PLASTER OVER SHAPED
| % & —,-1 ECIAM TRIM
- ¢ é (i
E ﬂ\ ~— SMO0OTH EXTERIOR

FRAMED WAINSCOT

Sol ol olat”  PLASTER OVER WODD
AN

E
)Z;

Page 26

Iltem E - 26 of 64



Development Advisory Board Decision

File No. PDEV18-006
September 4, 2019

Exhibit S—BUILDING 9 NORTH ELEVATION

3" PROJECTION

R
i |
s T 1 1 e
| WOOD sk IiJ_'I'I'EE.j_ i iy I Eq iy Iyl
o Y| ! r1| uE
e =) KTHy BT _uﬁ:-r"_l_ -: I i ::: bl I n_,-_: ﬁﬁj o0
[f] " I & el
IEE [ [y A7 ATy L "-"ﬁrlr-rl | L iyl o r:_nl'I- L
. . T T 1 ]
| T_. ._l,,. : A B /
T, i p! — -
P - |
e | -
y I 1 I
E H |
g 0
] ]
H H A ~
= H @‘iﬁmﬂi’% &
¥ E =N
| =N

muy

N

-

T EXTERICR PLASTER

OPEMING WITH
WROUGHT [ROM TRIM

ﬁ COMNCRETE 5" TILE
it

E"‘-\-._

T SHAPED CORBEL

SMOOTH EXTERIOR
PLASTER OWER SHAPED
FOAM TREM

- 42" HIGH WROUGHT IROMN

GLUARDRAIL
NOTE: ALL WROUGHT

IRCM SHALL BE POWDER-
COATED

— SMOOTH EXTERIOR

- PLASTER OVER WOOD

FRAMED WAINSCOT

Page 27

Iltem E - 27 of 64



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-006
September 4, 2019

Exhibit T—BUILDING 4 EAST ELEVATION

3 OLAY ROLND TiLES - o WOO0 SHUTTERS
= /' 3PROUECTION I
ST il Sy UPTTTCTET PR EFE T (TP 3 ST AT T CTarATMTATATETs CARTET, SRR TATATTETAT haTRariTar LA, T e O e
4 b - rigiaip i TR o T 1
il T R T e

. 1 i i
-t |k r&| |&1 i " Lz
1 1 gl iy by R Aok e 1 sy plakat i i I ,FH: Thki T e
f s j ity Ll = ikt ; : T TEr Tk ke A
b s T st
rhy 1 iy e N iy A
1
1

=
£
==

A TLE

L

e Ls plylail
byl Rk DRyl s e

S DPENING WITH
POWDERCOATED
WROLIGHT RO TR

——— W N KT
| — T DEZF REWEAL
=] WITH POMDIEE-

ST EXTERIOR PLASTER

125 WADE MEXICAN
7 TuE ARCHINGET

—— REVEAL W

H
WWROUIGHT [RCM TRIM

.~ SMDDTH EXTERIOR
i FLASTER OVER WO
FRAMED WAINICOT

oo oo

e £1 TS LA A R TR B

Page 28
Iltem E - 28 of 64



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-006
September 4, 2019

Exhibit U—BUILDING 4 WEST ELEVATION

S LM UL e - 7 WURALF SHULIERS — 12 wLIRNY
3* PROMECTION ! A e 1+ (g
e e e e e e e e e e e T e L T e T e Te e rirer e e LA p iy Ll Tt
RS iy ] kA kA R e T T kAR R ki evis bl by I
T e i T Al ! A AT AR AT iy 1 i T 1 v A -
P =T i : Tl 'ri“‘;"ﬂ'ﬁﬂ! ] I L T s A LAH e e
1 byl —— et Hh o
- PRl prial i il I e =ry iyl i i 11 ) i iy T
——«—-«——-——«—--———_-?,;"' 0y Tpiyi iy ) 1 1 e = LT iy AT by a iy Lndplig 1y gl ey Tyt g g Ay
HEr et gl m n [y W byl iy 7 L ity A sl A
ro R pyia gy A i o i1 iy i ilim Iy p iad qagﬂ@ﬁ [ e
«& v TEN TR 1 o’ pATia A rhed sl ki dad i i i nkrha by e i il iyl Lo s
"y 1 ]

I
i

=

-]
a
I:I_F_'__,.,-
-0
=]
i
[ |

I ' /
L Fay I I j
o[oo - ga| =——— |oo [ao o . oo ao |l . . \ oo, ?Eflr_

Page 29

Iltem E - 29 of 64



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-006
September 4, 2019

Exhibit V—BUILDING 4 NORTH ELEVATION

3 CLAY ROUMD TILES -

M 3" PROJECTION
OPENING WITH _ Py K ey O, iz
POWDERLCOATED T I o e I
WROUGHT IROM TRIM _‘_—r.‘-r:-@‘. \ MR f M o
] - ey
e e e e o e e o _|_-r _LIJ_ T 1 n i *L"rﬂ-"ti"’-l]—uid:uﬁ }— e P T S T T TS TS payS ey TS e T
s th i TR
T i oo Iu o i L ik
Ii M L-Q.HIJH. e -
- i i ' nan
pAyARAY AT & i MLy pApAFiyALL RpATAYATE A e RApATATAYLLAY

1 5 I |

Y \ P T W ~~H

=
3 i
\:,-"

y,

|

°

|

|

]

| | T E H
] [ ]
|

N
J

= — e —
=
|
;
|

R YR (RS
|
=

[
G

BS ) H‘x “.\,\ —
N & f | ' = N

¢ g ) ﬂ H\ ?

| j 'u\
o oo (oo J_ILlf\ Hoaoao \‘-. K oo a ?/

= - \ Y il

H _ - \ \

™\ i ),
Page 30

Iltem E - 30 of 64



Development Advisory Board Decision

File No. PDEV18-006

September 4, 2019

— OPENING WITH

3 CLAY ROUND TILES -
3 PROJECTION

Exhibit W—BUILDING 4 SOUTH ELEVATION
/S

OPENING WITH
POWDER-COATED

POWDERLOATED
WROUGHT IRON TRIM
=Ly

AT

LT

ARWNaR

12" WIDE MEXICAN “— HUMP & BUMP EXT.

TILE ARCH INSET

|

Al
3
i

:

J'rwntﬁr
riybikrirky

1
i
'f.l

i
i

oo

oo

FLAS. FINISH

Page 31

ltem E - 31 of 64



TG

Ll

Iltem E - 32 of 64

Exhibit X—CLUB HOUSE SOUTH ELEVATION

Development Advisory Board Decision

File No. PDEV18-006

September 4, 2019

Page 32




Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-006
September 4, 2019

Exhibit Y—CLUB HOUSE WEST ELEVATION (FRONT)

% e N T e J LAY ROUMLD TILES -
EL.'.r.l'-.'.'. I'E_.n'l"“".""" |‘\_|3___|'-'.l.:'\-| 1" PROMSCTION P
| | [ 1 T LI

g SOLIARE FLULH HLUMP & BUMP I|
Q"'-._ MEXICAMN TILES ARCHITECTURAL STYLE: SPANISH STLACCC RNISH —
HUMP & BLIMP 1 R .
e R COLOMNIAL 12 WADE MEXGCAN TILES
Page 33

Iltem E - 33 of 64



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-006
September 4, 2019

Exhibit Z—CLUB HOUSE EAST ELEVATION

— 3 CLAY ROLIMND TILES -
3 PROJECTION
ST T T

it - e .

MHh : .
Yk ;

T T et

Y HUMP & BLIMP /]
CERAMIC TILE SHOWERS —* — SHAPED FOAM WINDOW TRIM STUCCO FINISH

Page 34

ltem E - 34 of 64



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-006
September 4, 2019

Exhibit Z-1—CLUB HOUSE NORTH ELEVATION

| WROUGHT
(RO TRIM TYP.

12

HUMP & BLIMP

= e L STUCCO FIMISH —
REVEAL WITH
WROUGHT
|[ROM TRIM TYP.

NOTE: ALL WROLGHT
IROMN SHALL BE POVKDER-
COATED

Page 35
Item E - 35 of 64



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PDEV18-006
September 4, 2019

Attachment A—Departmental Conditions of Approval

(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page)

Page 36

Iltem E - 36 of 64



City of Ontario Planning Department

Planning Department

303 East B Street Land Development Division
Ontario, California 91764 e
Phone: 909.395.2036 Conditions of Approval

Fax: 909.395.2420
Q%Pomw &, 2

Meeting Date: September 4, 2019
File No: PDEV18-006
Related Files: n/a

Project Description: A Development Plan for the construction of an 88-Unit apartment complex on 3.5
acres of land, located south of Sixth Street and west of the San Bernardino County Flood Control channel,
at 1402 North Virginia Avenue, within the HDR-45 (High Density Residential - 25.1 to 45.0 DU/Acre) zoning
district; (APNs: 1047-432-22 & 1047-443-01) submitted by SC Property Fund LLC.

Prepared By: Luis E. Batres, Senior Plann
Phone: 909.395.2431 (direc
Email: Lbatres@ontarioca.gov

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable to the
above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of approval listed
below:

1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions for New
Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy of the Standard
Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning Department or City Clerk/Records
Management Department.

2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New Development
identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following special conditions of
approval:

2 Time Limits.

(a) Development Plan approval shall become null and void 2 years following the
effective date of application approval, unless a building permit is issued and construction is commenced,
and diligently pursued toward completion, or a time extension has been approved by the Planning Director.
This condition does not supersede any individual time limits specified herein, or any other departmental
conditions of approval applicable to the Project, for the performance of specific conditions or improvements.

2.2 General Requirements. The Project shall comply with the following general requirements:

(a) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, including, but
not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape and irrigation, grading,
utility and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with the approved entitlement plans
on file with the Planning Department.

(b) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved plans on file

with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved by the Planning
Department prior to building permit issuance.

Iltem E - 37 of 64



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval
File No.: PDEV18-006
Page 2 of 6

(c) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be included
in the construction plan set for project, which shall be maintained on site during project construction.

2.3 Landscaping.

(a) The Project shall provide and continuously maintain landscaping and irrigation
systems in compliance with the provisions of Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping).

(b) Comply with the conditions of approval of the Planning Department; Landscape
Planning Division.

(c) Landscaping shall not be installed until the Landscape and Irrigation Construction
Documentation Plans required by Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping) have been
approved by the Landscape Planning Division.

(d) Changes to approved Landscape and lIrrigation Construction Documentation
Plans, which affect the character or quantity of the plant material or irrigation system design, shall be
resubmitted for approval of the revision by the Landscape Planning Division, prior to the commencement
of the changes.

(e) Applicant shall work with staff during the plan check process to add small
landscape planters in between the garage units, to enhance the look of the drive aisle.

2.4 Walls and Fences. All Project walls and fences shall comply with the requirements of
Ontario Development Code Division 6.02 (Walls, Fences and Obstructions).

2.5 Parking, Circulation and Access.

(a) The Project shall comply with the applicable off-street parking, loading and lighting
requirements of City of Ontario Development Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and Loading).

(b) All drive approaches shall be provided with an enhanced pavement treatment. The
enhanced paving shall extend from the back of the approach apron, into the site, to the first intersecting
drive aisle or parking space.

(c) Areas provided to meet the City's parking requirements, including off-street parking
and loading spaces, access drives, and maneuvering areas, shall not be used for the outdoor storage of
materials and equipment, nor shall it be used for any other purpose than parking.

(d) The required number of off-street parking spaces and/or loading spaces shall be
provided at the time of site and/or building occupancy. All parking and loading spaces shall be maintained
in good condition for the duration of the building or use.

(e) Parking spaces specifically designated and conveniently located for use by the
physically disabled shall be provided pursuant to current accessibility regulations contained in State law
(CCR Title 24, Part 2, Chapters 2B71, and CVC Section 22507.8).

() Bicycle parking facilities, including bicycle racks, lockers, and other secure

facilities, shall be provided in conjunction with development projects pursuant to current regulations
contained in CALGreen (CAC Title 24, Part 11).

2.6 Outdoor Loading and Storage Areas.

Iltem E - 38 of 64



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval
File No.: PDEV18-006
Page 3 of 6

(a) Areas designated for off-street parking, loading, and vehicular circulation and
maneuvering, shall not be used for the outdoor storage of materials or equipment.

2.7 Site Lighting.

(a) All off-street parking facilities shall be provided with nighttime security lighting
pursuant to Ontario Municipal Code Section 4-11.08 (Special Residential Building Provisions) and Section
4-11.09 (Special Commercial/Industrial Building Provisions), designed to confine emitted light to the parking
areas. Parking facilities shall be lighted from sunset until sunrise, daily, and shall be operated by a photocell
switch.

(b) Unless intended as part of a master lighting program, no operation, activity, or
lighting fixture shall create illumination on any adjacent property.

(c) Project shall feature decorative lighting fixtures to match the architectural style
proposed. Project shall also incorporate up and down lighting at key architectural and landscape areas to
enhance the project in the evening hours. Color cut sheets shall be submitted during the plan check process
for all exterior light fixtures proposed.

2.8 Mechanical and Rooftop Equipment.

(a) All exterior roof-mounted mechanical, heating and air conditioning equipment, and
all appurtenances thereto, shall be completely screened from public view by parapet walls or roof screens
that are architecturally treated so as to be consistent with the building architecture.

(b) All ground-mounted utility equipment and structures, such as tanks, transformers,
HVAC equipment, and backflow prevention devices, shall be located out of view from a public street, or
adequately screened through the use of landscaping and/or decorative low garden walls.

2.9 Security Standards. The Project shall comply with all applicable requirements of Ontario
Municipal Code Title 4 (Public Safety), Chapter 11 (Security Standards for Buildings).

210  Signs. All Project signage shall comply with the requirements of Ontario Development
Code Division 8.1 (Sign Regulations).

211 Sound Attenuation. The Project shall be constructed and operated in a manner so as not
to exceed the maximum interior and exterior noised levels set forth in Ontario Municipal Code Title 5 (Public
Welfare, Morals, and Conduct), Chapter 29 (Noise).

212 Disclosure Statements.

(a) A copy of the Public Report from the Department of Real Estate, prepared for the
subdivision pursuant to Business and Professions Code Section 11000 et seq., shall be provided to each
prospective buyer of the residential units and shall include a statement to the effect that:

() This tract is subject to noise from the Ontario International Airport and may
be more severely impacted in the future.
(ii) Some of the property adjacent to this tract is zoned for agricultural uses

and there could be fly, odor, or related problems due to the proximity of animals.
(iii) The area south of Riverside Drive lies within the San Bernardino County
Agricultural Preserve. Dairies currently existing in that area are likely to remain for the foreseeable future.
(iv) This tract is part of a Landscape Maintenance District. The homeowner(s)
will be assessed through their property taxes for the continuing maintenance of the district.

Iltem E - 39 of 64



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval
File No.: PDEV18-006
Page 4 of 6

213  Environmental Review.

(a) The proposed project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the
California Environmental Quality Act of 1970 (CEQA), as amended, and the Guidelines promulgated
thereunder, pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines,
meeting the following conditions:

(i) The Project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and
all applicable general plan policies, as well as the applicable zoning designation and regulations;
(i) The proposed development occurs within city limits, on a project site of no

more than five acres, and is substantially surrounded by urban uses;

(iii) The project site has no value as habitat for endangered, rare, or
threatened species;

(iv) Approval of the Project will not result in any significant effects relating to
traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality; and

(v) The Project site can be adequately served by all required utilities and
public services.

(b) If human remains are found during project grading/excavation/construction
activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required investigation is completed by the County Coroner
and Native American consultation has been completed (if deemed applicable).

(c) If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the resource is
determined. If determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a qualified archeologist or
paleontologist consistent with current standards and guidelines, or other appropriate measures
implemented.

214  Indemnification. The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, the City
of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City of
Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul any approval of the City of
Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other authorized board or officer. The City of
Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario
shall cooperate fully in the defense.

215 Additional Fees.

(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of Determination
(NOD) filing fee shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be paid by check, made
payable to the "Clerk of the Board of Supervisors", which shall be forwarded to the San Bernardino County
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, along with all applicable environmental forms/notices, pursuant to the
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Failure to provide said fee within the time
specified may result in a 180-day extension to the statute of limitations for the filing of a CEQA lawsuit.

(b) After the Project’s entitlement approval, and prior to issuance of final building
permits, the Planning Department's Plan Check and Inspection fees shall be paid at the rate established
by resolution of the City Council.

2.16  Additional Requirements.

(a) Vine pockets shall be planter along the interior of the freeway sound wall area, to
be trained to climb on wall. Applicant shall work with staff during plan check to add them.

Iltem E - 40 of 64



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval
File No.: PDEV18-006
Page 5 of 6

(b) Vine pockets shall be planted adjacent to all trash enclosures, to be trained to climb
on walls.

(c) All walls need to be decorative walls and shall provide a decorative cap that
overhang a minimum of 1-inch. Walls shall be constructed of split face block, slump stone or they can be
plastered, textured and painted to match the main structures.

(d) Wall along the existing multi-family residential development to the west and the
County Flood Control Channel shall measure 6-feet from finished grade. Any damage to existing walls shall
be repaired to industry standards, and shall be plastered/stucco and painted to match new buildings.

(e) Building 9- The applicant shall work with staff during the plan check process to add
the hump and bump treatment to the north, west and east elevations. In addition, applicant shall work with
staff to remove some of the proposed window shutters along the south and north elevations.

(f Club House- The arched trim areas where you are proposing to add the 12-inch
Mexican Tile, shall be furred out a minimum of 12-inches. The furred out trim area shall all feature the
Mexican Tile on all sides.

(9) For all buildings, the proposed Mexican Tile detail shall be flush with the
plaster/stucco finish.

(h) Any damage to existing walls shall be repaired to industry standards. Double walls
are prohibited. The minimum height from finish grade shall be 6-feet for any existing wall. If you propose to
keep any existing property line walls, the wall(s) shall be plastered and painted to match the project.

(i) All sidewalks to and from Club House area shall feature decorative paving.
(i) All parking spaces around the Club House shall feature decorative paving.
(k) The basketball court surface shall feature decorative paving and shall be a

contrasting color to the adjacent areas.

(n Pool area shall incorporate shade structures/cabanas. Applicant shall work with
staff during the plan check process to add them.

(m) When completed, the parking lot surface area shall not have any patches.
(n) During plan check, a separate landscape plan shall be submitted that shows/calls
out all the locations where up and down lighting fixtures will be provided. Applicant shall work with staff

during plan check to add any additional lighting that may be required.

(o) All downspouts shall be carefully located so that they don't stand out and they shall
be painted to match the wall colors next to them.

(p) All wrought iron work shall be powder coated to prevent rust.

(q) All outdoor furniture shall be attractive, of high quality and durability and shall
complement the development in architectural style.

(r) Prior to occupancy of this project, an exhibit (parking management plan) shall be

submitted and approved by the Planning Department illustrating what parking space(s) will be assigned to
each unit. The exhibit shall include the unit number and the parking space(s) number(s) that will be assigned

ltem E - 41 of 64



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval
File No.: PDEV18-006
Page 6 of 6

to the unit. All parking spaces shall be numbered so that they can be coordinated with the parking
management plan.

(s) All units shall be rented with their required parking space(s) per the Ontario
Development Code.

(t) Restroom(s) within the Club House shall provide baby changing tables.

(u) Management shall conduct regular garage parking inspections to make sure that
spaces are not being used for the storage of inoperative vehicles and materials. Required parking areas
shall not be used for the storage of goods and or equipment. Only operational motorized vehicles shall be
stored within these areas.

(v) During the plan check process, the applicant/architect shall coordinate that all
electrical meters/gas meters are not located within any public views. In addition, they shall not displaced
any required architectural treatments or landscaping that have been approved with the project. The project
architect/applicant shall coordinate with all the various trades, including Edison.

(w) Location of AC Units shall not displaced any required architectural treatment.
Applicant/Architect shall coordinate plans with the various trades.

(x) During construction, any necessary field modifications to the project needs to first
be approved by the Planning Department.

(y) A final inspection from the Planning Department is required prior to occupancy of
any structure. Prior to the occupancy inspection, the projects architect shall submit a certification stating
that the project was completed according to the approved plans.

(z) Once the construction plans have been approved by the City and permits have

been issued, the applicant shall submit two (2) reduced copies (11" x 17”) of the approved plans to the
Planning Department.

ltem E - 42 of 64



CITY OF A
ONTARIO

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA
ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

(Engineering Services Division [Land Development Section and Environmental Section], Traffic & Transportation Division, Ontario
Municipal Utilities Company and Information Technology & Management Services Department Conditions incorporated)

<] DEVELOPMENT [] PARCEL MAP [C] TRACT MAP
PLAN
[] OTHER [[] FOR CONDOMINIUM PURPOSES

PROJECT FILE NO. PDEV18-006

RELATED FILE NO(S). None

X ORIGINAL [] REVISED: / /

CITY PROJECT ENGINEER & PHONE NO: Matthew Holmes (909) 395-2155 %54
CITY PROJECT PLANNER & PHONE NO: Luis Batres (909) 395-2431
DAB MEETING DATE: September 4, 2019
PROJECT NAME / DESCRIPTION: PDEV18-006 — A plan to construct
an 88 unit apartment complex on 3.5
acres.
LOCATION: South of 6" Street, northeast of

Interstate 10, west of the West
Cucamonga Channel,

APPLICANT:

REVIEWED BY:

APPROVED BY:

Last Revised: 8/7/2019

ltem E - 43 of 64



Project File No. PDEV18-006
Project Engineer: Matthew S. Hoimes
Date: 7/25/2019

THIS PROJECT SHALL COMPLY WITH THE REQUIREMENTS SET FORTH IN THE GENERAL STANDARD
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL (RESOLUTION NO. 2017-027) AND THE
PROJECT SPECIFIC CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL SPECIFIED IN HEREIN. ONLY APPLICABLE CONDITIONS OF
APPROVAL ARE CHECKED. THE APPLICANT SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE COMPLETION OF ALL
APPLICABLE CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL PRIOR TO FINAL MAP OR PARCEL MAP APPROVAL, ISSUANCE OF

PERMITS AND/OR OCCUPANCY CLEARANCE, AS SPECIFIED IN THIS REPORT.

1. PRIOR TO FINAL MAP OR PARCEL MAP APPROVAL, APPLICANT SHALL:

Check When

D 1.01

[0 102

1.03

1.04

OO0 O

1.05

] 106

[0 107

] 108

O 109

Complete
Dedicate to the City of Ontario, the right-of-way, described below:

feet on

Property line corner ‘cut-back’ required at the intersection of
and

Dedicate to the City of Ontario, the following easement(s):

Restrict vehicular access to the site as follows:

Vacate the following street(s) and/or easement(s):

Submit a copy of a recorded private reciprocal use agreement or easement. The agreement or
easement shall ensure, at a minimum, common ingress and egress and joint maintenance of all
common access areas and drive aisles.

Provide (original document) Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs) as applicable to the
project and as approved by the City Attorney and the Engineering and Planning Departments, ready for
recordation with the County of San Bernardino. The CC&Rs shall provide for, but not be limited to,
common ingress and egress, joint maintenance responsibility for all common access improvements,
common facilities, parking areas, utilities, median and landscaping improvements and drive
approaches, in addition to maintenance requirements established in the Water Quality Management
Plan (WQMP), as applicable to the project. The CC&Rs shall also address the maintenance and repair
responsibility for public improvements/utilities (sewer, water, storm drain, recycled water, etc.) located
within open space/easements. In the event of any maintenance or repair of these facilities, the City
shall enly restore disturbed areas to current City Standards.

For all development occurring south of the Pomona Freeway (60-Freeway) and within the specified
boundary limits (per Boundary Map found at htip /ftceplumecleanup. com/), the property
developer/owner is made aware of the South Archibald Trichicroethylene (TCE) Plume “Disclosure
Letter”. Property owner may wish to provide this Letter as part of the Real Estate Transfer Disclosure
requirements under California Civil Code Section 1102 et seq. This may include notifications in the
Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs) or other documents related to property transfer and
disclosures. Additional information on the plume is available from the Santa Ana Regional Water
Quality Control Board at fittp #/geotracker waterboards. ca gov/profile_report?global_id=T10000004658.

File an application for Reapportionment of Assessment, together with payment of a reapportionment
processing fee, for each existing assessment district listed below. Contact the Management Services
Department at (909) 395-2124 regarding this requirement.

(1)
@)

Prepare a fully executed Subdivision Agreement (on City approved format and forms) with
accompanying security as required, or complete all public improvements.

Last Revised 8/7/2019 Page 2 of 14

ltem E - 44 of 64

O

O
O
O



Project File No. PDEV18-006
Project Engineer: Matthew S. Holmes
Date: 7/25/2019

|:] 1.10  Provide a monument bond (i.e. cash deposit) in an amount calculated by the City's approved cost D
estimate spreadsheet (available for download on the City's website: www.ci.ontario.ca.us) or as
specified in writing by the applicant's Registered Engineer or Licensed Land Surveyor of Record and
approved by the City Engineer, whichever is greater,

D 111 Provide a preliminary titie report current to within 30 days.

OO

1.12  File an application, together with an initial deposit (if required), to establish a Community Facilities
District (CFD) pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities District Act of 1982. The application
and fee shall be submitted a minimum of three (3) months prior to final subdivision map approval, and
the CFD shall be established prior to final subdivision map approval or issuance of building permits,
whichever occurs first. The CFD shall be established upon the subject property to provide funding for
various City services. An annual special tax shall be levied upon each parcel or lot in an amount to be
determined. The special tax will be collected along with annual property taxes. The City shall be the
sole lead agency in the formation of any CFD. Contact Management Services at (909) 395-2353 to
initiate the CFD application process.

[(] 113 New Model Colony (NMC) Developments: O
[ 1) Provide evidence of final canceliation of Williamson Act contracts associated with this tract, prior
to approval of any final subdivision map. Cancellation of contracts shall have been approved by the City

Council.

[ 2) Provide evidence of sufficient storm water capacity availability equivalents (Certificate of Storm
Water Treatment Equivalents).

[ 3) Provide evidence of sufficient water availability equivalents (Certificate of Net MDD Availability).

[[] 1.14 Other conditions: D

PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF ANY PERMITS, APPLICANT SHALL:

A. GENERAL
( Permits includes Grading, Building, Demolition and Encroachment )

201 Record Parcel Map/Tract Map No. pursuant to the Subdivision Map Act and in accordance
with the City of Ontario Municipal Code.

2.02  Submit a duplicate photo mylar of the recorded map to the City Engineer’s office.

MR

2.03  Note that the subject parcel is a recognized parcel in the City of Ontario as determined by
review and shown to exist prior to 1972 on Tract Number 6800, MB 88/4-5.

0O XO O

204  Note that the subject parcel is an ‘unrecognized’ parcel in the City of Ontario and shall require a [:]
Certificate of Compliance to be processed unless a deed is provided confirming the existence of the
parcel prior to the date of .

2.05  Apply for a: [ ] Certificate of Compliance with a Record of Survey: [ Lot Line Adjustment ]

X

[ Make a Dedication of Easement,

2.06  Provide (original document) Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&R’s), as applicable to the D
project, and as approved by the City Attorney and the Engineering and Planning Departments, ready
for recordation with the County of San Bemardino. The CC&R's shall provide for, but not be limited to,
common ingress and egress, joint maintenance of all common access improvements, common
facilities, parking areas, uilities and drive approaches in addition to maintenance requirements
established in the Water Quality Management Plan ( WQMP), as applicable to the project.

O

Last Revised 8/7/2019 Page 3 of 14

ltem E - 45 of 64



Project File No. PDEV18-006
Project Engineer: Matthew S. Holmes

Date: 7/25/2019

] =207

@ 2.08

[ =210

For all development occurring south of the Pamona Freeway (60-Freeway) and within the specified [:]
boundary limits (per Boundary Map found at http./tceplumecieanup conv),  the property
developerfowner is made aware of the South Archibald Trichloroethylene (TCE) Plume “Disclosure
Letter". Property owner may wish to provide this Letter as part of the Real Estate Transfer Disclosure
requirements under California Civil Code Section 1102 et seq. This may include notifications in the
Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs) or other documents related to property transfer and
disclosures. Additional information on the plume is available from the Santa Ana Regional Water
Quality Control Board at http./geotracker waterboards ca gov/profile_report?global_id=T10000004658.

Submit a soils/geology report. ]

Other Agency Permit/Approval: Submit a copy of the approved permit and/or other form of D
approval of the project from the following agency or agencies:

E] State of California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) — as necessary
D San Bernardino County Road Department (SBCRD)
& San Bernardino County Flood Control District (SBCFC D) - as necessary
D Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)
D Cucamonga Valley Water Disfrict (CVWD) for sewer/water service
[] United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE)
D Califonia Department of Fish & Game
Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) - Connection approval
Other:

Dedicate to the City of Ontario the right-of-way described below: ]

feet on

Property line corner ‘cut-back’ required at the intersection of

and
Dedicate to the City of Ontaria the following easement(s): D
New Model Colony (NMC) Developments: ]

[J 1) Submit a copy of the permit from the San Bemardino County Health Department to the
Engineering Depariment and the Ontario Municipal Utilites Company (OMUC) for the
destruction/abandonment of the on-site water well. The well shall be destroyed/abandoned in
accordance with the San Bernardino County Health Department guidelines.

[J2) Make a formal request to the City of Ontario Engineering Department for the proposed temporary
use of an existing agricultural water well for purposes other than agriculture, such as grading, dust
control, etc. Upon approval, the Applicant shall enter into an agreement with the City of Ontario and pay
any applicable fees as set forth by said agreement

[J 3) Design proposed retaining walls to retain up to a maximum of three (3) feet of earth. In no case
shall a wall exceed an overall height of nine (9) feet (i.e. maximum 6-foot high wall on top of a
maximum 3-foot high retaining wall.

Submit a security deposit to the Engineering Department to guarantee construction of the E]
public improvements required herein valued at 100% of the approved construction cost

estimate. Security deposit shall be in accordance with the City of Ontario Municipal Code.

Security deposit will be eligible for release, in accordance with City procedure, upon completion

and acceptance of said public improvements.

lLast Revised 8/7/2019 Page 4 of 14

ltem E - 46 of 64



Project File No. PDEV18-006 /d{..-"?-'\ K
Project Engineer: Matthew S. Holmes f:
Date: 7/25/2019 F :

E} 214  The applicant/developer shall submit all necessary survey documents prepared by a Licensed D
Surveyor registered in the State of California detailing all existing survey monuments in and
around the project site. These documents are to be reviewed and approved by the City Survey
Office.

] 215 Pay all Development Impact Fees (DIF) to the Building Department. Storm Drain Development ]:]
Impact Fee, calculated per dwelling unit, shall be paid to the Building Department. Final fee
shall be determined based on the approved site plan.

] 2.16  Other conditions: D

The applicant/developer shall process and complete the vacation of Cucamonga Avenue
between Sixth Street and Interstate 10.

Last Revised 8/7/2019 Page 5 of 14

ltem E - 47 of 64



Project File No. PDEV18-006
Project Engineer. Matthew S. Holmes

Date: 7/25/2019

X

B. PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS
{See attached Exhibit ‘A’ for plan check submittal requirements.)

217

Design and construct full public improvements in accordan
Code, current City standards and specifications, master
the area, if any. These public improvements shall includ

(checked boxes):

ce with the City of Ontario Municipal
plans and the adopted specific plan for
e, but not be limited to, the following

Improvement 6" Street Street 2 Street 3 Street 4
[Inew; o [[INew:__ & |[[InNew, #. |[]New A,
from C/L from C/L from C/L from C/L
[Z Replace Replace D Replace Replace
Curb and Gutter damaged damaged damaged damaged
Remove Remove Remove Remove
and replace and replace and replace and replace

AC Pavement

D Replacement
@ Grind and

overlay

I:] Replacement
Widen
additional feet
along frontage,
including pavm’t
transitions

D Replacement
D Widen __
additional feet
along frontage,
including pavm't
transitions

L__I Replacement
Widen
additional feet
along frontage,
including pavm’t
transitions

PCC Pavement
(Truck Route

D New
] Modity

existing

EI New
] modify

existing

D New
(] Modify

existing

[ ] New
[ Modify

existing

Last Revised 8/7/2019

Only)
r__] New D New D New D New
Drive Approach Remove D Remove D Remove [:I Remove
and replace and replace and replace and replace
replace replace replace replace
D New D New D New [:_] New
Sidewalk <] Remove D Remove D Remove D Remove
and replace and replace and replace and replace
D New D New D New |:| New
ADA Access [ ] Remove [ ] Remove Remove [] Remove
Ramp and replace and replace and replace and replace
Trees |:| Trees D Trees D Trees
Parkway E Lanc}scaping D Landscaping D Landscaping I:] Landscaping
(wlirrigation) (w/irrigation) (w/irrigation) (w/irrigation)
D New I:] New D New D New
Raised [] Remove [[] Remove [] Remove Remove
Landscaped and replace and replace and replace and replace
Median
: D New / Upgrade D New / D New / D New /
Fire Hydrant D Belncation Upgrade Upgrade Upgrade
Relocation Relocation Relocation
Page 6 of 14

Iltem E - 48 of 64



Project File No. PDEV18-006 CHIAT

Project Engineer: Matthew S. Holmes I,./_-“‘ C
Date: 7/25/2019 \g ;

Sewer
(see Sec. 2.C)

D Main

Lateral

D Main
D Lateral

D Main
D Lateral

[_] main
D Lateral

Water
(see Sec. 2.D)

D Main
& Service

D Main
D Service

D Main
D Service

D Main
D Service

Recycled Water

[:] Main
D Service

D Main

D Service

[ ] Main
D Service

]:] Main
D Service

(see Sec. 2.F)

existing

existing

existing

(see Sec. 2.E)
. D New I:I New D New D New
oyeem | O moary (] Modity [ Moty [ Modity

existing

Traffic Signing
and Striping

D New
(] Modify

u New
] modify

D New
(] Modify

D New
] Modity

existin existin existin existin
(see Sec. 2.F) 9 9 isting g
New / [ ] New L] New/ L] New/
Street Light Upgrade Upgrade Upgrade Upgrade
(see Sec. 2.F) Relocation Relocation Relocation Relocation

Bus Stop Pad or
Turn-out
(see Sec. 2.F)

I:l New
[ Modify

existing

D New
[ Modify
existing

[:] New
[ Modify

existing

I:] New
(] modity

existing

D Main

[:] Main

D Main

D Main

Storm Drain

(see Sec. 2G) @ Lateral D Lateral D Lateral D Lateral
Fiber Optics < conduit / [ ] conduit s [ conduit / L] conduit
(see Sec. 2K) Appurtenances Appurtenances Appurtenances Appurtenances

Overhead Utilities

D Underground

D Relocate

D Underground
D Relocate

D Underground
D Relocate

D Underground
Relocate

Removal of
Improvements

Other
Improvements

Specific notes for improvements listed in item no. 2.17, above:

1. Existing driveway approach shall be removed and replaced per City of Ontario Standard
Drawing Number 1204 — Commercial Driveway Approach. Street light shall be
upgraded and relocated as necessary to comply with City of Ontario Standards.

2. Drivewayl/fire truck turnaround at southeasterly boundary with the Flood Control
District easement shall be gated and locked. Gate shall be signed as “Emergency
Access Only.”

Last Revised 8/7/2019

Page 7 of 14

Iltem E - 49 of 64




Project File No. PDEV18-006
Project Engineer: Matthew S. Holmes
Date: 7/25/2019

@ 218 Construct a 2" asphalt concrete (AC) grind and overlay on the following street(s): Sixth Street D
along the property frontage.

D 2.19  Reconstruction of the full pavement structural section, per City of Ontario Standard Drawing Number D
1011, may be required based on the existing pavement condition and final street design. Minimum
limits of reconstruction shall be along property frontage, from street centerline to curb/gutter.

[(] 220 Make arrangements with the Cucamonga Valley Water District (CVWD) to provide [] water service ]
[ sewer service to the site. This property is within the area served by the CVWD and Applicant shall
provide documentation to the City verifying that all required CVYWD fees have been paid.

E] 221 Overhead utiliies shall be under-grounded, in accordance with Title 7 of the City’s Municipal Code D
(Ordinance No. 2804 and 2892). Developer may pay in-lieu fee, approximately , for
undergrounding of utilities in accordance with Section 7-7.303 e of the City's Municipal Code.

[[J] 222 Other conditions: OJ
C. SEWER
@ 223  An 8inch sewer main is available for connection by this project in Sixth Street E]

(Ref: Sewer plan bar code: $12580). Connection to IEUA 18" main if approved by IEUA.
(Ref: Sewer plan bar code: $12597)

224  Design and construct a sewer main extension. A sewer main is not available for direct connection. The
closest main is approximately feet away.

[
0

D 225  Submit documentation that shows expected peak loading values for modeling the impact of the subject
project to the existing sewer system. The project site is within a deficient public sewer system area.
Applicant shall be responsible for all cosis associated with the preparation of the medel. Based on the
results of the analysis, Applicant may be reguired to mitigate the project impact to the deficient public
sewer system, including, but not limited to, upgrading of existing sewer main(s), construction of new
sewer main(s) or diversion of sewer discharge to ancther sewer.

226  Other conditions:

[

0
O

D. WATER

227 An 8 inch water main is available for connection by this project in Sixth Street
(Ref: Water plan bar code: No Plan)

2.28  Design and construct a water main extension. A water main Is not available for direct connection. The
closest main is approximately feet away.

229  Other conditions:

E. RECYCLED WATER
230 A inch recycled water main is available for connection by this project in

(Ref: Recycled Water plan bar code: )

2.31  Design and construct an on-site recycled water system for this project. A recycled water main does
exist in the vicinity of this project.

OO0 0 O00RX

OO0 OO0

232 Design and construct an on-site recycled water ready system for this project. A recycled water main
does not currently exist in the vicinity of this project, but is planned for the near future. If Applicant
would like to connect to this recycled water main when it becomes available, the cost for the connection
shall be borne solely by the Applicant.

233  Submit two (2) hard copies and one (1) electronic copy, in PDF format, of the Engineering Report (ER),
for the use of recycled water, to the OMUC for review and subsequent submittal to the California
Department of Public Health (CDPH) for final approval.

O
O

Note: The OMUC and the CDPH review and approval process will be approximately three (3) months.
Contact the Ontario Municipal Utilities Company at (909) 395-2647 regarding this requirement.

[] 234 Other conditions: D

Last Revised 8/7/2019 Page 8 of 14

Iltem E - 50 of 64



Project File No. PDEV18-006
Project Engineer. Matthew S. Helmes
Date: 7/25/2019

F. TRAFFIC / TRANSPORTATION

[ 235

[0 236
K 237

Submit a focused traffic impact study, prepared and signed by a Traffic/Civil Engineer registered in the
State of California. The study shall address, but not be limited to. the following issues as required by
the City Engineer:

1. On-site and off-site circulation

2. Traffic level of service (LOS) at ‘build-out' and future years

3. Impact at specific intersections as selected by the City Engineer

New ftraffic signal installations shall be added to Southern California Edison (SCE) customer account
number # 2-20-044-3877.

Other conditions:

1. All landscaping, block walls, and other obstructions shall be compatible with the
stopping sight distance requirements per City of Ontario Standard Drawing Number
1309.

2. The applicant/developer has been notified of the pending Interstate 10 projects along
the 1-10 corridor that will have future impacts on the subject project. Caltrans is
working on the I-10 High-Occupancy Toll (HOT) lanes project, and the City of Ontario
has an interchange project at Grove Avenue and the 1-10 Freeway.

3. Street light shall be upgraded and relocated as necessary to comply with City of
Ontario Standards.

G. DRAINAGE / HYDROLOGY

] =238

2.39

O

[] 240

2.41

242

E 2.43

A inch storm drain main is available to accept flows from this project in
(Ref: Storm Drain plan bar code: )

Submit a hydrology study and drainage analysis, prepared and signed by a Civil Engineer registered in
the State of California. The study shall be prepared in accordance with the San Bernardino County
Hydrology Manual and City of Ontario standards and guidelines. Additional drainage facilities,
including, but not limited to, improvements beyond the project frontage, may be required to be designed
and constructed, by Applicant, as a result of the findings of this study.

An adequate drainage facility to accept additional runoff from the site does not currently exist
downstream of the project. Design and construct a storm water detention facility on the project site.
100 year post-development peak flow shall be attenuated such that it does not exceed 80% of pre-
development peak flows, in accordance with the approved hydrology study and improvement plans.

Submit a copy of a recorded private drainage easement or drainage acceptance agreement to the
Engineering Department for the acceptance of any increase to volume and/or concentration of historical
drainage flows onto adjacent property, prior to approval of the grading plan for the project.

Comply with the City of Ontario Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance (Ordinance No. 2408). The
project site or a portion of the project site is within the Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA) as indicated
on the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) and is subject to flooding during a 100 year frequency storm
The site plan shall be subject to the provisions of the National Flood Insurance Program.

Other conditions:
Project is located along the West Cucamonga Creek Channel operated by San Bernardino

County Flood Centrol District. It is the developer’s responsibility to coordinate and obtain any
permits/approvals needed to connect to the channel.

Last Revised 8/772019 Page 9 of 14

(S

&

OJ

O
O

Iltem E - 51 of 64



Project File No. PDEV18-006

A j\“
Project Engineer: Matthew S. Holmes s C
Date: 7/25/2019 & ‘

H. STORM WATER QUALITY / NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE AND ELIMINATION SYSTEM
(NPDES)

D 2.44 401 Water Quality Certification/404 Permit — Submit a copy of any applicable 401 Certification or 404 D
Permit for the subject project to the City project engineer. Development that will affect any body of
surface walter (i.e. lake, creek, open drainage channel, etc.) may require a 401 Water Quality
Certification from the California Regional Water Quality Control Board, Santa Ana Region (Rwace)
and a 404 Permit from the United States Amy Corps of Engineers (USACE). The groups of water
bodies classified in these requirements are perennial (flow year round) and ephemeral (flow during rain
conditions, only) and include, but are not limited to, direct connections into San Bernardino County
Flood Control District (SBCFCD) channels.

If a 401 Certification and/or a 404 Permit are not required, a letter confirming this from Applicant's
engineer shall be submitted.
Contact information: USACE (Los Angeles District) (213) 452-3414; RWQCB (951) 782-4130.

[X 245 Submita Water Quality Management Plan (WQMP). This plan shall be approved by the ]
Engineering Department prior to approval of any grading plan. The WQMP shall be submitted,
utilizing the current San Bernardino County Stormwater Program template, available at:
http:/iwww.sbcounty.qov/dpw/land/npdes.asp.

D 2.46  Design and construct a Connector Pipe Trash Screen or equivalent Trash Treatment Control Device [:]
that meets the Full Capture System definition and specifications, and is on the Certified List of the State
Water Resources Control Board. The device shall be adequately sized per catch basin and include a
deflector screen, vertical support bars, and removable component to facilitate maintenance and
cleaning.

[[] 247 Other conditions: ]

J. SPECIAL DISTRICTS

[[] =248 File an application, together with an initial payment deposit (if required), to establish a Community |
Facilities District (CFD) pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community facilities District Act of 1982, The
application and fee shall be submitted a minimum three (3) months prior to final subdivision map
approval, and the CFD shall be established prior to final subdivision map approval or issuance of
building permits, whichever occurs first. The CFD shall be established upon the subject property to
provide funding for various City services. An annual special tax shall be levied upon each parcel or lot
in an amount to be determined. The special tax will be collected along with annual property taxes. The
City shall be the sole lead agency in the formation of any CFD. Contact the Management Services
Department at (909) 395-2353 to initiate the CFD application process.

[:] 2.49  Other conditions: D

K. FIBER OPTIC

[X 250 Design and construct fiber optic system to provide access to the City's conduit and fiber optic ]
system per the City’s Fiber Optic Master Plan. Building entrance conduits shall start from the
closest OntarioNet hand hole constructed along the project frontage in the ROW and shall
terminate in the main telecommunications room for each building. Conduit infrastructure shall
interconnect with the primary and/or secondary backbone fiber optic conduit system at the
nearest OntarioNet hand hole.

@ 2.51 Refer to the City's Fiber Optic Master Plan for design and layout guidelines. Contact the [:[
Information Technology Department at (909) 395-2000, regarding this requirement.

Last Revised 8/7/2019 Page 10 of 14

Iltem E - 52 of 64



Project File No. PDEV18-006
Project Engineer; Matthew S. Holmes
Date: 7/25/2019

L. Solid Waste
[:] 252  Onsite solid waste shall be designed in accordance with the City's Solid Waste Manual location at: D

http /Awww ontarioca.gov/municipal-utilities-company/solid-waste

[ 253 Other conditions: O

Last Revised 8/772019 Page 11 of 14

Iltem E - 53 of 64



Project File No. PDEV18-006 ﬂé;i?{i;,-(}_‘

Project Engineer. Matthew S. Holmes /
Date: 7/25/2019 |\ =

3. PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF A CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY, APPLICANT SHALL:

D 3.01  Set new monuments in place of any monuments that have been damaged or destroyed as a result
of construction of the subject project. Monuments shall be set in accordance with City of Ontario
standards and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.

D 3.02  Complete all requirements for recycled water usage.

[ 1) Procure from the OMUC a copy of the letter of confirmation from the California Department of
Public Health (CDPH) that the Engineering Repor (ER) has been reviewed and the subject site is
approved for the use of recycled water.

[ 2) Obtain clearance from the OMUC confirming completion of recycled water improvements and
passing of shutdown tests and cross connection inspection, upon availability/usage of recycled
water.

[J 3) Complete education training of on-site personnel in the use of recycled water, in accordance
with the ER, upon availability/usage of recycled water.

D 3.03 The applicant/developer shall submit all final survey documents prepared by a Licensed Surveyor D
registered in the State of California detailing all survey monuments that have been preserved,
revised, adjusted or set along with any maps, corner records or Records of Survey needed to
comply with these Conditions of Approvals and the latest edition of the California Professional Land
Survey Act. These documents are to be reviewed and approved by the City Survey Office.

D 3.04 NMC Projects: For developments located at an intersection of any two collector or arterial streets, [j
the applicant/developer shall set a monument if one does not already exist at that intersection.
Contact the City Survey office for information on reference benchmarks, acceptable methodology
and required submittals.

D 3.05  Confirm payment of all Development Impact Fees (DIF) lo the Building Department. D

E 3.06 Submit electronic copies (PDF and Auto CAD format) of all approved improvement plans, D
studies and reports (i.e. hydrology, traffic, WQMP, etc.).

l.ast Revised 8/7/2019 Page 12 of 14

Iltem E - 54 of 64



Project File No. PDEV18-006
Project Engineer. Matthew S. Holmes
Date: 7/25/2019

EXHIBIT ‘A’

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
First Plan Check Submittal Checklist

Project Number: PDEV 18-006, and/or Parcel Map/Tract Map No.

The following items are required to be included with the first plan check submittal:

1. A copy of this check list

2. [ Payment of fee for Plan Checking

3 One (1) copy of Engineering Cost Estimate (on City form) with engineer's wet signature and stamp.
4. [X] One (1) copy of project Conditions of Approval

5. [ Two (2) sets of Potable and Recycled Water demand calculations (include water demand calculations showing
low, average and peak water demand in GPM for the proposed development and proposed water meter size).

6. [ Three (3) sets of Public Street improvement plan with street cross-sections
7. [0 Three (3) sets of Private Street improvement plan with street cross-sections

8. [0 Four (4) sets of Public Water improvement plan (include water demand calculations showing low, average and
peak water demand in GFPM for the proposed development and proposed water meter size)

9. [ Four (4) sets of Recycled Water improvement plan (include recycled water demand calculations showing low,
average and peak water demand in GPM for the proposed development and proposed water meter size and an
exhibit showing the limits of areas being irrigated by each recycled water meter)

10. [ Four (4) sets of Public Sewer improvement plan

11. [0 Five (5) sets of Public Storm Drain improvement plan

12. [ Three (3) sets of Public Street Light improvement plan

13. [0 Three (3) sets of Signing and Striping improvement plan

14. [J Three (3) sets of Fiber Optic plan (include Auto CAD electronic submittal)

15. [] Three (3) sets of Dry Utility plans within public right-of-way (at a minimum the plans must show existing and
ultimate right-of-way, curb and gutter, proposed utility location including centerline dimensions, wall to wall
clearances between proposed utility and adjacent public line, street work repaired per City of Ontario Standard

Drawing Number 1306. Include Auto CAD electronic submittal)

16. [J Three (3) sets of Traffic Signal improvement plan and One (1) copy of Traffic Signal Specifications with modified
Special Provisions. Please contact the Traffic Division at (909) 395-2154 to obtain Traffic Signal Specifications.

17. i Two (2) copies of Water Quality Management Plan (WQMP), including one (1) copy of the approved
Preliminary WQMP (PWQMP).

18. [ One (1) copy of Hydrology/Drainage study
18. [X One (1) copy of Soils/Geology report
20. [0 Payment for Final Map/Parcel Map processing fee

21. [0 Three (3) copies of Final Map/Parcel Map

Last Revised 8/72019 Page 13 of 14

Iltem E - 55 of 64



Project File No. PDEV18-006 o

Project Engineer: Matthew S. Holmes I 31

Date: 7/25/2019 |\ |
R -

22. [ One (1) copy of approved Tentative Map

23. [0 One (1) copy of Preliminary Title Report (current within 30 days)

24. [ One (1) copy of Traverse Closure Calculations

25. [J One (1) set of supporting documents and maps (legible copies): referenced improvement plans (full size),
referenced record final maps/parcel maps (full size, 18"x26"), Assessor's Parcel map (full size, 11"x17”), recorded

documents such as deeds, lot line adjustments, easements, etc.

26. [J Two (2) copies of Engineering Report and an electronic file (include PDF format electronic submittal) for recycled
water use

27. [ Other:

Last Revised 8/7/2019 Page 14 of 14

Iltem E - 56 of 64



CITY OF ONTARIO
MEMORANDUM

TO: Luis Batres, Planning Department
FROM: Douglas Sorel, Police Department
DATE: March 7, 2018

SUBJECT: PDEV18-006- A DEVELOPMENT PLAN TO CONSTRUCT AN 88 UNIT
APARTMENT COMPLEX AT SIXTH STREET AND THE FLOOD
CONTROL CHANNEL

The **Standard Conditions of Approval” contained in Resolution No. 2017-027 apply. The
applicant shall read and be thoroughly familiar with these conditions, including, but not limited
to, the requirements below.

* Required lighting for walkways, driveways, doorways, parking lots, hallways, stairwells,
and other areas used by the public shall be provided. Lights shall operate via photosensor.
Photometrics shall be provided to the Police Department and include the types of fixtures
proposed and demonstrate that such fixtures meet the vandal-resistant requirement.
Planned landscaping shall not obstruct lighting.

e Rooftop addresses shall be installed on the buildings as stated in the Standard Conditions.
The numbers shall be at a minimum 3 feet tall and 1 foot wide, in reflective white paint
on a flat black background, and oriented with the bottom of the numbers towards the
addressed street.

e The Applicant shall comply with construction site security requirements as stated in the
Standard Conditions.

e First floor stairwells shall be constructed so as to either allow for visibility through the
stairwell risers or to prohibit public access to the areas behind stairwells.

® The development shall participate in the Crime-Free Multi Housing program offered by
the Ontario Police Department COPS Division.

The Applicant is invited to contact Douglas Sorel at (909) 395-2873 with any questions or
concerns regarding these conditions.

Iltem E - 57 of 64



CITY OF ONTARIO
MEMORANDUM

TO: Luis Batres, Senior Planner
Planning Department

FROM: Paul Ehrman, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal
Fire Department

DATE: July 6, 2018

SUBJECT: PDEV18-006 - A Development Plan to construct an 88-unit apartment
complex on 3.5 acres of land located south of Sixth Street and west of the
San Bernardino County Flood Control channel, at 1402 North Virginia
Ave, within the HDR-45 (High Density Residential - 25.1 to 45.0 DU/Acre)
zoning district (APNs: 1047-443-01 and 1047-432-22); submitted by SC
Property Fund LLC.

<] The plan does adequately address Fire Department requirements at this time.

X Standard Conditions of Approval apply, as stated below.

SITE AND BUILDING FEATURES:

A. 2016 CBC Type of Construction: V

B. Type of Roof Materials: Ordinary

C. Total Square Footage: Varies 5,000 — 34,000 Sq. Ft
D. Number of Stories: 3

E. 2016 CBC Occupancy Classification(s): R

Iltem E - 58 of 64



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL:

1.0 GENERAL

DJ 1.1 The following are the Ontario Fire Department (“Fire Department”) requirements for this
development project, based on the current edition of the California Fire Code (CFC), and the
current versions of the Fire Prevention Standards (“Standards.”) It is recommended that the
applicant or developer transmit a copy of these requirements to the on-site contractor(s) and
that all questions or concerns be directed to the Bureau of Fire Prevention, at (909) 395-2029.
For copies of Ontario Fire Department Standards please access the City of Ontario web site at
www.ontarioca.gov, click on “Fire Department” and then on “Standards and Forms.”

DJ 1.2 These Fire Department conditions of approval are to be included on any and all construction
drawings.

2.0 FIRE DEPARTMENT ACCESS

B 2.1 Fire Department vehicle access roadways shall be provided to within 150 fi. of all portions of
the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved. Roadways
shall be paved with an all-weather surface and shall be a minimum of twenty-four (24) ft. wide.
See Standard #B-004.

X 2.2 In order to allow for adequate turning radius for emergency fire apparatus, all tuns shall be
designed to meet the minimum twenty five feet (25°) inside and forty-five feet (457) outside
turning radius per Standard #B-005.

X 2.3 Fire Department access roadways that exceed one hundred and fifty feet (1 50%) in length shall
have an approved turn-around per Standard #B-002.

X 2.4 Access drive aisles which cross property lines shall be provided with CC&Rs, access
easements, or reciprocating agreements, and shall be recorded on the titles of affected
properties, and copies of same shall be provided at the time of building plan check.

&J 2.5 "No Parking-Fire Lane" signs and /or red painted curbs with lettering are required to be instal-
led in interior access roadways, in locations where vehicle parking would obstruct the
minimum clear width requirement. Installation shall be per Standard #B-001.

D 2.6 Security gates or other barriers on fire access roadways shall be provided with a Knox brand
key switch or padlock to allow Fire Department access. See Standards #B-003, B-004 and H-
001.

[ 2.7 Any time PRIOR to on-site combustible construction and/or storage, a minimum twenty-six
(26) ft. wide circulating all weather access roads shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all
portions of the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved by
fire department and other emergency services..

ItefvE - 59 of 64



3.0 WATER SUPPLY

DJ 3.1 Therequired fire flow per Fire Department standards, based on the 2016 California Fire Code,
Appendix B, is 2500 gallons per minute (g.p.m.) for 4 hours at a minimum of 20 pounds per
square inch (p.s.i.) residual operating pressure.

& 3.2 Off-site (public) fire hydrants are required to be installed on all frontage streets, at a minimum
spacing of three hundred foot (300°) apart, per Engineering Department specifications.

] 3.4 The water supply, including water mains and fire hydrants, shall be tested and approved by the
Engineering Department and Fire Department prior to combustible construction to assure
availability and reliability for firefighting purposes.

4.0 FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS

[X] 4.1 On-site private fire hydrants are required per Standard #D-005, and identified in accordance
with Standard #D-002. Installation and locations(s) are subject to the approval of the Fire
Department. An application with detailed plans shall be submitted, and a construction permit
shall be issued by the Fire Department, prior to any work being done.

X 4.2 Underground fire mains which cross property lines shall be provided with CC & R, easements,
or reciprocating agreements, and shall be recorded on the titles of affected properties, and
copies of same shall be provided at the time of fire department plan check. The shared use of
private fire mains or fire pumps is allowable only between immediately adjacent properties
and shall not cross any public street.

BJ 4.3 An automatic fire sprinkler system is required. The system design shall be in accordance with
National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Standard Choose an item . All new fire sprinkler
systems, except those in single family dwellings, which contain twenty (20) sprinkler heads or
more shall be monitored by an approved listed supervising station. An application along with
detailed plans shall be submitted, and a construction permit shall be issued by the Fire
Department, prior to any work being done.

DJ 4.4 Wood frame buildings that are to be sprinkled shall have these systems in service (but not
necessarily finaled) before the building is enclosed.

DJ 4.5 Fire Department Connections (FDC) shall be located on the address side of the building within
one hundred fifty feet (150°) of a public fire hydrant on the same side of the street. Provide
identification for all fire sprinkler control valves and fire department connections per Standard
#D-007. Raised curbs adjacent to Fire Department connection(s) shall be painted red, five feet
either side, per City standards.

X 4.6 A fire alarm system is required. The system design shall be in accordance with National Fire
Protection Association (NFPA) Standard 72. An application along with detailed plans shall be
submitted, and a construction permit shall be issued by the Fire Department, prior to any work
being done.

RextvE - 60 of 64



X 4.7 Portable fire extinguishers are required to be installed prior to occupancy per Standard #C-001.
Please contact the Fire Prevention Bureau to determine the exact number, type and placement
required.

5.0 BUILDING CONSTRUCTION FEATURES

5.1 The developer/general contractor is to be responsible for reasonable periodic cleanup of the
development during construction to avoid hazardous accumulations of combustible trash and
debris both on and off the site.

X 5.2 Approved numbers or addresses shall be placed on all new and existing buildings in such a
position as to be plainly visible and legible from the street or road fronting the property. Multi-
tenant or building projects shall have addresses and/or suite numbers provided on the rear of
the building. Address numbers shall contrast with their background. See Section 9-1 6.06 of
the Ontario Municipal Code and Standards #H-003 and #H-002.

] 5.3 Single station smoke alarms and carbon monoxide alarms are required to be installed per the
California Building Code and the California Fire Code.

BJ 5.4 Multiple unit building complexes shall have building directories provided at the main
entrances. The directories shall be designed to the requirements of the Fire Department, see
Section 9-1 6.06 of the Ontario Municipal Code and Standard #H-003.

BJ 5.5 All residential chimneys shall be equipped with an approved spark arrester meeting the
requirements of the California Building Code.

] 5.6 Knox ® brand key-box(es) shall be installed in location(s) acceptable to the Fire Department.
All Knox boxes shall be monitored for tamper by the building fire alarm system. See Standard
#H-001 for specific requirements.

6.0 OTHER SPECIAL USES

X 6.1 The storage, use, dispensing, or handling of any hazardous materials shall be approved by the
Fire Department, and adequate fire protection features shall be required. If hazardous materials
are proposed, a Fire Department Hazardous Materials Information Packet, including
Disclosure Form and Information Worksheet, shall be completed and submitted with Material
Safety Data Sheets to the Fire Department along with building construction plans.

HerhsE - 61 of 64



AIRPORT LAND Ust®ompATIBILITY PLANNISE

NTARIG~—

AIRPORT PLANNING

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION REPORT

Project File No.: PDEV18-006
Address:
APN:

Reviewed By:

1402 North Virginia Avenue Lorena Mejia

1047-443-01 & 1047-432-22

Contact Info:

Existing Land  Vacant

Use:

Proposed Land
Use:

Development Plan to construct an 88-unit apartment complex

Site Acreage: 3.5

Proposed Structure Height:

ONT-IAC Project Review:

Airport Influence Area:

N/A

45FT

ONT

The project is impacted by the following ONT ALUCP Compatibility Zones:

909-395-2276

Project Planner:

Luis Batres

Date: 3/19/18
CDNo. 2018-009
PALU No.: 1Va

Safety Noise Impact Airspace Protection Overflight Notification
Zone 1 75+ dB CNEL Hich Terain Zong Avigation Easement
O O = Dedication
() zone 14 () 70-75d8 CNEL FAA Notification Surfaces Recorded Gverfiight
Notification

O 65 - 70 dB CNEL Iz Airspace Obstruction
| Surfaces

Airspace Avigation

| / Real Estate Transaction
Disclosure

O 60 - 65 dB CNEL

O Sorised Easement Area
Allowable
O Zone 5 Height: 708

O Zone 5

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION

O Zone 3 O Zone 4 O Zone 6

Allowable Height:

DConsistent ® Consistent with Conditions D Inconsistent
The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP)
for ONT.

This proposed Project is: DExempt from the ALUCP

s g

Page 1

Airport Planner Signature:

Form Updated: March 3, 2016

ltem E - 62 of 64



AIRPORT LAND Use COMPATIBILITY PLANNIRG CoiN;  201E00

PALU No.:

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION REPORT

Proiect CONDITIONS

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP) for ONT. The applicant
is required to meet the Real Estate Transaction Disclosure in accordance with California Codes (Business and
Professions Code Section 11010-11024). New residential subdivisions within an Airport Influence Area are required to
file an application for a Public Report consisting of a Notice of Intention (NOI) and a completed questionnaire with the
Department of Real Estate and include the following language within the NOI:

NOTICE OF AIRPORT IN VICINITY: This property is presently located in the vicinity of an airport, within what is
known as an airport influence area. For that reason, the property may be subject to some of the annoyances or
inconveniences associated with proximity to airport operations (for example: noise, vibration, or odors). Individual
sensitivities to those annoyances can vary from person to person. You may wish to consider what airport annoyances,
if any, are associated with the property before you complete your purchase and determine whether they are acceptable
to you.

Page 2 Form Updated: March 3, 2016

Iltem E - 63 of 64



CITY OF ONTARIO
MEMORANDUM

TO:
FROM:
DATE:

SUBJECT:

PLANNING DEPARTMENT, Luis Batres
BUILDING DEPARTMENT, Kevin Shear
February 7, 2018

PDEV18-006

X The plan does adequately address the departmental concerns at this time.

O
X

No comments

Report below.

Conditions of Approval

1. The Site address for this project will be 1098 E Sixth St
2. Standard conditions of approval apply.

KS:Im

Iltem E - 64 of 64



	AGENDA
	September 4, 2019
	Scott Murphy, Executive Director, Development Agency
	John P. Andrews, Executive Director, Economic Development
	Fire Marshal Paul Ehrman, Fire Department

	20190904_Item A-Minutes.pdf
	BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT
	BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT
	STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT
	PUBLIC COMMENTS
	CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS




